Governance (ESTEVEN
and Audit | Councit
Committee

Wednesday, 18 February 2026 at 2.00 pm
Council Chamber - Council Offices, St. Peter's Hill,
Grantham. NG31 6PZ

Committee Councillor Tim Harrison (Chairman)
Members:  Councillor Paul Wood (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Robert Leadenham, Councillor Bridget Ley, Councillor Habib Rahman,
Councillor Rhea Rayside, Councillor Paul Stokes, Councillor Mark Whittington,
Councillor Sue Woolley and Alan Bowling

Agenda

This meeting can be watched as a live stream, or at a later date, via the
SKDC Public-l Channel

1. Apologies for absence

2. Disclosure of interests
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for
consideration at the meeting.

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 21 January 2026 (Pages 3 -9)
4. Updates from previous meeting (Page 11)

To consider updates on Actions agreed at the meeting held on 21

January 2026.
5. Year-end report (ISA 260) 2024-25 (Pages 13 - 50)

Year end report from Council External Auditors regarding the statement
of accounts for 2024-25.

6. Auditors Annual Report 2024-25 (Pages 51 -71)
External Auditor's Annual Report providing a summary of the findings
and key issues arising from our 2024-25 audit of South Kesteven
District Council.

Published and dispatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Tuesday, 10 February 2026.
{ 01476 406080
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive
www.southkesteven.gov.uk



mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
https://southkesteven.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
https://southkesteven.public-i.tv/core/portal/home

Statement of Accounts 2024-25 (Pages 73 - 208)
The Statement of Accounts 2024/25 is presented to the Governance
and Audit Committee for approval.

Work Programme 2025 - 2026 (Pages 209 - 211)
To consider the Committee’s Work Programme for 2025 — 2026.

Any other business, which the chairman, by reasons of
special circumstances, decides is urgent.



Agenda Iltem 3

SOUTH
KESTEVEN
DISTRICT
COUNCIL

Meeting of the
Governance and Audit
Committee

Wednesday, 21 January 2026, 2.00
pm

Committee Members present Cabinet Members present
Councillor Tim Harrison (Chairman) Councillor Ashley Baxter
Councillor Robert Leadenham Councillor Philip Knowles
Councillor Bridget Ley

Councillor Habib Rahman Other Members present
Councillor Rhea Rayside

Councillor Paul Stokes Councillor Anna Kelly
Councillor Mark Whittington Councillor lan Selby

Councillor Elvis Stooke
Alan Bowling

Officers

Richard Wyles, Deputy Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer

Emma Whittaker, Assistant Director (Planning & Growth)

David Scott, Assistant Director of Finance and Deputy Section 151 Officer
Jeremy Barlow, Building Control Manager

James Welbourn, Democratic Services Manager

Joshua Mann, Democratic Services Officer

Gurpreet Dulay, Internal Auditor

Matt Humphrey, RSM Partner

52. Apologies for absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Paul Wood and Sue
Woolley.

Councillor Paul Wood was substituted by Councillor Elvis Stooke.
53. Disclosure of interests

No interests were disclosed.
54. Minutes of the meeting held on 13 November 2025

The minutes of the meeting held 13 November 2025 were AGREED as an
accurate record.



55.

Internal Audit Progress Report

The Internal Audit Progress Report was introduced by the Internal Auditors.
The report covered the following:

Design Opinion Effectiveness Opinion

Treasury Management - Moderate Substantial
Building Control - Substantial Moderate
IT Strategy - Moderate Moderate

Treasury Management

Areas of strength identified included — oversight and reporting of prudential
indicators and policy thresholds.

Areas of weakness identified included — governance approval of Treasury
Management practices.

Building Control

Areas of strength identified included — mature and embedded performance
monitoring arrangements with robust and transparent financial management.

Areas of weakness identified included — a lack of documented improvement
processes following EMBC survey results.

IT Strategy

Areas of strength identified included — the adoption of a streamlined ICT
strategy allowing innovative working.

Areas of weakness identified included - the individual themes of the Strategy
did not set out how they are linked to the wider corporate objective.

During discussions, Members commented on the following:

- A Member requested greater detail about SKDC’s response to issues
identified by the audits in future progress reports.

- It was confirmed that the relationship between the new IT Strategy and
the Corporate Plan was still being developed to ensure that all actions
were aligned as the IT Strategy was still in its infancy.

- Following the Building Control audit, it was confirmed that the
Developers’ Forum was in the process of being developed.

- A Member did note concern that excessive resources would be spent
chasing building control feedback. The Assistant Director (Planning and
Growth) confirmed that SKDC were looking at options requiring fewer
resources.



The Internal Audit Progress Report was noted by the Committee.
56. Indicative Internal Audit Plan 2026/27

The Indicative Internal Audit Plan 2026/27 was introduced by the Internal
Auditor.

The Indicative Internal operational plan 2026/27 covered the following areas,
outlining which quarter they would be reviewed in, a description of the review
and a reason for its inclusion:

Core Assurance -
- Accounts receivable
- Asset management strategy — general fund
- Planning services
- Procurement cards
- Rent collection
- Sickness and absence management
- Renters’ Right Act — Response to new
- Statutory Responsibilities

Soft Controls —
- Equality, diversity, and inclusion

Future Focused Assurance -
- LGR Programme Governance and Readiness Review

Flexible Audit Resource - To be allocated during the year as required but
could include the examples shown below —
- Contingency/ Flexible resource

Contract Management —
- Planning / liaison / management
- Recommendation follow ups
- Governance & Audit Committee.

During discussions, Members commented on the following:

- A Member queried whether there were plans for the Internal Auditors to
complete a cyber security review. It was confirmed this review was
completed in March 2024 and the matter remained on the Risk Register
for review.

- Clarification was sought as why 20 days had been allocated to the
procurement cards review. The Section 151 Officer confirmed that
these timeframes were set by the Internal Auditors and the scoping was
still in its infancy.



- Reassurance was given by the Internal Auditors about the flexibility of
the plan. Contingency days had been built in and regular progress
reports would continue to update the Committee.

The Indicative Internal Audit Plan 2026/27 was noted by the Committee.
57. 2026/27 Treasury Management Strategy Statement

The 2026/27 Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) was
presented by the Leader of the Council.

The Council was required to produce an annual Treasury Management
Strategy Statement, outlining the Council’s borrowing and investment policies
that SKDC would follow during 2026/27.

Appendix 3 confirmed there were no proposed changes to the current limits or
specified counterparty investment strategies and outlined the Council’s Ethical
Investment Strategy, following its review.

As part of ongoing monitoring, the treasury management practices were
reviewed and updated during the year to reflect operational changes. These
were undertaken by senior finance officers to reflect current working practices
with the exception of those which were formally included within the annual
TMMS and require member approval.

The Council’s Capital Strategy was to be considered by Full Council as part of
the annual budget setting process on 26 February 2026.

During discussions, the following points were made:

- The Section 151 Officer confirmed that the Strategy Statement was
written to set out the indicative programme outlined at the 13 January
2026 Budget OSC rather than setting reserve levels. Within the
Strategy Statement the Section 151 Officer noted that SKDC had been
advised to borrow from internal resources rather than the higher-
interest external rates.

- A Member requested a written response from officers in response to his
concerns about reserve levels. The Leader also offered to meet with
the Member and the Section 151 officer to discuss the concerns.
ACTION

Following discussions, it was proposed, seconded, and AGREED to
recommend that Full Council approves the Treasury Management Strategy
Statement 2026/27.



58. Review of the Financial Regulations

The review of Financial Regulations was presented by the Cabinet Member
for Corporate Governance and Licensing.

The proposed changes to the Financial Regulations included:

Revenue Reserves - Discretionary and Governance

Clarification was provided on the definition of reserves between discretionary
and governance reserves. This clarification was provided in section 11.2 of
the revised Financial Regulations.

Authorised Limits — Appendix A of the Financial Regulations

Due to the number of changes including levels and authorisations, the current
approved Financial Regulations was provided at Appendix A for comparative
purposes.

Virements — the process whereby unallocated budgets could be

moved between cost centres where additional costs may be incurred during
the year. In respect of revenue, it was only permissible to move budgets
between staffing costs or other expenditure to avoid salary budgets being
adversely affected. In respect of capital, the virement levels were

updated to reflect the levels of budgeted expenditure levels for capital
schemes. The authorisation levels were updated to ensure there was

no service disruption whilst virements requests are being considered.

Additions to Budget Framework — this authority allowed for in-year budget
framework changes where a proposal arose outside of the annual

budget setting process. Authority for these changes were either a Cabinet or
a Council decision subject to the financial amendment levels.

Approval to use the Reserves — this section was updated to allow

for the use of the discretionary reserves in accordance with the criteria of
each reserve. The authorisation and financial levels were updated

and included consultation with the Leader, Cabinet Member for Finance and
Chief Executive.

Authorised Signatories — this section was in respect to raising order and
approving invoices. This was a key internal control and ensures there are
clear segregation of duties between officers.

Bad Debt levels — these levels were updated to enable Team Leaders to
authorise write offs of specific debt levels before the write off
request was escalated to the Head of Service.

During discussions, Members commented on the following:



- A Member noted concerns about the accessibility of reserves that
section 11 of the regulations granted. The Section 151 Officer
confirmed that officer delegation reports were published for any
delegated spending from discretionary reserves.

- It was queried why the emergency payments plan had not been
updated, but it was confirmed by the Section 151 Officer that this was
because the current level still worked efficiently.

- Inresponse to concern about the risk to the Council of increasing the
responsibility of certain high-ranking officers, the Leader responded
that this reflects the seniority of the positions and shows trust in the
staff.

- It was confirmed that bad debt was regularly audited by the Internal
Auditors and write offs were undertaken in accordance with the
Financial Regulations levels.

- The Section 151 Officer agreed to produce an update about the
effectiveness of the Financial Regulations following a six-month period.

Following discussions, it was proposed, seconded, and AGREED to
recommend that Full Council approves the updated Financial Regulations.

59. Strategic Risk Register

The Review of the Strategic Risk Register was introduced by the Cabinet
Member for Corporate Governance and Licencing.

The Corporate Management Team had undertaken an assessment of the
effectiveness of the strategic risk controls as identified in the Strategic Risk
Register. The assessment led to the following judgements with regards the
strategic risk controls:

Effective — Controls and enablers were deemed to exist, be consistently
applied, and achieve the outcome expected.

Partially Effective — There were improvements that could be made with
regards to strengthening the controls and enablers, with improvement actions
at a macro level identified.

Not Effective — Controls were not performing as required and improvement
actions at a more detailed level identified.

In completing the exercise all strategic risk controls were deemed effective or
partially effective. None were deemed ineffective.

Appendix A outlined specific details of the individual risks and these were
ranked on a risk matrix.

During discussions, Members commented on the following:



- A Member noted concern about the two red-rated risks and suggested
that devolution should be classed as red too. The Member also noted
concern about the volume of risks. The Chairman interjected that Full
Council was a more appropriate forum to analyse this.

- Support was given for the process of risks being assigned actions
within the register.

Following discussions, it was proposed, seconded, and AGREED to approve
the updated Strategic Risk Register.

60. Work Programme 2025 - 2026
It was noted that the 18 February 2026 meeting had been confirmed.
Members noted the Work Programme 2025-26.

61. Any other business, which the chairman, by reasons of special
circumstances, decides is urgent.

Following a funding dispute between SKDC and Lincolnshire County Council,
the Chairman requested assurances about the following questions and
suggested a review by the Internal Auditors:

1. Whether SKDC had adequate governance and documentation in place
where SKDC relied on funding commitments from partner authorities?

2. Whether reliance on external partner funding was appropriately
identified and managed as a risk?

3. Whether there were clear controls to ensure that member decisions
and public communications were not based on funding that was not
formally secured?

4. Whether any lessons should be taken for future partnership or
devolution related agreements?

The Section 151 Officer confirmed that an Internal Audit review was not
necessary and reassurance could be given from officer level. The Committee
indicated support for this.

The meeting concluded at 15.44.



This page is intentionally left blank



TT

Action Sheet

To provide members with an update on actions agreed at the 21 January 2026 meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee.

about reserve levels. The
Leader also offered to meet
with the Member and the
Section 151 officer to discuss
the concerns.

Min | Agenda Item Action(s) Assigned to Comments/status Deadline
no.
57 | 2026/27 Treasury A Member requested a Section 151 Officer CLOSED

Management written response from officers

Strategy Statement | in response to his concerns

7 Wwal| epuaby



This page is intentionally left blank



KPMG

SouthKesteven
District Gouncil

Year End Report to the Governance & Audit
Committee

Year end report for the year ended 31 March 2025

9 February 2026



‘@ KPMG required communications for all entities

Introduction

To the Governance & Audit Committee of
SouthKesteven District Council

We are pleased to have the opportunity to meet with you on the
18th February 2026 to discuss the results of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of South Kesteven District
Council (the ‘Council’) as at and for the year ended 31 March
2025.

We are providing this report in advance of our meeting to
enable you to consider our findings and hence enhance
the quality of our discussions. This report should be read in
conjunction with our audit plan and strategy report,
presented on the 18t June 2025. We will be pleased to elaborate
on the matters covered in this report when we meet.

How we deliver audit quality

Audit quality is at the core of everything we do at KPMG and we
believe that it is not just about reaching the right opinion, but how
we reach that opinion.

We consider risks to the quality of our audit in our engagement
risk assessment and planning discussions.

We define ‘audit quality’ as being the outcome when:

» Audits are executed consistently, in line with the
requirements and intent of applicable professional standards
within a strong system of quality management; and,

« All of our related activities are undertaken in an environment
of the utmost level of objectivity, independence, ethics and
integrity.

KPMG

We are committed to providing you with a high quality
service. If you have any concerns or are dissatisfied with
any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you should
contact Salma Younis ( ), the
engagement lead to the Authority, who will try to resolve
your complaint. If you are dissatisfied with the response,
please contact the national lead partner for all of KPMG’s
work under our contract with Public Sector Audit
Appointments Limited, Tim Cutler.

( ). After this, if you are still
dissatisfied with how your complaint has been handled
you can access KPMG’s complaints process here:

The engagement team

Subject to the approval of the statement of accounts, we
expect to be in a position to sign our audit opinion on the
approved statement of accounts and auditor’s
representation letter by 27 February 2026, provided that
the outstanding matters noted on page 4 of this report
are satisfactorily resolved.

There have been no significant changes to our audit plan
and strategy other than those described on page 5.

We expect to issue an unmodified Auditor's Report.

We draw your attention to the important notice on page 3
of this report, which explains:

* The purpose of this report

» Limitations on work performed

» Restrictions on distribution of this report
Yours sincerely,

Salma Younis

9 February 2026

© 2026 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organisation of independent member firms
affiliated with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee. All rights reserved.

Contents Page
Introduction 2
Important notice 3
Our audit findings 4
Key changes to our audit plan 5
Significant risks and Other audit risks 6
Audit risks and our audit approach 7-15
Key accounting estimates and management 16
judgement
Group audit scope 18
Other matters 19
Value for money 21-22
Appendix 23-37

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential | 2


mailto:tim.culter@kpmg.co.uk
https://kpmg.com/uk/en/misc/complaints.html

‘-3 KPMG required communications for all entities

Important notice

This report is presented under
the terms of our audit under
Public Sector Audit

Appointments (PSAA) contract..

The content of this report is based solely
on the procedures necessary for our audit.

Purpose of this report

This Report has been prepared in connection
with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of South Kesteven District Council
(the ‘Council), prepared in accordance with
[International Financial Reporting Standards
(‘IFRSs’) as adapted Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2024/25, as at and for the year ended

31 March 2025.

This Report has been prepared for the Council’'s Governance &
Audit Committee, a sub-group of those charged with governance,
in order to communicate matters that are significant to the
responsibility of those charged with oversight of the financial
reporting process as required by ISAs (UK), and other matters
coming to our attention during our audit work that we consider
might be of interest, and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone (beyond that which we may have as
auditors) for this Report, or for the opinions we have formed in
respect of this Report.

Limitations on work performed

This Report is separate from our audit report and does not
provide an additional opinion on the Council’s financial
statements, nor does it add to or extend or alter our duties and
responsibilities as auditors.

affiliated with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee. All rights reserved.

m © 2025 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organisation of independent member firms

We have not designed or performed procedures outside those
required of us as auditors for the purpose of identifying or
communicating any of the matters covered by this Report.

The matters reported are based on the knowledge gained as a result
of being your auditors. We have not verified the accuracy or
completeness of any such information other than in connection with
and to the extent required for the purposes of our audit.

Status of our audit

Our audit is not yet complete and matters communicated in this Report
may change pending signature of our audit report. We will provide an
oral update on the status. Page 4 ‘Our Audit Findings’ outlines the
outstanding matters in relation to the audit. Our conclusions will be
discussed with you before our audit report is signed.

Restrictions on distribution

The report is provided on the basis that it is only for the information of
the Governance & Audit Committee of the Council; that it will not be
quoted or referred to, in whole or in part, without our prior written
consent; and that we accept no responsibility to any third party in
relation to it.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential | K}



ISA required communications for all entities

&

9T

Our audit findings

Significant audit risks Page 6-17

Significant audit risks Our findings

We critically assessed the key underlying assumptions
underpinning the valuation on which the carrying value
of land and buildings is based. We have concluded that
the assumptions used in the valuation of land and
buildings are balanced.

Valuation of land and buildings

We critically assessed the key underlying assumptions
underpinning the valuation on which the carrying value
of investment properties is based. We have concluded
that the assumptions used in the valuation of
investment properties are balanced.

Valuation of investment property

Management override of controls From our testing we have not identified any instances
of management override of control.

Valuation of post retirement No issues identified from the testing over the valuation.

Uncorrected Audit

Misstatements

Understatement/

(overstatement) £000 %
Revenues 0 0
Surplus for the 189 1.47
year

Total assets 0 0
Total taxpayers' equity 189 0.04

Misstatements
in respect of
Disclosures

Page 29-30

Misstatementin  Our findings

DRAFT

Page
Number of Control deficiencies 31-33

Significant control deficiencies 0
Other control deficiencies

Prior year control deficiencies e
remediated

and we have noted no issues.

KPMG

benefit obligations KPMG actuaries have assessed the assumptions used respect of
and concluded these are within our reasonable range. Disclosures
Leases Council as a Lessor -
Other audit risks Page 15 Operating leases note
omitted from first draft
Other audit risks Our findings of the accounts.
Officers’ Identified the need to
IFRS 16 adoption We have performed procedures over IFRS 16 adoption Remuneration disclose Head of HR

salary in note.

Outstanding matters

Our audit is substantially complete,
except for the following outstanding
matters:

» Internal quality review of testing

* Review of updated statement of
accounts

* Receipt of signed management
representation letter

» Finalise audit report and sign

We do not expect any significant changes
to conclusions of the audit however.
Where necessary, we will communicate
these to Governance and Audit
Committee.



DRAFT

Key changes to our audit plan

We have not made any changes to our audit plan as communicated to you on 18 June 2025, other than as follows:

w
]
i
=
£
o
®
S
Lo
)
c
]
8
©
L
c
=
£
£
<)
o
°
o
=
5
3
@
-
(O]
=
o
4

Effect on audit plan Effect on audit strategy and plan
Significant Risk — In our Audit Plan, we communicated that the significant risk for land and | = We have agreed performed an assessment over the obsolescence method
Valuation of Land and buildings valued on a DRC basis was over the BCIS indices assumptions. and useful economic lives of assets and challenged management on judgements
Buildings However, after reviewing valuer calculations and assumptions used, we have made, where necessary.

revised this approach as we do not believe there is a significant risk over BCIS
assumption as these are derived from independent, externally available data
sources. We have identified a significant risk linked to the obsolescence
assumption which is driven by useful economic life and remaining useful | « See page 7-8 which outlines the significant risk, response and findings to explain the
economic life. There is a higher level of estimation uncertainty with these effect of this change.

assumptions that requires valuer judgement.

* We have confirmed that the application of the methods, assumptions and data used
in appropriate and in line with the CIPFA Code.

LT

In our Audit Plan, we communicated that the significant risk for valuation of
Council Dwellings focused on the assumption of beacon groupings. However,
after further consideration of methods, assumptions and data used in the
valuation, we have assessed the application of beacon methodology as
significant due to the high degree of estimation uncertainty. For example, if the
valuer applies the beacon value to the incorrect value beacon group, all assets
within the beacon may be misstated which may lead to material misstatement
depending on the size of the beacon group.




ISA required communications for all entities

&

8T

Significant risks and Other audit risks

We discussed the significant
risks which had the greatest
impact on our audit with you
when we were planning our audit.

Our risk assessment draws upon our
historic knowledge of the business, the
industry and the wider economic
environment in which South Kesteven
District Council operates.

We also use our regular meetings with
senior management to update our
understanding and take input from local
audit teams and internal audit reports.

See the following slides for the cross-
referenced risks identified on this slide.

1. Valuation of land and buildings

2. Valuation of investment property

3. Management override of controls?@

4. Valuation of post retirement benefit
obligations

Other audit risks

Potential impact on financial statements

5.  Adoption of IFRS 16

Key: Significant financial o
9 statement audit risks 9 Other audit risk

High 4

2 A significant risk that auditing standards require us to assess on all audit

engagements. Not always included in the graph except where we have

also identified an entity-specific risk of management override of controls

Low

Likelihood of material misstatement

High



ISA required communications for all entities

&

6T

Auditrisks and our audit approach

Valuation of land and buildings

The carrying amount of revalued Land & Buildings differs materially from the fair value [ [ [ [

Cautious Neutral Optimistic

Significant
auditrisk

Key:

The Code requires that where assets are subject to
revaluation, their year end carrying value should reflect the
appropriate current value at that date. The Code requires that
where assets are subject to revaluation, their year end
carrying value should reflect the appropriate current value at
that date. The Council has adopted a rolling revaluation
model which sees all land and buildings revalued over a five
year cycle, with land and buildings outside the full revaluation
subject to a desktop review.

This creates a risk that the carrying value of assets not
revalued in year differs materially from the year end current
value.

A further risk is presented for those assets that are revalued
in the year, which involves significant judgement and
estimation on behalf of the District Valuer Services (DVS)
which is the specialist property arm of the Valuation Office
Agency (VOA).

Total value of council dwellings and other land and buildings
as at 31 March 2025 was £350.9m and £68.3m respectively.

See page overleaf.

U Prior year . Current year

KPMG

We have performed the following procedures designed to specifically address the significant risk
associated with the valuation:

Our
response-

We critically assessed the independence, objectivity and expertise of District Valuer Services (DVS),
the valuers used in developing the valuation of the Council’s properties at 31 March 2025;

We inspected the instructions issued to the valuers for the valuation of land and buildings to verify
they are appropriate to produce a valuation consistent with the requirements of the CIPFA Code.

We compared the accuracy of the data provided to the valuers for the development of the valuation
to underlying information;

We evaluated the design and implementation of controls in place for management to review the
valuation and the appropriateness of assumptions used;

We challenged the appropriateness of the valuation of land and buildings; including any material
movements from the previous revaluations. We challenged key assumptions within the valuation as
part of our judgement;

We agreed the calculations performed of the movements in value of land and buildings and verified
that these have been accurately accounted for in line with the requirements of the CIPFA Code; and

We considered the adequacy of the disclosures concerning the key judgements and degree of
estimation involved in arriving at the valuation.

DRAFT



ISA required communications for all entities

&

0¢

Auditrisks and our audit approach (cont.)

Valuation of land and buildings (cont.)

Cautious Neutral Optimistic

The carrying amount of revalued Land & Buildings differs materially from the fair value [ [ [. [ [

Significant
auditrisk

Key:

Continued from previous page.

We have focused our significant risk over the obsolescence
and useful economic lives for land and buildings valued on a
DRC basis (specialised assets) and the rental rate & yield
assumptions used for the EUV valuations (non-specialist
assets).

For valuation of Council Dwellings, we have identified a
significant risk over the application of the methods,
assumptions and data.

U Prior year . Current year

KPMG

Our
findings

We concluded that the assumptions used in the valuation of land and buildings are balanced and did
not identify any indications of management bias within the valuations.

Auditing Standards requires auditors to identify a management review control (MRC) where there isa
significant audit risk. There is a significant threshold that needs to be met in order to have a
satisfactory MRC in place — particularly around the precision of the control. We note that although the
Council has processes in place to help ensure that the valuation of land and buildings is based on
best estimate, supported by reasonable assumptions, these processes do not meet the required
threshold of an MRC. We raised this as a recommendation in the prior year - management accepted
the residual risk and no further action was taken. Therefore, we have not re-raised the
recommendation this year.

During 2024/25, management identified several assets that had incorrect floor areas after a review
was performed by the property manager. For example, voids above swimming pools were being
counted as operational floor area. Hence incorrect floor areas had been used by the valuer in their
calculation of the asset valuations. Management performed a wider assessment of their property
portfolio to ensure no similar issues which could give rise to material misstatement in the valuation.
We have reviewed this assessment and we are comfortable that there is no risk of material error as a
result of inaccurate floor areas.

We note that management have also implemented a rolling review programme of floor areas of all
assets.

We did not identify any audit misstatements as a result of the remaining audit procedures performed.

DRAFT



ISA required communications for all entities

&

1%4

Auditrisks and our audit approach

Valuationofinvestment property

The carrying amount of revalued investment property differs materially from the fair value [ [ [. [ [

Cautious Neutral Optimistic

Significant
auditrisk

Key:

The Code defines an investment property as one that is used
solely to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both.
Property that is used to facilitate the delivery of services or
production of goods as well as to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation does not meet the definition of an investment
property. As at 31 March 2025, the value of investment
properties was £12.158m (31 March 2024: £12.785m)

There is a risk that investment properties are not being held
at fair value, as is required by the Code. At each reporting
period, the valuation of the investment property must reflect
market conditions. Significant judgement is required to
assess fair value and management experts are often
engaged to undertake the valuations.

From our risk assessment of the elements within the
valuations estimate we have focused our audit effort in
relation to the significant risk over the income approach
methodology and the yield assumptions.

U Prior year . Current year

KPMG

Our
response

We have performed the following procedures designed to specifically address the significant risk
associated with the valuation:

* We critically assessed the independence, objectivity and expertise of District Valuer Services
(DVS), the valuer used in developing the valuations at 31 March 2025;

We inspected the instructions issued to the valuers to verify they are appropriate to produce a
valuation consistent with the requirements of the CIPFA Code.

*  We compared the accuracy of the data provided to the valuers for the development of the
valuation to underlying information;

*  We evaluated the design and implementation of controls in place for management to review the
valuation and the appropriateness of assumptions used;

» We challenged the appropriateness of the valuation; including any material movements from the
previous revaluations. We challenge key assumptions within the valuation as part of our
judgement;

* We agreed the calculations performed of the movements and verify that these have been
accurately accounted for in line with the requirements of the CIPFA Code; and

* We considered the adequacy of the disclosures concerning the key judgements and degree of
estimation involved in arriving at the valuation.

DRAFT



ISA required communications for all entities

&

44

Auditrisks and our audit approach (cont.)

Valuation of investment property (cont.)

Cautious Neutral Optimistic

The carrying amount of revalued investment property differs materially from the fair value [ [ [. [ [

Significant
auditrisk

Key:

The Code defines an investment property as one that is used
solely to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both.
Property that is used to facilitate the delivery of services or
production of goods as well as to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation does not meet the definition of an investment
property. As at 31 March 2025, the value of investment
properties was £12.158m (31 March 2024: £12.785m)

There is a risk that investment properties are not being held
at fair value, as is required by the Code. At each reporting
period, the valuation of the investment property must reflect
market conditions. Significant judgement is required to
assess fair value and management experts are often
engaged to undertake the valuations.

From our risk assessment of the elements within the
valuations estimate we have focused our significant risk over
the income approach methodology and the vyield
assumptions.

U Prior year . Current year

KPMG

Our
findings

We concluded that the assumptions used in the valuation of investment properties are balanced and
did not identify any indications of management bias within the valuations.

Auditing Standards requires auditors to identify a management review control (MRC) where there is
a significant audit risk. There is a significant threshold that needs to be met in order to have a
satisfactory MRC in place — particularly around the precision of the control. We note that although
the Council has processes in place to help ensure that the valuation of investment properties is
based on best estimate, supported by reasonable assumptions, these processes do not meet the
required threshold of an MRC. We raised this as a recommendation in the prior year - management
accepted the residual risk and no further action was taken. Therefore, we have not re-raised the
recommendation this year.

We did not identify any audit misstatements as a result of the remaining audit procedures performed.

DRAFT



ISA required communications for all entities

&

ec

Auditrisks and our audit approach

Management override of controls®®

Fraud risk related to unpredictable way management override of controls may occur

* Professional standards require us to communicate
the fraud risk from management override of controls
as significant.

Management is in a unique position to perpetrate Uur

fraud because of their ability to manipulate response
accounting records and prepare fraudulent financial

statements by overriding controls that otherwise

appear to be operating effectively.

Significant .
auditrisk

* We have not identified any specific additional risks of
management override relating to this audit.

Note: (a) Significant risk that professional standards require us to assess in all

cases.
Key:

U Prior year . Current year

KPMG

Our audit methodology incorporates the risk of management override as a default significant risk. We
performed the following:

Assessed accounting estimates for biases by evaluating whether judgements and decisions in
making accounting estimates, even if individually reasonable, indicate a possible bias.

Evaluated the selection and application of accounting policies.

In line with our methodology, we have evaluated the design and implementation of controls over
journal entries and post closing adjustments.

Assessed the appropriateness of changes compared to the prior year to the methods and
underlying assumptions used to prepare accounting estimates.

Assessed the business rationale and the appropriateness of the accounting for significant
transactions that are outside the Council’s normal course of business or are otherwise unusual.

We analysed all journals through the year and focus our testing on those with a higher risk, for
example any journals posted by seldom users, on weekends or unusual combinations with revenue
and borrowing accounts.

DRAFT



ISA required communications for all entities

&

144

Auditrisks and our audit approach (cont.)

Management override of controls(cont.)®

Fraud risk related to unpredictable way management override of controls may occur

Significant
auditrisk

Professional standards require us to communicate
the fraud risk from management override of controls
as significant.

Management is in a unique position to perpetrate
fraud because of their ability to manipulate
accounting records and prepare fraudulent financial
statements by overriding controls that otherwise
appear to be operating effectively.

We have not identified any specific additional risks of
management override relating to this audit.

Note: (a) Significant risk that professional standards require us to assess in all

Key:

cases.

U Prior year . Current year

KPMG

Our
findings

Auditing Standards requires auditors to identify a management review control (MRC) where there is
a significant audit risk and we identified a control deficiency in relation to journal posting. There is
no approval process within the finance team and so any person with access to the ledger system
(though this is limited to a subset of the finance team) can create and post journals to the ledger
without the review of any other member within the team. This creates the opportunity for fraudulent
expenditure to be posted to the ledger. We raised this as a recommendation in the prior year -
management accepted the residual risk and no further action was taken. Therefore, we have not re-
raised the recommendation this year.

We identified 14 journal entries and other adjustments meeting our high-risk criteria — our
examination identified 3 journals that were miscoded to the wrong account code but concluded
these were isolated and had no net impact on the reported surplus.

We have not identified any issues in relation to the Council’s accounting policies and accounting
estimates

We evaluated accounting estimates and did not identify any indicators of management bias — see
page 16.

Our procedures did not identify any significant unusual transactions.

DRAFT



ISA required communications for all entities

&

T4

Auditrisks and our audit approach

Valuation of post retirement benefit obligations (cont.)

An inappropriate amount is estimated and recorded for the defined bengfit obligation I I I I

Cautious Neutral Optimistic

Significant
auditrisk

Key:

The valuation of the post retirement benefit obligations
involves the selection of appropriate actuarial assumptions,
most notably the discount rate applied to the scheme
liabilities, inflation rates and mortality rates. The selection of
these assumptions is inherently subjective and small changes
in the assumptions and estimates used to value the Council’s
pension liability could have a significant effect on the financial
position.

The effect of these matters is that, as part of our risk
assessment, we determined that post-retirement benefits
obligation has a high degree of estimation uncertainty. The
financial statements disclose the assumptions used by the
Council in completing the year end valuation of the pension
deficit and the year on year movements.

We have identified this in relation to the following pension
scheme memberships: Local Government Pension Scheme
Also, recent changes to market conditions have meant that
more councils are finding themselves moving into surplus in
their Local Government Pension Scheme (or surpluses have
grown and have become material). The requirements of the
accounting standards on recognition of these surplus are
complicated and requires actuarial involvement.

U Prior year . Current year

KPMG

response

We have performed the following procedures :

Understood the processes the Council have in place to set the assumptions used in the valuation;

Evaluated the competency, objectivity of the actuaries to confirm their qualifications and the basis for
their calculations;

Performed inquiries of the accounting actuaries to assess the methodology and key assumptions made,
including actual figures where estimates have been used by the actuaries, such as the rate of return on
pension fund assets;

Agreed the data provided by the audited entity to the Scheme Administrator for use within the
calculation of the scheme valuation;

Evaluated the design and implementation of controls in place for the Council to determine the
appropriateness of the assumptions used by the actuaries in valuing the liability;

Challenged, with the support of our own actuarial specialists, the key assumptions applied, being the
discount rate, inflation rate and mortality/life expectancy against externally derived data;

Confirmed that the accounting treatment and entries applied by the Group are in line with IFRS and the
CIPFA Code of Practice;

Considered the adequacy of the Council’s disclosures in respect of the sensitivity of the deficit or
surplus to these assumptions;

Where applicable, assessed the level of surplus that should be recognised by the entity;

DRAFT



ISA required communications for all entities

&

9¢

Auditrisks and our audit approach (cont.)

Valuation of post retirement benefit obligations (cont.)

An inappropriate amount is estimated and recorded for the defined bengfit obligation I I .] I

Cautious Neutral Optimistic

Significant
auditrisk

Key:

The valuation of the post-retirement benefit obligations
involves the selection of appropriate actuarial assumptions,
most notably the discount rate applied to the scheme
liabilities, inflation rates and mortality rates. The selection of
these assumptions is inherently subjective and small changes
in the assumptions and estimates used to value the Council’s
pension liability could have a significant effect on the financial
position of the Council.

The effect of these matters is that, as part of our risk
assessment, we determined that post-retirement benefits
obligation has a high degree of estimation uncertainty. The
financial statements disclose the assumptions used by the
Council in completing the year end valuation of the pension
deficit and the year on year movements.

We have identified this in relation to the following pension
scheme memberships: Local Government Pension Scheme
Also, recent changes to market conditions have meant that
more councils are finding themselves moving into surplus in
their Local Government Pension Scheme (or surpluses have
grown and have become material). The requirements of the
accounting standards on recognition of these surplus are
complicated and requires actuarial involvement.

U Prior year . Current year

KPMG

We concluded that controls in place to review the valuation were ineffective. Auditing
standards requires controls to be designed with a certain level of recurrency and precision
which is not part of management’s process. We raised this deficiency in the prior year and
noted that management accepted the residual risk. We have therefore not raised a formal
recommendation for the current year, but note the deficiency remains.

We have assessed the overall assumptions used by management as balanced relative to our
central rates and within our reasonable range. All individual assumptions were assessed as
balanced and within our reasonable range except for CPI inflation which is assessed as
cautious but within our reasonable range.

We have confirmed that the Fund’s appointed actuaries, both individual and firm, hold
appropriate professional qualifications, being Fellows of the Institute of Actuaries, and are
therefore qualified to perform actuarial valuations and prepare IAS19 disclosure reports.

We evaluated the appropriateness of the accounting treatment of the surplus in accordance
with IFRIC 14. We agree with management’s conclusion and the application of the asset
ceiling. Combined with all of the above, we are satisfied with the net liability reported.

We tested key input data used in the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) valuation, including
benefits paid and contributions, no material variance noted.

We have recommended the Council to update the narrative disclosure on Virgin Media case,
where previously it was unclear whether the ruling would apply to LGPS. Following the
publication of draft legislation, we do not now expect the ruling to give rise to any additional
liabilities.

DRAFT



ISA required communications for all entities

&

LZ

Auditrisks and our audit approach

Adoptionof IFRS 16

Cautious Neutral Optimistic
An inappropriate amount is estimated and recorded for lease liabilities and right of use assets I I . I I
The Council adopted IFRS 16 as per CIPFA’s Code of We performed the following procedures in order to respond to the other audit risk identified:
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United + Obtained the full listings of leases and reconciled to the general ledger.
Eg\rﬁdzoon;¥(2024/25) with an implementation date of 1 * Reviewed a sample of the lease agreements to determine the terms of the leases and confirmed

Uther allﬂlt UUT correct classification.
"Sk We anticipate the following impact in the first year of response
implementation.

Reviewed the appropriateness of the discount rate used in the lease computations.
» Reviewed the transition adjustments posted by the Council.

+ Completeness of lease listing used in transition + Reviewed the disclosures made on the financial statements against requirements of IFRS 16.
computations.

* Inadequate lease disclosures as per IFRS 16.

* Inaccurate computation of lease liabilities and right of Our audit findings were as follows:
use assets. *  We confirmed the lease register reconciled back to the general ledger.
« Training needs for new/existing staff *  We confirmed that the lease classification per the register is accurate.

»  We confirmed that the discount rate used is appropriate.

Our
findings

» We did not identify any audit misstatements as a result of the procedures performed.

Key:
U Prior year . Current year

EHZE | 15

DRAFT



ISA required communications for all entities

&

8¢

Key accounting estimates and management judgements-

Overview

Our view of management judgement

Our views on management judgments with respect to accounting estimates are based solely on the work performed in the

context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole. We express no assurance on individual financial statement captions.

Our view of management

Asset/liability class  judgement

Cautious Neutral

Gouncil
Dwellings 08

Other Land &
Buildings 80

Investment 08
Properties

LGPS gross ®
Liahility

Optimistic

Balance
(Em)

390.9
68.3

12.2
112.4

YoY change
(Em)

1.4
2.11

-0.63
-14.4

Cautious Neutral Optimistic

g™

Our view of disclosure of
judgements & estimates

Needs
improvement

Neutral

U
U

Best
practice

Further comments

No issues identified from our testing, the assumptions used
by the Council’s valuer were considered balanced. The year-
on-year change is driven by overall movement of 3.54%
across the Council’s housing portfolio.

No issues identified from our testing, the assumptions used
by the Council’s valuer were considered balanced. The year-
on-year change is driven by additions of £1m and general
increase in valuations.

No issues identified from our testing, the assumptions used
by the Council’s valuer were considered balanced.

We have assessed the overall assumptions used by
management as balanced relative to our central rates and
within our reasonable range (Refer KPMG assessment on
next page). Disclosures are inline with the requirements of
the standard. Only a few presentation recommendations
were sent to management to update narratives.

Key:
U Prior year . Current year

DRAFT



6¢

Level of prudence compared to KPMG central assumptions

Audit misstaterment ' Cautious Balanced Optimistic ' Audit misstaterment

g -

South Kesteven District Council - LGPS participation - IAS 19 as at 31 March 2025

.
Reasonable range

Overall assessment of assumptions for audit consideration

Compliant
methodology
with accounting
standard 7

Consistent
Methodology methodology
to prior year?

Underlying assessment of
individual assumptions

Key

Employer Assessment .
assumptions

Discount rate AA yield curve

2.90% 274% o v’

CPI inflation Deduction to inflation curve

Pension increases In line with CFI 2.90% 2.96%

In line with long-term

N I N N N
N N I N AN

Salary increases Employer best estimate CPI plus 1% remuneration policy
Base tabl In line with most recent Fund 130%/120% of SAPS 53 | In line with Scheme best- v
SSE (SEIES valuation tables for Males/Females estimate

In line with most recent Fund CMI 2023, 1.25% long- | CMI 2023, 1.25% long-term

ﬁ;ﬁ;ﬁemem valuation, updated fo use latest v v term trend rate and trend rate and default other v
CMI model default other parameters parameters
Other demographics In line with mnst_ recent Fund v/ v/ Cash commutation In line wlth Scheme
valuation experience

m © 2026 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organisation of independent member firms Document Classification: KPMG Confidential | 17

affiliated with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee. All rights reserved

DRAFT



0€

Group audit scope

The table below details the group components and level of audit work performed to support the group audit opinion.

South Kesteven District Council (Parent)

LeisureSK Limited

Full audit

Our group risk assessment procedures did not identify a
significant risk attached to the account balances related to this
subsidiary.

Therefore, our audit procedures focused on risk assessment
including a review of the trial balance, testing of cash and
agreeing the consolidation of the subsidiary into the Group
accounts.

DRAFT



ISA required communications for all entities

&

T€

Other matters

Narrative report

We have read the contents of the Narrative Report and checked compliance with the
requirements of the Annual Report and financial statements with the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024/25 (‘the Code’). Based on the work performed:

* We have not identified any inconsistencies between the contents of the Narrative Report and
the financial statements.

* We have not identified any material inconsistencies between the knowledge acquired during
our audit and the statements of the Council. As Governance and Audit Committee members
you confirm that you consider that the Narrative Report and financial statements taken as a
whole are fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for
regulators and other stakeholders to assess the Council’s performance, model and strategy.

Annual Governance Statement

We have reviewed the Council’'s 2024/25 Annual Governance Statement and confirmed that:

» It complies with Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: A Framework published
by CIPFA/SOLACE; and

» ltis not misleading and is consistent with other information we are aware of from our audit of
the financial statements.

Whole of Government Accounts

As required by the National Audit Office (NAO) we carry out specified procedures on the Whole
of Government Accounts (WGA) consolidation pack.

KPMG

We have confirmed that, for South Kesteven District Council, the threshold at which detailed
testing is required has not been exceeded. We have therefore completed our work on the Whole
of Government Accounts and have no issues to report to the Governance and Audit Committee.

We will submit an updated assurance statement on completion of the audit and following review
the final financial statements.

We are aware that we will not be able to issue the Audit Completion certificate until the WGA has
been signed by the National Audit Office so this will continue to be outstanding.

Independence and Objectivity

ISA 260 also requires us to make an annual declaration that we are in a position of sufficient
independence and objectivity to act as your auditors, which we completed at planning and no
further work or matters have arisen since then.

AuditFees

Our scale fee for the 2024/25 audit, as set by PSAA is £165,842 plus VAT (£150,979 in 2023/24).

We have agreed scope variations with management, for IFRS 16 and ISA 600r amounting to
£3,890 and £8,627 relating to delays and quality of evidence submitted for audit. In the prior year,
we agreed a scope variation in relation to ISA315R (£11,790) and in relation to the delays in the
VFM and audit work (£5,830).

We have also completed non audit work at the Council during the year on South Kesteven
District Council on Housing Benefit Grant and Pooling Audits and have included on page 27
confirmation of safeguards that have been put in place to preserve our independence.

DRAFT



01
value for money




€e

Value for Money

We are required under the Audit Code of Practice to confirm whether we
have identified any significant weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
In discharging these responsibilities we include a statement within the opinion on your accounts to
confirm whether we have identified any significant weaknesses. We also prepare a commentary

on your arrangements that is included within our Auditor’s Annual Report, which is required to be
published on your website alongside your annual report and accounts.

Commentary onarrangements

We have prepared our Auditor's Annual Report and a copy of the report is included within the
papers for the Committee alongside this report. The report is required to be published on your
website alongside the publication of the annual report and accounts.

Response torisks of significant weaknesses in
arrangements to secure value formoney

As noted on the right, we have identified one risk of a significant weakness in the Council’s
arrangements to secure value for money. Within our Auditor’'s Annual Report, we have set out our
response to those risks.

We have no recommendations to report.

m © 2026 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organisation of independent member firms

affiliated with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee. All rights reserved

Summary of findings

We have set out in the table below the outcomes from our procedures against each of the
domains of value for money:

Risk assessment

Summary of arrangements

Financial sustainability No significant risks identified No significant weaknesses

identified

Governance No significant weaknesses

identified

Improving economy,

No significant risks identified No significant weaknesses
efficiency and effectiveness identified

Further detail is set out in our Auditor’'s Annual Report.

Performance improvement observations

As part of our work we have identified one Performance Improvement Observation,
which are suggestions for improvement but not responses to identified significant weaknesses —
see page 22.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential | 21

DRAFT



ve

Value for Money: Performance improvement observations

The performance improvement observations raised as a result of our work in respect of identified or potential significant value for money risks in the
current year are as follows:

Priority rating for observations

o Priority one: Observations linked to issues where, if Priority two: Observations linked to issues that have Priority three: Observations linked to issues that
not rectified, these issues might mean that you do not an important effect on internal controls but do not need would, if corrected, improve the internal control in
meet a system objective or reduce (mitigate) a risk. immediate action. You may still meet a system general but are not vital to the overall system. These
objective in full or in part or reduce (mitigate) a risk are generally issues of best practice that we feel would
adequately, but the weakness remains in the system. benefit you if you introduced them.
# Risk Issue, Impact and Recommendation Management Response/Officer/Due Date
1 Accounts preparation Whilst the Council recognises the potential risk in missing the

draft accounts deadline it has meet the statutory back stop dates

In 2023/24 and 2024/25 the draft statement of accounts were not produced in accordance with the reporting deadline. for final accounts alongside having fully audited, unqualified

Recommendation accounts.

We recommend management review the accounts production processes and timetable for 2025/26 to ensure they The 2024/25 closedown was impacted with the changeover in

have necessary capacity to meet the regulatory deadline and reporting timetable. financial systems so difficult decisions were taken in balancing
resource requirements which did impact on draft accounts
publication.

2025/26 will be the first closedown on the new finance system
and with new members of the finance team will bring its
challenges. Management are putting in place additional support
with the system implementation experts to help the team through
this process.

Officer and due date
Assistant Director of Finance
June 2026

DRAFT



Appendix

Contents

Required communications

Fees

Confirmation of Independence
Uncorrected audit misstatements
Corrected audit misstatements
Control Deficiencies

FRC'’s areas of focus

KPMG’s Audit quality framework

000




ISA required communications for all entities

&

o¢

Required communications

Type Response

Our draft management
representation letter

@ We have not requested any specific representations in addition to
those areas normally covered by our standard representation letter
for the year ended 31 March 2025.

Adjusted audit
differences

There was 1 adjusted audit differences with no net impact on the
surplus. See page 30.

Unadjusted audit
differences

The aggregated surplus impact of unadjusted audit differences

@ would be -£189k. In line with ISA 450 we request that you adjust for
these items. However, they will have no effect on the opinion in the
auditor’s report, individually or in aggregate. See page 29

Related parties

@ There were no significant matters that arose during the audit in
connection with the entity's related parties.

Other matters warranting
attention by the Governance
and Audit Committee

There were no matters to report arising from the audit that, in our
@ professional judgment, are significant to the oversight of the
financial reporting process.

Control deficiencies

We communicated to management in writing all deficiencies in
@ internal control over financial reporting of a lesser magnitude than
significant deficiencies identified during the audit. See page 31-33.

Actual or suspected fraud,
noncompliance with laws or
regulations or illegal acts

No actual or suspected fraud involving management, employees
with significant roles in internal control, or where fraud results in a
material misstatement in the financial statements identified during
the audit.

Issue a report in the public
interest

We are required to consider if we should issue a public interest
report on any matters which come to our attention during the audit.
@ We have not identified any such matters.

Type Response

Significant difficulties

@ No significant difficulties were encountered during the audit.

Modifications to auditor’s
report

@ None

Disagreements with
management or scope
limitations

The engagement team had no disagreements with management
@ and no scope limitations were imposed by management during
the audit.

Other information

No material inconsistencies were identified related to other
@ information in the statement of accounts.

Breaches of independence

No matters to report. The engagement team have complied with
@ relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.

Accounting practices

Over the course of our audit, we have evaluated the
appropriateness of the Group’s accounting policies, accounting

@ estimates and financial statement disclosures. In general, we
believe these are appropriate.

Significant matters discussed
or subject to correspondence
with management

There were no significant matters identified.

®

Certify the audit as complete

We will not be able to issue the Audit Completion certificate until
the WGA has been signed by the National Audit Office so this will
continue to be outstanding.

There are no other issues delaying this being issued.

DRAFT



LE

Fees

Auditfee

Our fees for the year ending 31 March 2025 are set out in the PSAA Scale Fees communication
and are shown below.

Entity 2024/25 (£’000) 2023/24 (£°000)
Scale fee as set by PSAA 166 151
Fee variation approved by PSAA - 18
Fee variation for financial statements 13 -

audit agreed with management but
subject to PSAA approval

TOTAL 179 169

Management have agreed scope changes of £3,890 for ISA 600r (Group standard) and IFRS 16
(leases standard) and overruns of £8,627 relating to delays and quality of evidence submitted for
audit.

These will need to go to the PSAA for approval.

Billing arrangements

» Fees have been billed in accordance with the milestone completion phasing that has been
communicated by the PSAA.

DRAFT



8¢

DRAFT

Confirmationof Independence

We confirm that, in our professional judgement, KPMG LLP is independent within the meaning of regulatory and professional requirements and that the

objectivity of the Director and audit staff is not impaired.

» Instilling professional values.

Tothe Governance and Audit Committee members + Communications.

Assessment of our objectivity and independence as auditor of South Kesteven District *  Internal accountability.

Council + Risk management.

Professional ethical standards require us to provide to you at the planning stage of the audit a « Independent reviews.

written disclosure of relationships (including the provision of non-audit services) that bear on o ) o

KPMG LLP’s objectivity and independence, the threats to KPMG LLP’s independence that We are satisfied that our general procedures support our independence and objectivity

these create, any safeguards that have been put in place and why they address such threats, Independence and objectivity considerations relating to the provision of non-audit services
together with any other information necessary to enable KPMG LLP’s objectivity and . .

independence to be assessed. Summary of non-audit services

This letter is intended to comply with this requirement and facilitate a subsequent discussion with Facts and matters related to the provision of non-audit services and the safeguards put in place
you on audit independence and addresses: that bear upon our independence and objectivity, are set out on the table overleaf.

» General procedures to safeguard independence and objectivity;

» Independence and objectivity considerations relating to the provision of non-audit services;
and

* Independence and objectivity considerations relating to other matters.
General procedures to safeguard independence and objectivity

KPMG LLP is committed to being and being seen to be independent. As part of our ethics and
independence policies, all KPMG LLP partners/directors and staff annually confirm their
compliance with our ethics and independence policies and procedures including in particular that
they have no prohibited shareholdings. Our ethics and independence policies and procedures are
fully consistent with the requirements of the FRC Ethical Standard. As a result we have underlying
safeguards in place to maintain independence through:

EHZE | 26



6€

DRAFT

Confirmation of Independence (cont.)

Value of Services Value of Services
Delivered in the year Committed but not yet
Description of scope Principal threats to Basis of ended 31 March 2025 delivered
Disclosure of services Independence Safeguards Applied fee £000 £000
1 Housing Benefit Grant Management » Separate teams Fixed 27.9 -
Certification . .
Self review » Standard language on non-assumption of management

Self interest responsibilities is included in our engagement letter.

« The engagement contract makes clear that we will not
perform any management functions.

* The work is performed after the audit is completed and
the work is not relied on within the audit file.

*  Our work does not involve judgement and are
statements of fact based on agreed upon procedures.

2 Pooling of Local Management * Separate teams Fixed 6 7.2
Authority Housing

Receipts audit Self review « Standard language on non-assumption of management

Self interest responsibilities is included in our engagement letter.

* The engagement contract makes clear that we will not
perform any management functions.

» The work is performed after the audit is completed and
the work is not relied on within the audit file.

*  Our work does not involve judgement and are
statements of fact based on agreed upon procedures.




ov

Confirmation of Independence (cont.)

Summary of fees

We have considered the fees charged by us to the Group and its affiliates for professional services
provided by us during the reporting period.

Feeratio

The ratio of non-audit fees to audit fees for the year is anticipated to be 0.2: 1. We do not consider
that the total non-audit fees create a self-interest threat since the absolute level of fees is not
significant to our firm as a whole.

2024/25

£000
Total audit fee (including fee variations) 179
Other Assurance Services 34
Total Fees 213

Application of the FRC Ethical Standard 2019

Your previous auditors will have communicated to you the effect of the application of the FRC
Ethical Standard 2019. That standard became effective for the first period commencing on or after
15 March 2020, except for the restrictions on non-audit and additional services that became
effective immediately at that date, subject to grandfathering provisions.

AGN 01 states that when the auditor provides non-audit services, the total fees for such services to
the audited entity and its controlled entities in any one year should not exceed 70% of the total fee for
all audit work carried out in respect of the audited entity and its controlled entities for that year.

We confirm that as at 15 March 2020 we were not providing any non-audit or additional services
that required to be grandfathered.

KPMG

Independence and objectivity considerations relating
toother matters

There are no other matters that, in our professional judgment, bear on our independence which
need to be disclosed to the Audit and Risk Committee.

Confirmation of auditindependence

We confirm that as of the date of this letter, in our professional judgment, KPMG LLP is
independent within the meaning of regulatory and professional requirements and the objectivity of
the partner and audit staff is not impaired.

This report is intended solely for the information of the Audit and Risk Committee of the Group and
should not be used for any other purposes.

We would be very happy to discuss the matters identified above (or any other matters relating to
our objectivity and independence) should you wish to do so.

Yours faithfully
KPMG LLP

DRAFT



ISA required communications for all entities

&

144

Uncorrected audit misstatements

Under UK auditing standards (ISA (UK) 260) we are required to provide the Governance & Audit Committee with a summary of uncorrected audit differences (including disclosure misstatements)
identified during the course of our audit, other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’, which are not reflected in the financial statements. In line with ISA (UK) 450 we request that you correct uncorrected
misstatements. However, they will have no effect on the opinion in our auditor’s report, individually or in aggregate. As communicated previously with the Governance & Audit Committee, details of all
adjustments greater than £90K are shown below:

Uncorrected audit misstatements (£’000s)

No. Detail CIES Dr/(cr) Balance Sheet Dr/(cr) Comments

1 Dr Other service expenses 189 - We have identified 1 item of expenditure recorded in April 2025 which relate to 2024/25 and were
Cr Creditors i 189 incorrectly not accrued for.

2 Dr Cash - 144 Debtors balances not cleared to reflect cash in transit as at 31 March 2025.
Cr Debtors - 144

Total 189 189

DRAFT



ISA required communications for all entities

&

[AY4

Corrected audit misstatements

Under UK auditing standards (ISA (UK) 260) we are required to provide the Governance & Audit Committee with a summary of corrected audit differences (including disclosures) identified during the
course of our audit. The adjustments below have been included in the financial statements.

Corrected audit misstatements (£’000s)

No. Detail SOCI Dr/(cr) SOFP Dr/(cr) Comments
1 Dr Long-term Capital Grants - 1,754 Classification error between long- and short-term liabilities, £1.754m moved from long-term
Receipts in Advance i (1,754) liabilities to short term, no net impact.

Cr Short-term Capital Grants
Receipts in Advance

Total £0 £0

Disclosure adjustments:

* Pension Audit Adjustments - Small number of presentational disclosure changes relating to defined benefit pension scheme disclosures

» Officers’ Remuneration — Various presentational adjustments including the Head of HR to be added into the senior officer note following the permanent appointment of the role. Other adjustments
were required to main table and the banding table.

» Leases — Council as a Lessor — Operating leases — Note was omitted from the first draft of accounts

» Narrative Report - Various presentational adjustments

DRAFT



ISA required communications for all entities

Gontrol Deficiencies

The recommendations raised as a result of our work in the current year are as follows:

Priority rating for recommendations

o Priority one: issues that are fundamental and material to Priority two: issues that have an important effect on 9 Priority three: issues that would, if corrected, improve the
your system of internal control. We believe that these internal controls but do not need immediate action. You internal control in general but are not vital to the overall
issues might mean that you do not meet a system may still meet a system objective in full or in part or system. These are generally issues of best practice that
objective or reduce (mitigate) a risk. reduce (mitigate) a risk adequately but the weakness we feel would benefit you if you introduced them.

remains in the system.

&

ey

# Risk

' ®

Issue, Impact and Recommendation Management Response/Officer/Due Date

Incorrect floor area measurements on DRC Assets Council Officers identified the issue regarding floor plans and pro-actively commissioned
work to undertake the required assessments to ensure accurate plans were in place. A

During 2024/25, management identified a number of assets that had incorrect floor plans rolling programme is in place for all assets.

due to voids above swimming pools being counted as operational floor area, for example.
Management performed a wider assessment of their property portfolio to ensure no similar ~ Officer and due date

issues which could rise to material misstatement of the valuation. Head of Property Services & ICT / Senior Financial Accountant

There is a risk that the incorrect floor area measurements lead to incorrect valuation of PPE.
March 2026

Recommendation

We note that management have performed an analysis to identify any assets as mentioned
above and have implemented a rolling review programme of floor areas of all assets. We
recommend management continue review floor areas in line with assets to ensure
measurements are accurate.

DRAFT



ISA required communications for all entities

&

14%

Gontrol Deficiencies

DRAFT

# Risk Issue, Impact and Recommendation Management Response/Officer/Due Date

2 Approval process of sale of employee annual leave entitlement The Pay Policy Statement for 2026/27 includes a specific reference regarding the
We identified transactions which related to the sale of senior officer annual leave Eirrc():?.lenf:tar:?::as employees  selling their annual leave entitiement in - exceptional
entitlement. At the time of our audit work, there was no formal policy in place which outlined '
the required approval process in place for this type of request. This updated policy was approved by Council at their meeting on 29th January 2026.
There is a risk of not having appropriate governance and oversight in relation to Officer and due date
remuneration / leave requests relating to senior postholders. Senior HR Officer
Recommendation Completed
We recommend management review their pay policy to ensure processes to be followed are
clear in the scenario of an employee selling their annual leave entitlement in exceptional
circumstances.

3 Quality of evidence and project management The finance team have worked closely with audit colleagues to work through evidence

We encountered various delays during the audit due to insufficient evidence being provided
for sample selected for testing, as well as delays due to Council staffing constraints.

This led to audit delays and inefficiencies as additional time was required to obtain sufficient
appropriate evidence.

Recommendation

We have proposed to hold a de-brief session with key members of the finance team to
improve understanding of what the external audit involves, and the criteria to apply when
providing audit evidence to support account balances.

requirements in a timely manner as much as possible to ensure the statutory backstop
date is achieved.

During the audit work there have been some delays regarding certain audit requests
involving key members of staff across the organisation as a whole, which we are aware
of and will be working closely with those teams to avoid this in the future.

The council is committed to continuous improvement and working with KPMG so would
welcome the opportunity to hold a lessons learnt debrief as we move into the 2025/26
closedown process.

Officer and due date
Assistant Director of Finance

March 2026




ISA required communications for all entities

&

114

Control Deficiencies (cont.)

We have also followed up the recommendations from the previous years audit, in summary:

Total number of recommendations Number of recommendations implemented Number outstanding (repeated below):

4 3 1

# Risk Issue, Impact and Recommendation Management Response/Officer/Due Date Current Status (February 2026)

1 9 Review of bank reconciliations Management accept this recommendation and will ensure The recommendation was not implemented by 31 March
We h " d Ikth h of the bank iliati all monthly bank reconciliations with be reviewed and 2025, but following the move to Unit 4 the Council have

€ have periormed a walkinrough of the bank reconciiation approved by a senior officer. put in place a sign off process for bank reconcliliations

process and have identified that the monthly reconciliation is since August 2025
performed by the Senior Systems Accountant within the Officer: s151 Officer '
exchequer team. Given his seniority within the team, there is We will review this as part of the 2025/26 audit.

no appropriate personnel within the team to review the Due Date: March 2025

reconciliation he has performed.

The reconciliation was therefore reviewed by the deputy
director of Finance when necessary and therefore the review is
not performed each month.

We recommend that reconciliations are reviewed each month
by an appropriately senior reviewer

DRAFT



w
]
i
=
£
o
®
S
Lo
)
c
]
8
©
L
c
=
£
£
<)
o
°
o
=
5
3
@
-
(O]
=
o
4

o

FRC'S
areas of
focus

The FRC released their Annual
Review of Corporate Reporting
2024/25 (the ‘Review’) in
September 2025 which also
incorporated the outcomes of
two limited scope thematics (the
‘thematics’).

The Review and thematics
identify where the FRC believes
companies can improve their
reporting. These slides give a
high-level summary of the key
topics covered. We encourage
management and those charged
with governance to read further
on those areas which are
significant to their entity.

v =
v

/

Overview

The Review identifies that the quality of reporting across FTSE 350
companies has been maintained however, there remains a quality gap
between FTSE 350 and other companies.. The FRC continue to focus
on proportionality and materiality in their work and fewer substantive
queries and restatements have been identified in the current year.

For the 2025/26 reporting season, the reporting areas the FRC believe
companies should focus on remain consistent with recent years, given
stable reporting requirements and recurring themes.

The FRC’s top three focus areas remain consistent with the previous
period including ‘Impairment of assets’, ‘Cash Flow Statements’ and
‘Financial Instruments’. The FRC also note that the lack of internal
consistency within the annual report and accounts continues to be a key
driver of queries.

Pre-issuance checks and restatements

The FRC expects companies to have in place a sufficiently robust self-
review process to identify common technical compliance issues. Fewer
queries would also be raised if there were clear, company-specific
accounting policies for these key accounting matters.

The reviewer should take a step back and consider whether the annual
report tells a consistent and coherent story throughout the narrative
reporting and financial statements.

Key expectations for 2025/26 annual reports

Risks and uncertainties

Geopolitical and economic risks remain high and, in this context, the
FRC continue to push for clear and consistent disclosures about
judgements, risks and uncertainties. Disclosures should be sufficient
to allow users to understand the position taken in the financial
statements, and how this position has been impacted by the wider
risks and uncertainties discussed elsewhere in the annual report.

Narrative reporting

The FRC reminds preparers to consider the overarching requirements
of the UK financial reporting framework in determining the information
to be presented, particularly in relation to narrative reporting.
Companies should focus on the requirement for a true and fair view,
along with a fair, balanced, and comprehensive review of the
company’s development, position, performance, and future prospects.

The FRC does not expect companies to provide information that is not
relevant and material to users, however, they should ensure that they
carefully comply with all applicable requirements, including climate-
related reporting requirements.

Companies should also consider including disclosures beyond the
specific requirements of the accounting standards where this is
necessary to enable users to understand the impact of particular
transactions or other events and conditions on the entities financial
position, performance and cash flows.

DRAFT



)
2
=
=}

=
]
©
S
Lo
")
=
o
2
©
L
=
=
=
=
o
o
-]
[
=
5
o
o
S
(O]
=
o
X

LY

FRC's areas of focus (cont.)

Impairment of assets

Impairment remains a key topic for
the FRC. There have been no
restatements in the current year, but
many disclosures have been
identified as requiring improvement.

Disclosures should provide
adequate information about key
inputs and assumptions, and these
should be consistent with events,
operations and risks

noted elsewhere in the annual
report and accounts (the ‘ARA’).
These should be supported by a
reasonably possible sensitivity
analysis as required.

Forecasts should reflect the asset in
its current condition when using a
value in use approach and forecasts
should not extend beyond five years
without explanation.

Preparers should also ensure that
goodwill is allocated to a monitored
CGU or group of CGUs that is no
larger than an operating segment.

Cashflow
statements

Cash flow statements remain the
most common cause of prior year
restatements.

Companies must carefully consider
the classification of cash flows and
whether cash and cash equivalents
meet the definitions and criteria in
the standard. The FRC encourage a
clear disclosure of the rationale for
the treatment of cash flows for key
transactions.

Cash flow netting is a frequent
cause of restatements, and this was
highlighted in the previous
‘Offsetting in the financial
statements’ thematic. Further,
materially dissimilar classes of cash
flows (e.g. purchases of tangible vs.
intangible assets) should be
presented separately.

Preparers should ensure the
descriptions and amounts of cash
flows are consistent with those
reported elsewhere and that non-
cash transactions are excluded but
reported elsewhere if material.

The number of queries on this topic
remains high, with inappropriate
application of offsetting
requirements resulting in all
identified restatements.

Companies are reminded that cash
and overdraft balances should only
be offset when they meet the
qualifying criteria, including the
intention to settle net or realise

assets and liabilities simultaneously.

Companies should ensure sufficient
explanation is provided of material
financial instruments, including
company-specific accounting
policies.

Disclosures on risks should show
the nature and extent of material
risks, including credit risk, arising
from financial instruments and the
related risk management.

Expected credit loss provisions
should explain the significant
assumptions applied, including
concentrations of risk where
material.

Presentation

Companies should provide clear,
company-specific material accounting
policy information so users can
understand unusual or complex
transactions. Information on these
transactions should be consistent with
information elsewhere in the ARA.

Common restatement areas such as the
classification of receivables as current or
non-current, or the presentation of
material financial asset impairment
losses on the face of the income
statement, should be identified by a
thorough self-review.

Revenue

Questions raised in this area focussed
on the clarity of the accounting policy
and significant judgement disclosures.

For each material revenue stream, the
accounting policy should cover the timing
of revenue recognition, the basis for
recognising revenue over time and the
methodology. If the application of the
accounting standards required significant
judgement, this should also be disclosed.

Strategic report and

Companies Act

The Strategic report must provide an
unbiased discussion of all aspects of a
company’s development, position,
performance and future prospects. In the
case of a quoted company there should
also be a clear description of it’s strategy
and business model.

Companies should ensure they comply
with all the statutory requirements for
making distributions.

Disclosures over judgements and
estimates are particularly important
during periods of economic and
geopolitical uncertainty. Disclosures
should include sufficient, appropriate
detail and be written in simple language.
Sensitivities or ranges of possible
outcomes should be provided to allow
users to understand these judgement
and estimates.

Areas of estimation uncertainty with a
significant risk of a material adjustment
within one year should be distinguished
from other estimates.

| 35

DRAFT


https://media.frc.org.uk/documents/Thematic_Review_on_Offsetting_in_the_financial_statements_W8voeL6.pdf
https://media.frc.org.uk/documents/Thematic_Review_on_Offsetting_in_the_financial_statements_W8voeL6.pdf

)
2
=
=}

=
]
©
S
Lo
")
=
o
2
©
L
=
=
=
=
o
o
-]
[
=
5
o
o
S
(O]
=
o
X

8v

FRC's areas of focus (cont.)

Income taxes

Evidence supporting the recognition of deferred tax assets
should be disclosed in sufficient detail and be consistent
with information reported elsewhere in the ARA.

Where applicable, the effect of Pillar Two income taxes
should be disclosed.

Consolidated financial statements

Disclosures of the factors affecting control judgements
should be consistent with other disclosures in the ARA.
The disclosure must meet the requirements of IFRS 10.

Climate

Compliance with Taskforce for Climate-related Financial
Disclosures (TCFD) has improved. The FRC reviewed
compliance with Companies Act 2006 Climate-related
Financial Disclosures (UK-CFD) for the first time this
period. As a result, companies are reminded that UK-CFD
disclosures are mandatory and cannot be ‘explained’ or
included in another document.

Disclosures should focus only on material climate-related
information and should be concise and company specific.
The impact of material climate factors should also be
addressed within the financial statements.

KPMG

Thematicreviews

The FRC has issued five thematic reviews this year. ‘Climate-related Financial Disclosures by AIM and Large Private Companies’ was issued
in January 2025 and is considered further on slide [X]. The key findings of the other thematics are outlined below. The FRC expect to issue a
further thematic on ‘Reporting by the UK’s smaller listed companies’ before the end of 2025.

Supplier finance arrangement disclosures
The key recommendations from this limited-scope review are:

* Provide high quality disclosures on the use of supply-chain
financing (SCF) proportionate to the risks faced.

 Explain how SCF impacts liabilities and cash flows disclosing
any judgements if relevant.

* Describe how SCF impacts liquidity risk and how liquidity risk
is managed.

Review of disclosures of a pension accounting surplus

Pension surplus disclosures may be of heightened interest if

proposed changes to employer’s access to surpluses go ahead.

This review identified divergent practice in whether to recognise
an asset when pension scheme trustees have the right to
enhance benefits or wind up the scheme without the company’s
consent. Companies should:

* Clearly describe the basis on which the surplus is recognised
(or restricted) including the impact of any trustees power.

 Consider whether disclosures around the technical funding
position would be helpful to users’ understanding of the
amounts recognised in the financial statements and future
contributions.

* Describe the nature and scale of bulk annuity policies or
insurance transactions and the accounting treatment applied.

Share-based payments

This thematic focussed on listed companies with significant share-based
payment (SBP) arrangements. Companies are encouraged to:

* Clearly explain the valuation technique used and assumptions made, in
determining the fair value of instruments granted.

* Disclose the accounting policy and judgements regarding the choice of
settlement, including the implications of any cash-settlement.

» Provide material disclosures which are clear and concise, cross-
referencing and aggregating to avoid duplication.

* Assess if excess tax deductions have been recognised directly in equity.
 Consider the effect of group arrangements on individual companies and
distributable reserves.
Investment trusts, venture capital trusts and similar closed-ended
entities

The accounting for these entities is typically straightforward, however this
thematic asks these entities to:

» Explain valuation techniques and provide sufficient meaningful
disclosures on unobservable inputs to level 3 measurements e.g.
weighted averages when the range of inputs is wide.

* Disclose sensitivities for level 3 measurements, when required.

» Ensure that APMs are appropriately used, reconciled to the nearest
GAAP measure or otherwise explained.

« Clearly explain the basis for significant judgements on whether the
IFRS 10 investment entity definition is met.

| 36



0
w
o
X
=)
o

c
©
0
2
B
s
c
5
-
@
3
2
=
o
")
c
5
g
©
L
c
5
=
=
5}
o
-
@
=
=]
=3
@
S
<
(2]
‘Ob

6

KPMG's Audit quality framework

Audit quality is at the core of everything we do at KPMG and we believe that it is not just about reaching the right opinion, but how we reach that opinion.

To ensure that every director and employee concentrates on the fundamental skills and behaviours required to deliver an appropriate and independent opinion, we have developed our global Audit
Quality Framework.

Responsibility for quality starts at the top through our governance structures as the UK Board is supported by the Audit Oversight (and Risk) Committee, and accountability is reinforced through the
complete chain of command in all our teams.

B Commitment to continuous improvement

Comprehensive effective monitoring processes

Significant investment in technology to achieve consistency and enhance audits

Obtain feedback from key stakeholders

Evaluate and appropriately respond to feedback and findings

Il Performance of effective & efficient audits

Professional judgement and scepticism
Direction, supervision and review

Ongoing mentoring and on the job coaching, including
the second line of defence model

Critical assessment of audit evidence
Appropriately supported and documented conclusions
Insightful, open and honest two way communications

Commitment to technical excellence & quality
service delivery

Technical training and support

Accreditation and licensing

Access to specialist networks

Consultation processes

Business understanding and industry knowledge
Capacity to deliver valued insights

KPMG

Association with
the right entities

Commitment

to technical

excellence & quality
service delivery

v

A

Association with the right entities
» Select clients within risk tolerance
* Manage audit responses to risk

* Robust client and engagement acceptance and
continuance processes

»  Client portfolio management

Clear standards & robust audit tools
*  KPMG Audit and Risk Management Manuals
* Audit technology tools, templates and guidance

*  KPMG Clara incorporating monitoring capabilities
at engagement level

* Independence policies

Recruitment, development & assignment
of appropriately qualified personnel
* Recruitment, promotion, retention

» Development of core competencies, skills and
personal qualities

* Recognition and reward for quality work
» Capacity and resource management

* Assignment of team members employed KPMG
specialists and specific team members

| 37

DRAFT



¥ in O

kpmg.com/uk

© 2026 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organisation of independent member firms affiliated
with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential


https://twitter.com/kpmguk
https://www.linkedin.com/company/1080
https://www.youtube.com/user/KPMGUK

Auditor's Annual Report for
South Kesteven District
Council

9 Wwal| epuaby



S

Contents

Key Contacts

Salma Younis
Director
salma.younis@KPMG.co.uk

Robert Fenton
Senior Manager
robert.fenton@kpmg.co.uk

Ellie Andrews
Assistant Manager
ellie.andrews1@kpmg.co.uk

DRAFT
Page
01 Executive Summary 4
02 Audit of the Financial Statements 7
03 Value for Money 11
a) Financial Sustainability 13
b) Governance 15
¢) Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness 18

Our audit report is made solely to the members of South Kesteven District Council (‘the Council’), as a body, in
accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the members of the Council, as a body, those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditor’s report and for no other purpose.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Council
and the members of Council, as a body, for our audit work, for our auditor’s report, for this Auditor’'s Annual
Report, or for the opinions we have formed.

External auditors do not act as a substitute for the Council’s own responsibility for putting in place proper
arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and
that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

affiliated with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee. All rights reserved

m © 2026 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organisation of independent member firms Document Classification: KPMG Public | 2



01
EXecutive

summary




124°]

South Kesteven District Council

Executive Summary

Purpose of the Auditor’s Annual Report

DRAFT
Findings

This Auditor’'s Annual Report provides a summary of the findings and key issues arising from our 2024-  We have set out below a summary of the conclusions that we provided in respect of our
25 audit of South Kesteven District Council (the ‘Council’). This report has been prepared in line with responsibilities.
the requirements set out in the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office (the ‘Code

of Audit Practice’) and is required to be published by the Council alongside the annual report and
accounts.

Financial We issued an unmodified opinion on the Council’s financial statements
statements and on [Date]. This means that we believe the financial statements give a
G ETELTIRELI true and fair view of the financial performance and position of the

Our responsibilities Council.

The statutory responsibilities and powers of appointed auditors are set out in the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 (the Act). Our responsibilities under the Act, the Code of Audit Practice and
International Standards on Auditing (UK) (‘ISAs (UK)’) include the following:

(o] TR i {oTi Ui}l \We did not identify any material inconsistencies between the content of
the other information, the financial statements and our knowledge of
the Council

Financial Statements - To provide an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Council and of its income and expenditure
during the year and have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2024/25 (‘the CIPFA Code’).

VEINER TR L EVYA We identified no significant weaknesses in respect of the arrangements
the Council has put in place to secure economy, efficiency, and
effectiveness in the use of its resources. Further details are set out on
page 11.

Other information (such as the narrative statement - To consider, whether based on our
audit work, the other information in the Statement of Accounts is materially misstated or

Whole of
Government
Accounts

We are required to perform procedures and report to the National Audit
Office in respect of the Council’s consolidation return to HM Treasury in

O § 0 =

inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit knowledge of the Council.

Value for money - To report if we have identified any significant weaknesses in the
arrangements that have been made by the Council to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources. We are also required to provide a summary of our
findings in the commentary in this report.

Other powers - We may exercise other powers we have under the Act. These include
issuing a Public Interest Report, issuing statutory recommendations, issuing an Advisory

Notice, applying for a judicial review, or applying to the courts to have an item of expenditure

declared unlawful.

In addition to the above, we respond to any valid objections received from electors.

P

order to prepare the Whole of Government Accounts.

As the National Audit Office has not yet informed us that we are not
required to perform any further procedures, we are unable to confirm
that we have concluded our work in this area.

See overleaf.

Other powers




GS

South Kesteven District Council

Executive Summary

There are several actions we can take as part of our wider powers under the Act:

Publicinterestreports

We may issue a Public Interest Report if we believe there are
matters that should be brought to the attention of the public.

If we issue a Public Interest Report, the Council is required to
consider it and to bring it to the attention of the public.

We have not issued a Public Interest Report this year.

Judicial review/Declaration by the courts

We may apply to the courts for a judicial review in relation to
an action the Council is taking. We may also apply to the
courts for a declaration that an item of expenditure the Council
has incurred is unlawful.

We have not applied to the courts.

Recommendations

We can make recommendations to the Council. These fall into

two categories:

1.  We can make a statutory recommendation under
Schedule 7 of the Act. If we do this, the Council must
consider the matter at a general meeting and notify us of
the action it intends to take (if any). We also send a copy

of this recommendation to the relevant Secretary of State.

2. We can also make other recommendations. If we do this,
the Council does not need to take any action, however,
should the Council provide us with a response, we will
include it within this report.

We have not raised any other recommendations.

DRAFT

Advisory notice

We may issue an advisory notice if we believe that the Council
has, or is about to, incur an unlawful item of expenditure or
has, or is about to, take a course of action which may result in
a significant loss or deficiency.

If we issue an advisory notice, the Council is required to stop
the course of action for 21 days, consider the notice at a
general meeting, and then notify us of the action it intends to
take and why.

We have not issued an advisory notice this year.

In addition to these powers, we can make performance improvement observations to make helpful suggestions to the Council. Where we raise observations we report these to management and the
Governance & Audit Committee. The Council is not required to take any action to these, however it is good practice to do so and we included any responses that the Council has given us in the Audit

Plan presented at the June 2025 Governance and Audit Committee.

KPMG



02
Auditof the

financial
statements




LS

South Kesteven District Council

Audit of the financial statements

KPMG provides an independent opinion on whether the Council’s financial statements:

DRAFT

» Give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council as at 31 March 2025 and of its income and expenditure for the year then ended; and
» Have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024/25.

We conduct our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and applicable law. We also fulfil our ethical responsibilities under, and ensure we are independent of the

Council in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard. We are required to ensure that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our
opinion.

Our audit opinion on the financial statements
We have issued an unqualified opinion on the Council financial statements on [Date].

The full audit report is included in the Council’s Annual Report and Accounts for 2024/25 which can be obtained from the Council’s website.

Further information on our audit of the financial statements is set out overleaf.



8G

South Kesteven District Council

Audit of the financial statements: Gouncil

The table below summarises the key financial statement audit risks that we identified as part of our risk assessment and how we responded to these
through our audit.

Valuation of land and buildings Valuation ofinvestment properties

The carrying amount of revalued land and buildings differs materially from the fair value The carrying amount of revalued investment property differs materially from the fair value

Our procedures Our procedures

We critically assessed the independence, objectivity and expertise of the internal valuers; We critically assessed the independence, objectivity and expertise of the internal valuers;
We inspected the instructions issued to the valuers for the valuation of land and buildings to We inspected the instructions issued to the valuers for the valuation of land and buildings to
verify they are appropriate to produce a valuation consistent with the requirements of the CIPFA verify they are appropriate to produce a valuation consistent with the requirements of the
Code. CIPFA Code.

We compared the accuracy of the data provided to the valuers for the development of the We compared the accuracy of the data provided to the valuers for the development of the
valuation to underlying information; valuation to underlying information;

We evaluated the design and implementation of controls in place for management to review the We evaluated the design and implementation of controls in place for management to review
valuation and the appropriateness of assumptions used; the valuation and the appropriateness of assumptions used;

We challenged the appropriateness of the valuation of land and buildings; including any material We challenged the appropriateness of the valuation of land and buildings; including any
movements from the previous revaluations and challenge of key assumptions; material movements from the previous revaluations and challenge of key assumptions;

We discussed with our own valuation specialists to review the valuation report prepared by the We discussed with our own valuation specialists to review the valuation report prepared by
Council’s valuers to confirm the appropriateness of the methodology utilised; and the Council’s valuers to confirm the appropriateness of the methodology utilised; and
Disclosures: We considered the adequacy of the disclosures concerning the key judgements and Disclosures: We considered the adequacy of the disclosures concerning the key judgements
degree of estimation involved in arriving at the valuation and degree of estimation involved in arriving at the valuation

Our findings Our findings

We completed the procedures as described and we did not identify any material misstatements We completed the procedures as described and we did not identify any material

relating to this area. misstatements relating to this area.

EHZE | 8



6S

South Kesteven District Council

Audit of the financial statements: Gouncil

DRAFT

Management override of controls Valuation of post-retirement benefit obligations

Fraud risk related to unpredictable way management override of controls may occur An inappropriate amount is estimated and recorded for the defined benefit obligation

Our procedures Our procedures

We assessed accounting estimates for biases by evaluating whether judgements and decisions We obtained an understanding of the pensions process for setting and approving the
in making accounting estimates, even if individually reasonable, indicate a possible bias. assumptions used in the DBO valuation;
We evaluated the selection and application of accounting policies. We assessed Management’s controls that ensure the appropriateness of actuarial

In line with our methodology, we evaluated the design and implementation of controls over assumptions for the preparation of the DBO accounting estimate;

journal entries and post closing adjustments. We evaluated the competency, objectivity of the Fund actuaries and confirmed their

. . lificati i i ions;
We assessed the appropriateness of changes compared to the prior year to the methods and qualifications and the basis for their calculations

underlying assumptions used to prepare accounting estimates. We performed inquiries of the Fund actuaries to assess the methodology and key

We assessed the business rationale and the appropriateness of the accounting for significant assumptions used

transactions that are outside the Council’s normal course of business or are otherwise unusual. We challenged, with the support of KPMG pensions actuarial specialists, the key
assumptions applied, the discount rate, inflation rate and mortality/life expectancy against

We analysed all journals through the year using data and analytics and focus our testing on externally derived data:

those with a higher risk, such as unusual combinations with revenue and cash accounts.
We vouched data provided by the audited entity to the Fund Administrator for use within the
DBO accounting estimate calculation; and

We confirmed that the pensions disclosures adopted by the Council are in line with IAS19
and the SORP.

Our findings Our findings
We completed the procedures as described and we did not identify any material misstatements We completed the procedures as described and we did not identify any material
relating to this area. misstatements relating to this area

EHZE |9



02
value for Money




19

South Kesteven District Council

Value for Money

Introduction

We are required to be satisfied that the Council has made proper arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources or ‘value for money’. We consider
whether there are sufficient arrangements in place for the Council for the following criteria, as
defined by the Code of Audit Practice:

Financial sustainability: How the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure

=
(o) it can continue to deliver its services.

m Governance: How the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly

= manages its risks.

o) Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: How the Council uses
{c3 information about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and
delivers its services

We do not act as a substitute for the Council’s own responsibility for putting in place proper
arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper
standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used
economically, efficiently and effectively. We are also not required to consider whether all aspects
of the Council’s arrangements are operating effectively, or whether the Council has achieved
value for money during the year.

Approach

We undertake risk assessment procedures in order to assess whether there are any risks that
value for money is not being achieved. This is prepared by considering the findings from other
regulators and auditors, records from the organisation and performing procedures to assess the
design of key systems at the organisation that give assurance over value for money.

Where a significant risk is identified we perform further procedures in order to consider whether
there are significant weaknesses in the processes in place to achieve value for money.

KPMG

DRAFT

We are required to report a summary of the work undertaken and the conclusions reached against
each of the aforementioned reporting criteria in this Auditor's Annual Report. We do this as part of
our commentary on VFM arrangements over the following pages.

We also make recommendations where we identify weaknesses in arrangements or other matters
that require attention from the Council.

Summary of findings

Our work in relation to value for money is complete. However, we may make some minor changes
to the commentary prior to issuing the final version of this report.

Financial Governance
sustainability

Improving
economy,

efficiency and
effectiveness

13 15 18

Commentary page
reference

Identified risks of X No v Yes X No
significant
weakness?

Actual significant x No x No x No
weakness
identified?

2023-24 Findings No significant

weakness identified

Direction of travel > = Sk 4

No significant
weakness identified

No significant
weakness identified




29

South Kesteven District Council

Value for Money

National context
We use issues affecting Councils nationally to set the scene for our work. We assess if the issues below apply to this Council.
Local Government Reorganisation

The Government has announced proposals to restructure local government throughout England. County and District councils
(and, in some cases, existing Unitary authorities) will be abolished and replaced with new, larger Unitary authorities, which
will (in many cases) work together with peers in a regional or sub-regional Combined Authority. Authorities which are
unaffected by these proposals may still see changes in local police and fire authorities and in the Councils they already work
in collaboration with.

Restructuring has, in some cases, resulted in differing views on how services should be provided in their regions — with little
consensus on how previously separate organisations will be knitted together. Councils will need to ensure that investment
decisions are in the long-term interest of their regions, and that appropriate governance is in place to support decision
making.

Financial performance

Over recent years, Councils have been expected to do more with less. Central government grants have been reduced, and
the nature of central government support has become more uncertain in timing and amount. This has caused Councils to cut
services and change the way that services are delivered in order to remain financially viable.

Whilst the Government has indicated an intention to restore multi-year funding settlements, giving Councils greater certainty
and ability to make longer-term investment decisions, the Government has also proposed linking grant funding to deprivation.
For some authorities this presents a significant funding opportunity, whereas for others this reinforces existing financial
sustainability concerns and creates new financial planning uncertainties.

Housing

Landlords, including Councils, are required to take action to ensure homes are compliant with fire safety legislation and new
regulations to improve building safety. These regulations have increased the costs faced by landlords, caused loss of income
where properties were void for repairs, and increased the risk of regulatory action should improvements not be made. The
Regulator of Social Housing has also raised frequent concerns regarding the ability of Councils to comply with their consumer
standards, in particular around treating tenants fairly and ensuring homes are safe. This has increased the cost of
compliance, whilst housing budgets remain under significant financial strain. At the same time, Councils are also experiencing
significant financial pressure in temporary accommodation budgets, due to high demands on services and difficulty in
obtaining suitable accommodation.

KPMG

Local context

South Kesteven District Council employs more than 500 staff and
manages a combined revenue and capital budget exceeding £100m.
The Council delivers services across four main areas: Corporate,
Governance and Public Protection; Finance, Property and Waste;
Growth and Culture; and Housing and Projects.

The Council met its 2024/25 financial plan without drawing on the
Budget Stabilisation reserve, supported by higher investment income
and lower-than-expected fuel and utility costs. The Council maintains a
healthy level of general fund reserves, helping to safeguard its financial
position throughout the year.

Looking ahead to 2025/26, the Council expects cost and demand
pressures to continue. Nevertheless, it aims to achieve a balanced
budget without using the Budget Stabilisation reserve but requiring
savings of £1.1m across 2025/26 and 2026/27.

At the end of March 2025, the General Fund reported a surplus of
£1.1m, with reserves totalling £26.7m. The Housing Revenue Account
recorded a surplus of £5.8m, with reserves of £8.8m.

Under its Capital Plan (including HRA), the Council spent £36.5m
against an adjusted budget of £41.6 million, resulting in an underspend
of £5.1m, mainly due to project delays.

No adverse findings from inspectorates have been reported during the
year.

The Council submitted its proposal for LGR in November which
included support for two new council areas, resulting in North Kesteven,
South Kesteven and South Holland combining as one council and East
and West Lindsey, Boston and Lincoln in the other.

A public consultation was launched in February 2026 and will last until
the 26t March 2026.

| 12



€9

South Kesteven District Council

Financial Sustainability

How the Council plans and manages its
resources to ensure it can continue to deliver
its services.

We have considered the following in our work:

How the Council ensures that it identifies all the significant
financial pressures that are relevant to its short and
medium-term plans and builds these into them;

How the Council plans to bridge its funding gaps and
identifies achievable savings;

How the Council plans finances to support the sustainable
delivery of services in accordance with strategic and
statutory priorities;

How the Council ensures that its financial plan is
consistent with other plans such as workforce, capital,
investment, and other operational planning which may
include working with other local public bodies as part of a
wider system; and

How the Council identifies and manages risks to financial
resilience, e.g. unplanned changes in demand, including
challenge of the assumptions underlying its plans.

DRAFT
2024/25 Outturn

In February 2024, the Council approved a general fund revenue budget for the financial year 2024/25 of £19.744m, a balanced
budget without planned use of the Budget Stabilisation Reserve.

Overall, there was an underspend on the General Fund of £1.1m. Key factors contributing to this positive outcome included additional
planning fee (£303k) and car parking (£182k) income, underspends on fuel cost (£350k), as well as improved investment income
(£444k) due to higher interest rates. At year-end, the Council’'s General Fund reserves remained above the stated prudent minimum.

We note that the Council has continued to underspend against its capital plan (excluding HRA) through 2024/25 due to phasing of the
work, for example on the new depot project. The year end underspend was £3.424m. This has led to planned capital budget being
carried forward into 2025/26. Capital performance has been reported to Cabinet and Finance and Economic Overview and Scrutiny
committee through the year.

Process of identifying cost pressures

A comprehensive timetable is established by both the Executive and Council to facilitate robust scrutiny and challenge throughout
each stage. Initial budgets are developed at the service level, with budget holders estimating requirements based on their directorate
knowledge and regular planning meetings. These proposals are then submitted to the Finance team, who reviews and challenges
underlying assumptions. Finance conducts a detailed analysis of individual budget lines, examining trends over the previous three
years and discussing these with budget holders to identify early pressures or potential savings.

Identified savings are incorporated into the financial plan. Discussions with the Finance team and service areas confirm that
demographic and inflationary pressures for each directorate are considered during the initial budget preparation. Prior to finalising
budgets, communications are held to enable review and challenge of assumptions. The Budget Joint Overview and Scrutiny
Committee provides cross-party oversight and challenge of both the budget and its proposals.

For 2024/25, the Council’s budget did not require any savings to be delivered. Savings plans are typically developed as part of the
wider budget setting process and are subject to the same level of scrutiny, challenge, and approval as the overall budget. Throughout
the year, actions are identified where financial performance risks arise within individual services. While savings are not reported
separately, significant in-year savings—such as those resulting from the corporate restructure—are detailed in reports on budget
variances. This reflects the effectiveness of the Council’s financial management arrangements.



¥9

South Kesteven District Council

2025/26 planning

Within the medium-term financial plan, the Council has identified outstanding savings targets for 2025/26 and 2026/27. According to
the Corporate Plan to 2028, a total savings requirement of £1.1m has been set. The objectives of the Corporate Plan, including major
capital projects, are incorporated into the budget setting process to ensure alignment.

The Council’s Risk Management Policy outlines a clear process and reporting structure for managing risks. Key risks to financial
sustainability have been identified, including potential future deficits, ongoing inflationary pressures, and the need for borrowing to
fund capital projects. Mitigating actions include regular monitoring of overspends and sensitivity analysis to assess worst-case
inflation scenarios. The Council also continues to develop savings plans and is modelling the impact of any future borrowing.

Leisure SK Ltd

The Council continues to provide support to its wholly owned subsidiary, Leisure SK Ltd. During 2023/24, LeisureSK operated at a
deficit due to increased staffing costs, higher utility expenses, and issues related to irrecoverable VAT. For 2024/25, management
prepared a budget that included an increased management fee of £450k from the Council. As a condition set by the Culture and
Leisure Overview and Scrutiny Committee, LeisureSK was required to submit a recovery and mitigation plan to demonstrate that the
management fee would be sufficient to maintain the company’s cashflow. This plan was received and approved in September 2024.

In response to LeisureSK’s financial difficulties, the Committee also reviewed options for a new contract and recommended to
Cabinet that LeisureSK continue to deliver services under an agency model to help stabilise its finances. Cabinet approved this
recommendation in September 2024, and the new contract took effect on 1 April 2025.

Conclusion

We have not identified a significant weakness associated with the arrangements in place to secure financial sustainability.

DRAFT
Key financial and 2023-24
performance metrics:
Planned £0k £0k (using
surplus/(deficit), £1,534k reserves)
excluding HRA
Actual £1.1m £1.3m
surplus/(deficit),
excluding HRA
Planned HRA surplus £7.0m £3.1m
Actual HRA £5.8m £5.7m
surplus/(deficit)
Usable reserves £66.9m £75.9m
Gross debt compared 0.67:1 (CFR 0.82:1
to the capital £100m) (CFR: £101m)
financing requirement
Year-end borrowings £79.8m £83m
Year-end cash £11.8m £18.3m
position

HRA: Housing Revenue Account, a ring-fenced fund relating to
social housing

Gross debt compared to the capital financing requirement:
Authorities are expected to have less debt than the capital
financing requirement (i.e. a ratio of under 1 : 1) except in the
short term, else borrowing levels may not be considered prudent.



G9

South Kesteven District Council

Governance

How the Council ensures that it makes
informed decisions and properly manages its
risks.

We have considered the following in our work:

how the Council monitors and assesses risk and how the
body gains assurance over the effective operation of
internal controls, including arrangements to prevent and
detect fraud;

how the Council approaches and carries out its annual
budget setting process;

how the Council ensures effective processes and systems
are in place to ensure budgetary control; to communicate
relevant, accurate and timely management information
(including non-financial information where appropriate);
supports its statutory financial reporting requirements; and
ensures corrective action is taken where needed, including
in relation to significant partnerships;

how the Council ensures it makes properly informed
decisions, supported by appropriate evidence and allowing
for challenge and transparency; and

how the Council monitors and ensures appropriate
standards, such as meeting legislative/regulatory
requirements and standards in terms of management or
Board members’ behaviour.

KPMG

DRAFT

Risk Management

Risks are managed in accordance with the Council’s Risk Management Strategy, which distinguishes between Strategic, Service, and
Project levels. Each level is subject to regular review by register owners, the Corporate Management Team (CMT), Heads of Service,
and the Governance and Risk Officer. Risks are assessed using a matrix that evaluates both likelihood and impact, resulting in a risk
score assigned according to the strategy’s guidance. Officer involvement through project boards provides additional challenge, and
the Risk Management Group offers further support when needed.

The Strategic risk register is submitted to the Governance and Audit Committee twice annually for review. As of 31 March 2025, the
register included 15 risks: 12 rated as high (almost certain/critical) and 3 as medium (probable/major). Actions to address risks are
developed using the risk management framework and evaluated using the Treat, Tolerate, Transfer, Terminate matrix, depending on
severity and likelihood. Ongoing monitoring is carried out by project management teams or boards. When the register is reported to
the Governance and Audit Committee, members are invited to provide feedback, which is then shared with CMT and Cabinet. For all
key decisions, committee reports are required to clearly outline the principal risks associated with the proposed actions

Prevention and detection of fraud

The Council undertake several measures to prevent and detect fraud. There is a Counter Fraud policy and strategy which complies
with the requirements of the Code, this sets out key actions for the Council to ensure compliance. We note a review is currently
underway of the policy and strategy. The Council also receives assurance through the work of internal audit, and all staff are required
to complete the e-learning on fraud which is held centrally. An annual fraud report is presented to the Governance and Audit
Committee including the counter fraud action plan and fraud risk register.

Budget Setting

The budget setting process is a rolling process as part of the medium-term financial plan, this usually starts in the autumn of the
previous year. For 2025/26, the preparation of the budget began in October 2024 with draft budgets approved in January 2025. A
detailed timetable is agreed by Executive and Council to ensure appropriate scrutiny and challenge can occur throughout the process

The 2025/26 budget was approved by Council on 27 February 2025 which set out a three-year position detailing the funding
challenges alongside the changes to the national funding arrangements. The most significant medium-term pressure reflected in the
Medium-Term Financial Strategy is the anticipated business rate reset.



99

South Kesteven District Council

Governance

How the Council ensures that it makes
informed decisions and properly manages its
risks.

We have considered the following in our work:

how the Council monitors and assesses risk and how the
body gains assurance over the effective operation of
internal controls, including arrangements to prevent and
detect fraud;

how the Council approaches and carries out its annual
budget setting process;

how the Council ensures effective processes and systems
are in place to ensure budgetary control; to communicate
relevant, accurate and timely management information
(including non-financial information where appropriate);
supports its statutory financial reporting requirements; and
ensures corrective action is taken where needed, including
in relation to significant partnerships;

how the Council ensures it makes properly informed
decisions, supported by appropriate evidence and allowing
for challenge and transparency; and

how the Council monitors and ensures appropriate
standards, such as meeting legislative/regulatory
requirements and standards in terms of management or
Board members’ behaviour.

KPMG

DRAFT

Financial performance is reported quarterly to the Finance and Economic Overview and Scrutiny Committee before being presented
to Cabinet. Forecasts are developed collaboratively with budget holders, using year-to-date performance and commitments to inform
projections. The Finance team meets with budget holders to agree forecast outturns, which are then confirmed with Directors and
detailed in quarterly monitoring reports.

Informed Decision making

We also reviewed key decisions made by the Council during the year to assess the effectiveness of governance arrangements.
Decision-making is subject to discussion and scrutiny at the executive team level and relevant sub-committees, such as Governance
and Audit and Overview and Scrutiny, followed by formal Council approval. All records of key decisions are available on the Council’s
website.

A notable decision during the year was the sale of land at St Martin’s Park. Following options appraisal in 2023/24, the Council
approved the sale to address the financial shortfall and in October 2024, sales contracts had been exchanged, committing developers
to the scheme at prices agreed by the Council. As at 31 March 2025, landowners and developers were continuing to work through the
next stage of the planning process for the individual part of the development and an overall scheme to deliver joint infrastructure
works on the site.

The Council also made important decisions regarding the implementation of a new Finance system. Initially planned for April 2024,
the rollout was postponed to April 2025 due to changes in key finance staff and the need for specialist support to reduce risks. It was
considered safer to introduce the new system at the start of a financial year. The Council extended the licence for its existing system,
with the additional cost included in the 2024/25 budget.

In February 2025, the Council further delayed the ‘go live’ date to July 2025, following additional changes in finance team personnel
and to avoid higher costs from specialist support. This delay also allowed the finance team to better manage year-end close and
accounts preparation. We will consider the project management and implementation of the new system as part of the VFM
assessment in 2025/26.

The Government introduced amendments to the Accounts and Audit Regulations which required the Authority to publish its unaudited
2024/25 Statement of Accounts and accompanying information on or before 30 June 2025. The Authority missed this deadline and
published unaudited 2024/25 Statement of Accounts on 7t October 2025. By not publishing the unaudited Statement of Accounts by
the required deadline, the Authority has breached its laws and regulations. As a result, we identified a risk of significant weakness
over governance on the Authority’s Preparation and Publication of the Statement of Accounts. The authority also missed this deadline
in the prior year.

| 16



L9

South Kesteven District Council

Governance

There have been changes in senior finance staffing during 2024/25, including the departure of the
Interim Deputy Director of Finance in February 2025, who was replaced by a permanent
appointment. These changes, alongside the upgrade to the financial ledger system contributed to
the delay. Whilst there are mitigating circumstances for the delay in 2024/25 accounts production,
management must ensure appropriate arrangements are in place to ensure timely publication and
preparation for the audit in 2025/26. This is particularly important as the audit backstop deadline
for 2025/26 is January 2027, compared to February 2026 for 2024/25 audited accounts.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Monitoring Officer oversees compliance with all relevant legal requirements. All Executive
reports undergo mandatory consultation with the Chief Executive, Section 151 Officer, and
Monitoring Officer, and, where necessary, are supported by Equality Impact Assessments.
Management has confirmed that there were no breaches of legislation or regulatory standards
resulting in investigations by any legal or regulatory body during the year.

We note the Monitoring Officer left in April 2025 with interim arrangements put in place for several
months. Following a comprehensive recruitment exercise a permanent Monitoring Officer was
appointed and approved by Council on 18" September 2025. We will consider this further in the
VEM risk assessment for 2025/26.

DRAFT

The Council’s Code of Conduct sets out the values and expected behaviours for staff and Council
members, as detailed in the Code of Conduct and Disciplinary Policy. This is communicated
during recruitment and is accessible via the staff intranet. The policy also covers requirements for
gifts, hospitality, and the register of interests. Additional policies are available on the Council’s
website, along with the Constitution, which outlines committee terms of reference and key officer
responsibilities.

During our review, we noted an increase in member complaints under the Code of Conduct policy
in 2023/24. These complaints required initial investigation by officers, and in several cases, the
Council engaged independent legal experts to complete investigations. In 2024/25, this led to
additional legal costs of approximately £70k, and the high volume of complaints required
significant senior officer time.

Conclusion

Whilst we identified a risk regarding the Council not meeting the draft accounts production
deadline, we are satisfied this does not amount to a significant weakness in arrangements over
governance at the Council.

2024-25 2023-24

Control deficiencies reported in the Annual Governance Statement
Head of Internal Audit Opinion
Local Government Ombudsman findings

Housing Ombudsman findings

None None
Moderate Assurance Adequate and Effective
None None

None None




89

South Kesteven District Council

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness

How the Council uses information about its
costs and performance to improve the way it
manages and delivers its services

We have considered the following in our work:

* how financial and performance information has been used
to assess performance to identify areas for improvement;

* how the Council evaluates the services it provides to
assess performance and identify areas for improvement;

» how the Council ensures it delivers its role within
significant partnerships and engages with stakeholders it
has identified, in order to assess whether it is meeting its
objectives; and

» where the Council commissions or procures services, how
it assesses whether it is realising the expected benefits.

DRAFT

Financial and performance monitoring

The Council reviews its corporate performance measures as part of the three-year Corporate Plan through a target setting process.
The process is co-ordinated by the Corporate Management team, with input from all directorates. Target setting incorporates
benchmarking, assessment of local conditions, and national indicators/reporting requirements.

The Council’s performance framework is driven by the Corporate Plan priorities: Healthy & Strong Communities, Growth & Our
economy and High Performing Council. We reviewed the quarter two performance report, which evidenced monitoring of actions split
across the different Overview and Scrutiny Committees. The Finance and Economic committee had 20 actions. Of those actions with
updates, 12 actions were on target and 2 were below target. The below target actions related to the delay in the implementation of the
new finance system and ensuring all contract awards under £25k are fully compliant with procurement policy.

The Finance and Economic Overview and Scrutiny committee also reviews financial performance on a quarterly basis and this covers
key services, helping to identify any services off target and what actions are being taken to address/mitigate the financial risks.
Quarterly reports are also presented to the Cabinet.

Our review of the Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund internal audit report (moderate assurance rating) identified the need to
strengthen arrangements for performance monitoring of KPIs and recording lessons learnt with the contractor. We are satisfied
management have appropriate arrangements in place to respond to the recommendations identified.

We note that the Council takes part in national benchmarking exercises but does not routinely use benchmarking in reviewing
performance. The Council does have processes in place to support it in using information about costs, through financial monitoring,
and performance to improve the way services are managed and delivered, with a focus on the level of value for money being
achieved. This is reported quarterly through Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Cabinet.

Partnership working

The Council has a number of key partnerships to help deliver support and services, such as the Building Control Partnership with
Newark and Sherwood District Council and Rushcliffe Borough Council, where a partnership agreement is in place and performance
is monitored through this arrangement. The Council also has a collaboration agreement in place with Burghley Land Ltd in relation to
the land at St Martin’s park. There is a partnership policy that details the governance framework for partnership working and all
partnerships are recorded in the partnerships register held by Governance team. Monitoring is performed via reporting through
relevant Overview and Scrutiny committees.



69

South Kesteven District Council

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness

The Council engages with key stakeholders to help develop the Council as an organisation. There
have been numerous consultation with the public around Community Governance in year and
council tax and rate payers were consulted on proposed changes. In preparing the Council’s
Corporate Plan, residents are encouraged to comment on the Council’s priorities, for example in
relation to sustainability. Response rates are published in the plan and the 2024/25 narrative
report to the accounts.

The Council has appropriate arrangements in place to deal with residents’ complaints, Freedom
Of Information requests, Subject Access Requests, data breaches and whistleblowing allegations.
The Council also engages with other local partners such as Legal Services Lincolnshire,
Lincolnshire Police, Lincolnshire County Council. We note there has been no outsourcing of
services in year.

We note that in response to the Government White Paper on Local Government Reorganisation,
the Council examined several options within its submission after working with neighbouring District
Councils. The Council submitted its proposal in November 2025 which included support for two
new council areas; with North Kesteven, South Kesteven and South Holland combining as one;
and East and West Lindsey, Boston and Lincoln in the other. A public consultation was launched
in February 2026 and will last until 26t March 2026, with a final decision expected by July.

Conclusion

We have not identified a significant weakness associated with the Council’s arrangements in
relation to improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

DRAFT



0L

Significant Value for Money Risk

DRAFT

Governance on the Authority's Preparation and Publication of the Statement of Accounts

Risk that value for money arrangements may contain a significant weakness linked to Governance

Significant Value forMoney Risk

The Government introduced amendments to the Accounts and
Audit Regulations which required the Authority to publish its
unaudited 2024/25 Statement of Accounts and accompanying

information on or before 30 June 2025. The Authority missed this

deadline and published the unaudited 2024/25 Statement of
Accounts on 7th October 2025.

By not publishing the unaudited Statement of Accounts by the
required deadline, the Authority has breached a statutory
requirement.

There is a risk management do not have appropriate
arrangements in place to prepare and publish their accounts in
line with the required timetable.

Ourresponse

We have inquired with management as to their preparedness
for the 2025/26 audit cycle and suggested they produce a
paper to outline the proposed timetable and any risks to this
timetable. This is particularly important as the audit backstop
deadline for 2025/26 accounts is January 2027, compared to
February 2026 for 2024/25 audited accounts.

Our findings

Findings

In May 2025, management confirmed there was a risk that it
may not issue its statement of accounts by 30 June 2025.
This was reported in our Audit Plan that was presented at the
June 2025 Governance and Audit Committee We are
therefore satisfied this does constitute a significant weakness
in arrangements over preparation and publication of the
financial statements.

However, we recommend members are made aware of any
risks, if any, to the timetable for 2025/26. This has been
raised as a performance improvement observation.

Conclusion

Based on the findings above we have not identified any
significant weaknesses in arrangement.



¥ in @

kpmg.com/uk

© 2025 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organisation of independent member firms affiliated
with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Public


https://twitter.com/kpmguk
https://www.linkedin.com/company/1080
https://www.youtube.com/user/KPMGUK

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

SOUTH
KESTEVEN
DISTRICT
COUNCIL

Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance
Statement 2024/25

Report Author

David Scott, Assistant Director of Finance/Deputy Section 151 Officer

X David.Scott@southkesteven.gov.uk
Purpose of Report

To approve the Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement for 2024/25.

Recommendations

It is recommended that the Governance and Audit Committee:

1. Notes the outcome of the audit work undertaken by the Council’s external
auditors KPMG.

2. Delegates authority to the Deputy Chief Executive and s151 Officer (Chief
Finance Officer) to make any final wording changes and accounting
adjustments following the conclusion of any outstanding audit queries.

3. Delegates approval of the audited Statement of Accounts and the Letter of
Representation to the Chairman on behalf of the Governance and Audit
Committee in consultation with the Deputy Chief Executive and s151
Officer (Chief Finance Officer) following the completion of the audit of the
2024/25 Statement of Accounts.

Decision Information

Does the report contain any exempt or
confidential information not for publication?
What are the relevant corporate priorities?  All

Which wards are impacted? All Wards

73



1. Implications

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and
governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding,
staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s
declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been
identified:

Finance and Procurement

1.1 The financial considerations are contained in the report and the Statement of
Accounts for 2024/25.

Completed by: Richard Wyles, Deputy Chief Executive and s151 Officer

Legal and Governance

1.2  In accordance with the Accounts & Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2022 the
target date for the Statement of Accounts to be approved by the Governance and
Audit Committee is 27t February 2026.

Completed by: James Welbourne, Democratic Services Manager

2. Background to the Report

2.1 The draft Statement of Accounts 2024/25 was published on 7 October 2025. The
external audit process has now been completed and the Statement of Accounts
has been updated to reflect the changes identified by the Finance Team and those
agreed with our external auditors, KPMG.

2.2 The issues with delays to local government audits are well documented and have
affected the whole sector. The Government introduced back stop dates to try and
create a resolution for those authorities with significant backlogs.

2.3 The back stop deadline for completion of the audit of 2024/25 Statement of
Accounts is 27 February 2026. The completion of the Statements has meant that
the Council has met the statutory deadline which is a positive achievement.

74



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Key Considerations
Audit of the Accounts

To comply with the provisions of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, the
Council’'s Statement of Accounts for 2024/25 must be approved by the designated
member body, which for the Council is the Governance and Audit Committee.

The external auditor (KPMG) must complete their audit and issue the relevant
audit opinion. KPMG'’s draft report (ISA260) is a separate item on this Governance
and Audit Committee agenda. The purpose of the external audit of the financial
statements is to give an opinion on:

e whether they present a true and fair view of the financial position of the
audited body and its expenditure and income for the year in question.

¢ whether they have been prepared properly in accordance with relevant
legislation and applicable accounting standards.

Auditors must provide reasonable assurance that, subject to the concept of
materiality, the financial statements:

o are free from material misstatements, whether caused by fraud or other
irregularity or error.

e comply with the statutory and other requirements applicable to the accounts of
the audited body and

e comply with all relevant requirements for accounting presentation and
disclosure.

Letter of Representation

As part of the overall assurance provided to External Audit a letter of
representation is supplied. This is presented at Appendix B. These are largely
standard clauses to confirm the Council has fully disclosed all relevant
information and acted with due care and reference to the relevant accounting
practices in preparing the statements.

Annual Governance Statement

The Annual Governance Statement has to be published alongside the Statement
of Accounts, although it does not form part of them. The Annual Governance
Statement was endorsed by the Governance and Audit Committee on 23 July
2025.

75



3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

The Annual Governance Statement is reviewed by External Audit to ensure it is
consistent with their knowledge of the Council and is in line with guidance around
compilation and presentation.

There are no substantive amendments in terms of identification of further
significant governance issues.

Statement of Accounts

The ‘Narrative Report’ section of the Statement of Accounts provides a guide to
the most significant matters reported. It explains the Council’s financial position
and assists in the interpretation of the accounting statements. It provides
information about the District, including; issues and challenges affecting the
Council and its accounts, the political composition, the ambitions of the Council
and an overview of the many achievements that have been made to improve
quality of life for residents, businesses and visitors.

The draft Statement of Accounts was published on 7 October 2025. In addition to
a small number of presentational changes, the Statement of Accounts has been
amended to reflect the changes identified as listed in Table 1.

Table 1 — Audit Adjustments 2024/25

Page | Note Description

4 Balance | Capital Grants Receipts in Advance. £1.754m Future High
Sheet Street Funding has been moved to current liabilities because
the expiry date of the funding is within one year of the balance
sheet date.

14 13 Various presentational adjustments including adding directors’
full titles and adding the Head of HR to the note to comply
with disclosure requirements.

36 31 Operating leases disclosure added in which were omitted
from the original draft in error.

These changes have been incorporated into the final Statements that are shown
at Appendix A.

As part of the audit work one uncorrected item identified. An accrual of £189K
(1.47% of total surplus for 2024/25) was missed due to the close proximity to Year
End and not highlighted by the service area to the finance team. It was agreed
with audit that this would remain unadjusted as it was below our materiality
threshold of £1.7m.

76



4.1

5.1

6.1

71
7.2

Other Options Considered

Governance and Audit Committee could choose not to approve the Statement of
Accounts but this would result in the Council missing the statutory backstop
deadline for completion of the 2024/25 audit of 27 February 2026.

Reasons for the Recommendations

Section 21(2) of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the Statement of
Accounts to be prepared in accordance with the statutory framework established
by the Accounts and Audit Regulations (England) 2015. In accordance with the
Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2022 once the accounts have been
audited, they must be published.

Consultation

The draft accounts were published on the Council’s website on 7 October 2025
following which there was a statutory 30 working day consultation period.

Appendices

Appendix A — 2024/25 Statement of Accounts
Appendix B — Letter of Representation

77



This page is intentionally left blank



Statement

of accounts

2024/25

SOUTH
KESTEVEN
DISTRICT
COUNCIL




CONTENTS

Page Numbers

Narrative Statement iv

Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts 1

Core Financial Statements

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 2
Movement in Reserves Statement 3
Balance Sheet 4
Cash Flow Statement 5
Notes to the Core Financial Statements 6
Notes to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 8
Notes to the Movement in Reserves Statement 17
Notes to the Balance Sheet 20
Notes to the Cash Flow Statement 51
Other Disclosure Notes 53

Supplementary Accounting Statements

Housing Revenue Account 55
Collection Fund Account 62
Statement of Group Accounts 65
Accounting Policies 7
Glossary of Terms 83
Auditor’s Report 87
Annual Governance Statement 94

South Kesteven District Council

80



Notes to the Accounts

Note

1. Accounting Standards that have been issued but not adopted
2. Critical Judgements in applying Accounting Policies

3. Assumption made about the future and other major sources of

uncertainty

Events after the reporting period

Prior Period Adjustments

Expenditure and Funding Analysis

Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis

Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature

Precepts and Levies

Income and Expenditure and Movement in Fair Value of Investment
Properties

. Non-Service Related Government Grants
. GrantIncome

Officer Remuneration

. Termination Benefits

Members Allowances
Joint Operations

. Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis Under

Statute
Property, Plant and Equipment
Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing

. Capital Commitments
. Heritage Assets

. Investment Properties
. Intangible Assets

Financial Instruments

. Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments
. Debtors

. Assets Held for Sale

. Cash and Cash Equivalents

. Borrowing

. Creditors

. Leases

. Provisions

. Defined Benefit Pension Scheme

Usable Reserves

. Unusable Reserves
. Cash flow Statement — Operating Activities

Cash flow Statement — Investing Activities

. Cash flow Statement — Financing Activities
. Interest in other Companies and Entities

. External Audit Costs

. Related Parties

. Authorisation of Accounts for Issue

Notes to the HRA

Note

1. Housing Stock

2. Land, Houses and Other Property
3. HRA Revaluation Loss

4. Major Repairs Reserve

South Kesteven District Council

81

Page Number

Page Number
57
58
59
59



o o

8.

Financing Capital Expenditure
Capital Receipts

Analysis of Reconciling Items in Movement on the Housing
Revenue Account Statement

Rent Arrears

Notes to the Collection Fund

Note
1. Council Tax
2. Business Rates

3.

Precepts and Demands

Group Accounts

Group Movement in Reserves Statement

Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Group Balance Sheet

Group Cash Flow Statement

Note

G1. Cash and Cash Equivalents
G2. Cashflow

South Kesteven District Council

82

60
60

61
61

Page Number
63
63
64

Page Number

66
67
68
60

70
70



Narrative Statement

Introduction

The Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2025 has been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA).

The Statement of Accounts provides information to enable members of the public, Councillors,
partners, stakeholders and other interested parties to:

o Understand the financial position and outturn for 2024/25
o Have confidence that public money has been accounted for in an appropriate manner
o Be assured that the financial position of the Council is sound and secure

The Narrative report provides information about the District, including issues and challenges
affecting the Council and it's accounts, the political make up, the ambitions of the Council and an
overview of the many achievements that have been made to improve the quality of life of our
residents, businesses and visitors.

Information about the Council
Political Structure

The Council has 30 Wards represented by 56 Members. The political composition of the Council
is currently: 19 Conservatives, 9 Democratic Independents, 8 Grantham Independents, 5
Independents, 3 Liberal Democrats, 3 Reform UK, 3 South Kesteven Independents, 2 Green
Party and 2 Labour and Co-operative and 2 Independent (unaligned).

The Leader of the Council is Councillor Ashley Baxter (Independent Group) who was voted in
by a majority of Council members at Full Council in January 2024. Therefore, although the
Conservative Group is the largest group on the Council, the Cabinet is selected by the Leader
of the Council and contains members from the Democratic Independent Group (2), The
Independent Group (3), one member from the Grantham Independents and one Independent
Unaligned member. The main opposition group is the Conservative Group.

The Council operates with a Cabinet structure, six Overview and Scrutiny Committees and a
Governance and Audit Committee responsible for corporate governance and approval of the
Statement of Accounts. There is also an Alcohol, Entertainment and Late-Night Refreshment
Licensing Committee, Employment Committee, Licensing Committee, Planning Committee and
Standards Committee.

The Cabinet is chaired by the Leader of the Council with each member of the Cabinet being
allocated a portfolio, or area of the Council’s business, through the Leader's Scheme of
Delegation. The Cabinet has executive decision-making powers and meets monthly.

In line with legislation and the Constitution, a number of areas of decision making are the
responsibility of the Cabinet and senior officers, with Council retaining ultimate responsibility for
the Policy and Budgetary Framework of the Council. All Council public meetings can be viewed
live online which can be accessed via details on each agenda pack.

South Kesteven District Council

83



About the District
South Kesteven is a largely rural district located in the south-west corner of Lincolnshire incorporating

the four distinctive market towns of Grantham, Stamford, Bourne and The Deepings and over 80 rural
villages.

A_District in

South Kesteven

ftarmisia {0k

mmimEE in M e
£3.202 994.5kt CO2e
billion This sepsaces 14 .03 Lo

[ LR

South Kesteven District Council

84



Services Provided by the Council

SKDC has a reputation of being an outward looking Council that is keen to engage and partner
with external organisations and stakeholders. It provides a range of services to the population
of approximately 155,821 residents which includes:

J Providing a comprehensive arts and leisure offer

o Providing high quality street scene services

o Providing high quality grounds maintenance.

o Providing high quality leisure centre services through its wholly owned company —
LeisureSK Ltd

J Providing Customer and Community Access Hubs

J Supporting residents manage their bills by providing housing benefit and council tax
support

o Landlord services for approximately 5,840 social rented properties which
includes the provision of a repairs and maintenance service for all the Council properties.

o Providing homelessness support to those most in need

J Considering and administering Planning and Building Control applications

o Managing car parks and public conveniences

o Compiling and maintaining the electoral register and administering elections

The Council also provides services which support these operational functions including Human
Resources, Financial Services, Legal Services, Democratic Services and Communications.

Financial Environment

The 2025/26 budget was approved by Council on 27 February 2025 which set out a three-
year position detailing the funding challenges alongside the changes to the national funding
arrangements. Whilst this covers a 3-year Medium Term Financial Plan, it is within the
context of a single year financial settlement for 2025/26 and therefore there is a high degree
of financial uncertainty for the latter two financial years. The two forecast years (2026/27 and
2027/28) assumed changes in funding levels as a result of national changes to the funding
formula. The Government confirmed their Fair Funding Review 2.0 will take effect for
2026/27 settlement alongside a business rate reset.

Whilst the budget is balanced for 2025/26, the future years shows potential deficits which will
require prudent financial planning to try and address the future financial challenges. Based
on the current modelling around the impact of the government changes in funding levels it
remains highly unlikely that the financial outlook will improve, therefore pressure on funding
at some point in the medium term is anticipated. The Council is therefore not complacent
and is already modelling the sensitivity of future financial pressures, which will enable plans
to be produced to reduce operating expenditure and create financial headroom in order to
meet the challenges ahead.

Governance and Risk

In accordance with the Local Code of Corporate Governance and best practice, the Council’s
Annual Governance Statement (AGS) covers all significant corporate systems, processes and
controls spanning the whole range of the Council’s activities. It provides an overview of the
Council’s key governance systems and explains how they are tested and the assurances that
can be relied on to show that the systems are working effectively. The AGS has been
prepared in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
(CIPFA) Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework and conforms to the
Council’s Local Code of Corporate Governance and covers all significant corporate systems,
processes and controls across all of the Council’s activities.

South Kesteven District Council vi

85



The Council has an effective risk and performance management framework which is embedded
across all areas of business activity. Corporate risks are reported to the Corporate Management
Team and to the Governance and Audit Committee regularly throughout the year. We have focused
performance management arrangements on the Corporate Plan actions which enables effective
monitoring, control and reporting across the programmes of activity and also supports managers and
lead officers with training and project management tools, techniques and performance management
advice.

In accordance with the Local Government Transparency Code, we publish how we spend our money,
how we use our assets, how we make decisions and have regard to issues important to local people.

2024/25 was the first year of the new internal audit contract with BDO LLP, who act as the Council’s
internal Auditors supporting the Governance and Audit Committee, in providing an opinion to the
Council, on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system to ensure the achievement
of the organisation’s objectives in the areas reviewed. In their annual report they provided the
following opinion which was:

A Moderate Assurance that there is a sound system of internal controls, designed to meet the
Council’s objectives, and that controls are being applied consistently across various services.

The statement of assurance confirms that based on the evidence of the audits conducted, there are
no signs of material weaknesses in the framework of control. In making that assessment, account
has been taken of the overall opinion levels and number of recommendations for improvements from
the 7 assurance audits undertaken which are summarised in Table 1 below:

Table 1 — Summary of Internal Audit Findings 2024/25

Substantial - Limited

Design Control 2 5 0 7
Operational
Effectiveness ! 6 0 !

10 18

Key 2024/25 Achievements

Council has approved a new Corporate Plan 2024 - 2027, which sets out the strategic vision to be “a
thriving District to live in, work and visit” with a mission that “South Kesteven aims to be a modern and
forward-looking Council that delivers effective, efficient and equitable public services to enhance the
well-being of our residents, enable prosperity, protect the environment and empower communities for
a sustainable future.”

South Kesteven District Council Vi

86



The Council has refreshed it's five key priorities, which are set out below

&)

nnectng Sustainabie Enabing
bt ot ever ECONCIMmIC Housing Effective Counci
ommunities ; [ South Kesteven ———

The Corporate Plan underpins the Council’s strategic focus and provides the performance framework
for managing the delivery of the actions and priorities in the Plan. It is good practice for a public sector
organisation seeking to deliver a wide set of aims and objectives to set out a Corporate Plan and
regularly review the activity and achievements against it. The key achievements against the plan are
summarised below:

Connecting Communities

Refurbishment of Beeden Park Play area in Grantham funded by grant from the FCC
Community Foundation, Rotary Club of Grantham and The Council alongside, upgrading the
play fitness equipment in Dysart Park.

Organised a funding fair in Bourne where community groups, charities and parish councils
could meet funding organisations, including National Lottery Heritage Fund and Co-op
Lincolnshire.

Installation of ‘Happy to Chat’ benches at Wyndham Park, Queen Elizabeth Park and Dysart
Park to combat social isolation and promote community cohesion.

Changing Places toilet facility opened in Bourne to complement the others already in situ in
Wyndham Park and Meres leisure centre.

Provided funding to revamp the Earlesfield Community Centre in Grantham.

A new 10-year contract was agreed by Cabinet for the future provision of the Council’s leisure
services.

The Council-operated CCTV control centre moved to a more modern facility at Grantham
Police Station, allowing greater partnership working with the Police.

The Home Office funded Safer Streets programme has been successfully delivered.

All three Grantham parks have retained their Green Flag status, and Wyndham Park has
retained its Green Heritage accreditation.

Sustainable South Kesteven

South Kesteven District Council

Utilised the Climate Reserve Fund to install new solar PV at The Picture House office, purchase
battery-powered grounds maintenance equipment, and upgrade existing floodlighting and pool
pumps to more energy efficient options at leisure centres.

Secured £3.5m for energy upgrades at the Meres leisure centre, for a new low carbon heating
system from the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme (phase C), supplemented by funding
from the Council as well.

Approval of Council Tree and Woodlands Strategy

Secured funding from the UK Shared Prosperity Fund to enable town and parish councils to
develop biodiversity improvements. The scheme funded nine biodiversity projects across the
district.

Fully implemented twin-stream recycling which resulted in increased recycling rates and
reduced recycling contamination.

Commenced works to deliver the new waste depot site at Turnpike Close Grantham. Works
are on track for a target go-live date in December 2025.

Adopted a Green Fleet Strategy 2025—-2028.

Upgrades to Deepings Community Centre, including the installation of a new boiler which will
reduce running costs for the Deepings Community Trust.

viii

87



Enabling Economic Opportunity

Developed a new CRM system to support business engagement and service work
programmes.

Installation of free parking in the run up to Christmas.

Revamp of bus station shelters at Bourne Bus Station.

introduction of a minimum 1hr free car parking across all council owned car parks to help
support the regeneration of our high street and shopping areas.

Attended business clubs and networking events across the district regularly throughout the
year.

A total of 114 businesses were supported by Business Lincolnshire through their programmes
and advisers at the Growth Hub and NBV Enterprise Solutions Ltd.

Investment in Stamford Cattle market to provide 140 additional new spaces.

Delivered Meet the Buyer procurement events to support local businesses in understanding
new regulations and to offer greater transparency over local government procurement
processes.

Extensive refurbishment of Conduit Lane toilets to support the market.

Housing

A total of 1,868 stock condition surveys were completed on council-owned properties, with
94.62% meeting the Decent Homes Standard.

Void re-let times improved significantly during 2024/25. In Quarter 4 of 2024/25, the average
void period was 91 days, which was a significant improvement from the 159 days at the
beginning of the year.

Delivered four homes in Stamford, commenced construction of 20 units at Swinegate,
Grantham and acquired 12 flats. At Corby Glen, four of 36 units have been handed over, with
a further eight delivered via the Housing Fund.

Solar panels installed at more than 125 homes as part of a £7.26m investment in efficiency
upgrade scheme, targeted at the poorest performing properties based on the EPC ratings.
Achieved 100% compliance following a Section 11 Children’s Safeguarding Audit.

Provision of a night shelter facility, four bed flat each with 2 beds for homeless during severe
weather emergency protocol, working in partnership with Grantham Ark.

Effective Council

South Kesteven District Council

Approved a Councillor Development Strategy and in January 2025 rolled out Personal
Development Plans for Councillors.

A new Customer Service Centre opened in October 2024 to create a modernised customer
experience, support the ongoing channel shift to 24/7 self service and offer opportunities for
residents to access face-to-face support.

Delivery of the 2024/25 Internal Audit plan

Set a balanced budget for 2024/25

Work started on a new £8.8m depot which will offer a modern, fit for purpose facility to home
more than 250 staff.

Improved our complaints processing. We introduced a dedicated complaints officer and new
complaints work group who meet on a regular basis to review complaints, share lessons learnt.
Delivered 100% of the actions from the 2022/2025 People Strategy.

88



2024/25 Financial Performance

A balanced budget was set for 2024/25 which provided a solid foundation for the delivery of Council
services and the outlined achievements above. During the financial year, the Council has managed
budgets prudently and has been able to redirect funding where necessary to support the objectives
set out in the Corporate Plan. Overall, there was an underspend on the General Fund of £1.114m at a
net cost service level which was achieved through a combination of savings and generation of
additional income, enabling the Council to boost its financial resilience. This is particularly important
with the anticipated Local Government funding review as well as a reset of the Business Rate system

Revenue Expenditure and Income

Revenue expenditure is generally on items that are consumed within a year and is financed by
Council Tax, Government Grants, Business Rates and other income. Gross Revenue expenditure in
2024/25 totalled £102.247m compared with £86.039m in 2023/24. The main increases relate to
increases in grant funded economic development expenditure using the UK Shared Prosperity Fund,
increased expenditure on repairs and maintenance to the housing and increases in Capital Charges
relating to the revaluation of the housing stock.

Gross Income in 2024/25 totalled £65.788m compared with £64.642m in 2023/24. The major
difference relates to increases in government grants and contributions across a number of schemes
and projects, used to finance the additional gross service expenditure above.

The following charts show the spend in each directorate during 2024/25 and the sources of funding
which the Council received:

REVENUE EXPENDITURE £'000

Housing & Corporate,

Projects, £20,403 , Governance &
20% Public Protection

Service, £6,403 ,
6.26%

Finance, Property
& Waste Services,
£59,325, 58.02%

South Kesteven District Council

89



SOURCES OF INCOME £'000
Fees and Charges,

$106 contributions, £10,925, 10.79%

£1,433, 1.42% \
NNDR, £7,334, 7.24%

Council Tax, £11,551
11.41%

Interest & Investment

/ Income, £3,985,

3.94%

’—\

Service Related
Grants, £24,927,
24.62% HRA Rental Income,

£28,866, 28.51%

Other HRA Income, T— Non-service related
£1,070, 1.06% grants, £11,141,
11.01%
South Kesteven District Council Xi

90



Revenue Budget

The Council produces an annual Medium-Term Financial Plan; an annual budget and two forecast
years. This is approved by Full Council in February and monitored and adjusted in-year to reflect
expected expenditure and new priorities. Table 2 shows adjusted revenue budget compared with
actual net expenditure by directorate at 31 March 2025:

Table 2 - Revenue Outturn Position 2024/25

General Fund 2024/25 2024/25 2024/25 | Variance
Current Adjusted Outturn | to
Budget budget £000 Adjusted
£000 £000 Budget
£000
Corporate, Governance &
Public Protection 4,053 3,951 3,969 18
Finance, Property & Waste
Services 11,575 9,828 10,032 204
Growth & Culture 8,831 5,038 4,389 (649)
Housing & Projects 1,688 1,581 1,329 (272)
HRA Recharge (2,942) (2,942) (2,942) 0
Drainage Rates 947 947 976 29
Investment Income (914) (914) (1,358) (444)
General Fund Net Cost of
Service 23,238 17,489 16,395 (1,114)
2024/25 2024/25 2024/25 | Variance
Current Adjusted | Outturn |to
Budget budget £000 Adjusted
Housing Revenue £°000 £000 Budget
Account £000
Expenditure 23,057 23,057 25,669 2,612
Income (30,010) (30,010) (30,728) (718)
Interest payable, 2,140 2,140 2,138 (2)
Interest receivable (2,099) (2,099) (2,627) (528)
other accounting
adjustments (100) (100) (126) (26)
HRA (Surplus)/Deficit (7,012) (7,012) (5,674) 1,338

South Kesteven District Council

91

Xii




General Fund Outturn

The outturn position shown at Table 2 details a net underspend of £1.114m when compared with the
adjusted budget. There are several under and overspends which account for this variance, detailed
explanations are provided within the General Fund report and associated Appendices of the outturn
report for 2024/25 which can be accessed via the following link.

General Fund Provisional Outturn Report 2024-25

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Outturn

The outturn position for the HRA shown at Table 2 details a decreased in year surplus of £1.338m
when compared with the adjusted budget. There are several under and overspends which account for
this variance, detailed explanations are provided in Housing Revenue Account report for 2024/25 and
associated appendices which can be accessed via the following link.

Housing Revenue Account Provisional Outturn Report 2024-25

Capital Expenditure

Each year the Council produces a Capital Programme comprising of an annual budget and three
forecast years. This is approved by Full Council in February and then monitored and adjusted
throughout the year to reflect where expenditure is expected to be incurred and as new priorities are
approved. Table 3 shows the adjusted capital budget compared with the actual net expenditure by
directorate at 31 March 2025:

Table 3 — Capital Outturn Position 2024/25

2024/25 2024/25 2024/25 2024/25
Current Adjusted | Provisional | Variance to
Directorate Budget Budget Outturn Adjusted
£000 £000 £000 Budget
£000
Corporate, Governance
& Public Protection 1,936 1,936 1,743 (193)
Finance, Property &
Waste Services 15,143 6,534 5,916 (618)
Growth & Culture 7,451 7,478 4,748 (2,730)
Housing & Property 4,080 1,256 1373 17
General Fund
Housing Revenue 27,207 24,365 22,770 (1,595)
Account
Total Expenditure 55,817 41,569 36,550 (5,019)
South Kesteven District Council iii

92




General Fund Capital

The outturn position shown at Table 3 details a net underspend of £3.424m when compared with the
adjusted budget. There are several under and overspends which account for this variance, detailed
explanations are provided in Appendix B of the Outturn Report for 2024/25 which can be accessed via
the following link.

Appendix B - General Fund Provisional OQutturn Report 2024-25

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Outturn

The outturn position shown at Table 3 details a net underspend of £1.595m when compared with the
adjusted budget. There are several under and overspends which account for this variance, detailed
explanations are provided in Appendix B of the Outturn Report for 2024/25 which can be accessed via
the following link.

Appendix B - Housing Revenue Account Provisional Outturn Report 2024-25

Capital Financing

The Council has funded the 2024/25 Capital Programme from a variety of sources, which are set out
in Table 4 below:

Table 4 — Capital Financing Summary 2024/25

Directorate 2024/25 2024/25 2024/25 2024/25
Current Adjusted Outturn | Variance to
Budget Budget £000 Adjusted
£000 £000 Budget
£000
Grants & 17,127 13,452 10,676 (2,776)
Contributions
Earmarked Reserves 4,222 3,089 3,699 610
Capital Receipts 11,040 7,675 5,364 (2,311)
Borrowing 8,800 3,133 2,612 (521)
HRA Priorities 1,640 1,640 1,368 (272)
Reserve
Major Repairs 12,988 12,580 12,831 251
Reserve
Total Expenditure 55,817 41,569 36,550 (5,019)

The changes in funding reflect the changes in spending profile for the capital programme, which is
largely down to slippage. The table reflect the approach to limit wherever possible the use of internal
borrowing to minimise the impact of minimum revenue provision on revenue.

Capital and Revenue Budget Monitoring_

The Council monitors its capital and revenue budgets on a monthly basis and produces quarterly
monitoring reports which are presented to the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate
South Kesteven District Council Xiv

93



Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Cabinet. These reports highlight significant forecast
variances so that members are aware of any potential financial pressures that may arise from these
variances.

Any financial pressures that could impact on future years are incorporated into the Medium-Term
Financial Plan and the budget report for the following year. The 2024/25 Revenue and Capital
Outturn report presented to Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and
Scrutiny Committee, Cabinet and Governance and Audit Committee provides further detail on the
variances between the adjusted budget and the outturn position.

LOOKING FORWARD

Strategic Direction - Vision

Following the approval of the new Corporate Plan 2024 - 2027, the budget setting and medium-term
financial planning underpins and supports the delivery of the stated ambitions as set out in the Plan.
This clarity of focus and purpose allows the Council to be clear on how its funding will be prioritised
and enable disinvestment or re-allocation from non-priority areas.

The Plan now sets out the core of the Council’s overarching strategic planning framework which
includes the Medium-Term Financial Plan, Local Plan and arrangements for delivering good
governance. The Corporate Plan is in the process of being updated so priorities could change which
will then need to be reflected in the medium-term financial plan to ensure that the Council budget is
allocated to support the achievement of priorities.

Sustainable Financial Autonomy

In order to ensure that the General Fund Medium-Term Financial Plan demonstrates a financially
sustainable outlook a number of actions are in place:

* An ongoing, robust and detailed review of the assumptions that underpin the Medium-Term
Financial Plan supported by scenario planning linked to the timing of the national funding changes
and expected inflationary pressures. Ensuring a balanced budget position is achieved through the
transformation, modernisation and service review programme, which is designed to reduce costs,
drive efficiencies and ensure that resources are deployed effectively and directed to where they
are most needed.

+ Delivering budget reductions and savings included within annual budgets.

* Maximising key income streams, including council tax, business rates, fees and charges,
investment income, etc.

» The prudent use of reserves and balances, as these can only be used once.

+ Ensuring that the Capital investment ambitions are supported by robust business cases that
demonstrate value for money and support the Corporate Plan. The Capital programme is
supported by a robust governing framework that includes details of the capital cost and financing
of each of the capital investments.

« Commissioning services that are relevant to the community and valued by those who use them.

* Reviewing the costs and performance of operating assets and identifying those that are classified
as surplus to requirements or can be disposed of to generate capital receipts.

The Housing Revenue Account budget is set in the context of providing further investment in key
service areas whilst being mindful of the need to maintain a sustainable 30 year financial business
Plan which is focused on:

+ Meeting the housing needs of tenants
+ Facilitating the delivery of new housing across a range of tenures

South Kesteven District Council XV

94



» Enabling those whose independence may be at risk to access housing (including their current
home) that meets their needs

» Supporting investment in homes for affordable warmth for our tenants

+ Meeting compliance requirements and ensuring resources are allocated appropriately

An integral part of the Councils financial sustainability is the level of reserves to ensure the Council
has sufficient funds available to meet cash flow requirements, avoid unnecessary temporary
borrowing and protect services against unforeseen financial events. It also means building up funds
to meet known or predicted liabilities. Through prudent financial management, the Council has also
been able to establish a number of specific general reserves to provide funding for approved
purposes usually in respect of specific services or corporate ambitions. Based on the levels of
reserves as at the 31 March 2025 and taking into the forward projections within the MTFS the Council
doesn’t envisage having to consider the issuing of a Section 114 notice. A summary of the reserve
balances is shown in the Movement of Reserve Statement (page 3) showing total usable reserves of
£66.941m at 31 March 2025.

EXPLANATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The 2024/25 Statement of Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting 2024/25, issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2024. The Code requires that core and
supplementary statements are produced together with disclosure notes and the style and format of
the accounts complies with the local authority accounting standards.

The accounts give a true and fair view of South Kesteven'’s financial position for the financial year
2024/25. The accounting policies are outlined on pages 71 to 82 and have been fairly and
consistently applied. Proper and up-to-date accounting records are maintained, and all reasonable
steps are taken to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Chief Finance Officer is the statutory officer responsible for the proper administration of the
Council’s financial affairs. He is required by law to confirm that the Council’s system of internal
controls can be relied upon to produce an accurate statement of accounts. The statement of
assurance for 2024/25 (known as the Statement of Responsibilities) appears on page 1 of this
document.

The Core Financial Statements are:

« Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (Page 2) - this shows the accounting cost in
the year of providing services in accordance with IFRS rather than the amount to be funded from
taxation.

The Net Cost of Service has increased from £21.397m in 2023/24 to £36.459m in 2024/25.
Expenditure in the Growth and Culture Directorate has increased by £4.129m between 2023/24 and
2024/25, this difference primarily relates to an increase in grant funding for economic regeneration
projects. The expenditure in the Housing and Projects Directorate has increased by £3.162m
between 2023/24 and 2024/25 which primarily relates to an increase in the cost of repairs and
maintenance of the housing stock. Finance, Property and Waste Services net expenditure has
increased from a net income of £2.632m to a net expenditure of £5.169m. This increase of £7.801m
relates to capital charges relating to the revaluation and depreciation of the housing stock.

The decrease of £0.116m in Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure is mainly due to a
decrease in the value of investment property and a compensating improvement in the movement of
the value of equity investments which was affected in the prior year by the winding down of the
Council owned housing company Gravitas Limited.

There has been an increase of £9.709m in the income received from taxation and non-specific
grants. There were increases in Council tax of £0.705m, Non-Domestic Rates have reduced by

South Kesteven District Council Xvi

95



£0.715m, New Homes Bonus reduced by £0.105m. Section 31 grants increased by £3.230m this
related to the receipt of further Future High Streets funding. Section 106 contributions increased by
£1.403m and capital grants increased by £1.329m. . An accounting adjustment relating to the
introduction of IFRS16 meant that Bourne Leisure Centre has now been brought onto the balance
sheet and this resulted in a Right of Use Asset valuation of £3.485m being recognised in the CIES.

The combination of these variances means there has been a deficit of £1.906m on the ‘Provision of
Services’. Non-current assets have been revalued during the year and this has resulted in a surplus
of £15.979m (Surplus of £18.212m in 2023/24) being recognised in the CIES. This surplus mainly
relates to the upward revaluation of Council Dwellings. Changes in actuarial assumptions in the
pension fund have resulted in a loss of £1.243m (2023/24 gain of £1.592m).

* Movement in Reserves Statement (Page 3) — this shows the movement in the year of the different
reserves held by the Council, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e., those that can be applied to fund
expenditure) and ‘unusable reserves’ (those that an authority is not able to utilise to provide services).

» Balance Sheet (Page 4) — The Balance Sheet shows the Council's assets and liabilities at 31 March
each year, in accordance with the Council’s Accounting Policies. There is an inverse relationship
between the Council’s net worth and in particular pension liabilities i.e., as pension liabilities increase
the Council’s net worth reduces and vice versa. The net assets have increased by £12.830m largely
due to:

- an increase of £21.400m in Property, Plant and Equipment which relates to revaluation gains and the
acquisition of new assets.

- a decrease in investment property of £0.627m due to the sale of a property on Trent Road, Grantham
and the reductions in valuations.

- a reduction in Current Assets Held for Sale due to the sale of development land at Stonebridge Road,
Grantham.

- a decrease in short-term investments of £3.303m due to financing of the capital programme.

- An increase in short term debtors of £1.946m payments in advance.

- an increase of £3.564m in Short Term Creditors, relating to capital works completed in March 2025.

- a reduction in the level of Provisions related to a fall in the number of insurance claims.

- a reduction in Long Term Borrowing of £3.222m due the capital repayment of the HRA selffinancing
debt.

- a decrease in Capital Grants Receipts in Advance primarily due to s106 receipts relating to Affordable
Housing being used to fund the building of new social housing.

» Cash-flow Statement (Page 5) — this shows the inflows and outflows of cash arising from
transactions with third parties for revenue and capital purposes.

* Notes (pages 6) — these provide supporting context to the above Statements.

Supplementary Financial Statements

* Housing Revenue Account (pages 55) - This reflects the statutory obligation to account separately
for the Council’'s housing landlord function. It details the major elements of housing revenue
expenditure — maintenance, administration and capital financing costs and how these are met by rents
and other income. It is noted that the deficit was £9.399m in 2024/25 (£0.643m surplus in 2023/24)
this decrease is mainly due to an increase in Depreciation and Impairment of Non-Current Assets of
£8.259m and an increase in Repairs and Maintenance expenditure of £2.581m.

* Collection Fund (pages 62) — this reflects the statutory requirement for the Council to maintain a
separate account providing details of receipts of Council Tax and Business Rates and any associated
payments to precepting authorities and central government. It is noted that Business Rates is in
surplus of £3.325m compared with a surplus of £2.175m in 2023/24. The surplus is distributed as
follows:

South Kesteven District Council i

96



= ££1.626m Central Government
= £1.374m South Kesteven District Council
= £0.325m Lincolnshire County Council

The Council Tax element of the Collection Fund reflects and reduced deficit of £0.157m compared
with a deficit of £0.552m in 2023/24. The deficit is distributed as follows:

= £0.018m South Kesteven District Council
= £0.116m Lincolnshire County Council
= £0.023m Lincolnshire Police and Crime commissioner

- Statement of Group Accounts (page 65) — according to statutory requirements the Council is
required to produce Group Accounts where it has subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates. The
Council prepares Group Accounts to include it's wholly owned company LeisureSK Ltd.

* Glossary of Terms (page 83) — This explains key terms used throughout the document further.

Further Information

Further information about the Statement of Accounts is available from
accountancy@southkesteven.gov.uk or Finance Team, Council Offices, The Picture House, St
Catherine’s Road, Grantham, NG31 6TTIn addition, members of the public have a statutory right to
inspect the accounts before the annual audit is completed. The availability of the accounts for
inspection is advertised on our website at http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8920

South Kesteven District Council wvii

97



STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
The Council's Responsibilities
The Council is required to:
e make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that
one of its officers has responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Council,

that officer is the Chief Finance Officer.

e manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and
safeguard its assets.

¢ approve the Statement of Accounts.

The Chief Finance Officer’s Responsibilities

The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Council's Statement of
Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code).

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Finance Officer has:

¢ selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently

e made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent

e complied with the Local Authority Code

The Chief Finance Officer has also:

e kept proper accounting records which were up-to-date

¢ taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER’S CERTIFICATE

| certify that the accounts set out in this document present a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Council at the accounting date and its income and expenditure for the year
ended 31 March 2025.

Richard Wyles CPFA, ACMA, FCMA Clir Tim Harrison

Chief Financial Officer Chair of Governance and Audit Committee
23 February 2026 23 February 2026

South Kesteven District Council 1

98



COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

2023/24

e

o 3

o =

5 9 2

x c o

T = £

? & @ w

oo o -

= X 1 [}

Owuw (U] r4

£000 £000 £000

5,804 (1,877) 3,927
51,017  (53,649)  (2,632)
11,321  (5526) 5795
17,897 (3,590) 14,307
86,039  (64,642) 21,397
229 0 229
2,975 0 2,975
132 (24) 108
3,336 (24) 3,312
2,237 0 2,237
0 (353) (353)
0 (3922) (3922
0 (268) (268)
389 0 389
2626 (4543) (1,917
500 (25,735) (25,235)

(2,443)

(18,212)
1,592

(19,063)

Corporate, Governance & Public Protection Service
Finance, Property & Waste Services

Growth & Culture
Housing & Projects
Cost Of Services

Other Operating Expenditure

(Gain)/Loss Disposal of Fixed Assets

Precepts & Levies

Other Operating Income & Expenditure

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

Interest Payable on Debt

Net Interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)

Interest & Investment Income

Income & Expenditure and Movement in Fair Value of

Investment Property

Movement in the value of equity investments

Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income

(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services

(Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets

Remeasurement of Defined Pension Liability
(16,620) Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME &

EXPENDITURE

South Kesteven District Council

99

2024/25
g
2 E
o =
5 9 2
= c o
RS
n < [7]
[) 0w 9 7] w
g ¢¢ 8 5
4 O w o 4
£000 £000 £000
6,403  (2,506) 3,897
59,325 (54,156) 5,169
16,116 (6,192) 9,924
20,403 (2,934) 17,469
102,247  (65,788) 36,459
0  (1,166)  (1,166)
9 3,374 0 3,374
0 (16) (16)
3374 (1,182 2,192
2,138 0 2,138
33 0 (97) (97)
0 (3985 (3985
10 192 0 192
0 (49) (49)
2330  (4131)  (1,801)
11 333 (35277) (34,944)
1,906
(15,979)
33 1,243
(14,736)

(12,830)



[IoUNOYD JOLISIQ USAB)S8Y YINOS

(esz‘sov) (rse‘6zE) (668°sL) (81L8T) (ToLoT) (6£1°ST) (Tog‘se) piemuoy pariied yZ0¢ Y24.Al TE Je duejeg
(€90°6T) (e€0'8T) (og0°‘1) GE8 (7¥0°T) 166°T (8182) ¥T/€20¢ Ul 9sea.d3p Jo (sseasdu))
0 (618°T) 618‘T IpT'E (sT19) 90€ (810°T) LT suone|ngaJ Japun siseq Sulpuny
13 siseq Sullunodde usamilaq syuawisnipy
0 90V (90v) (tT€0) (62v) VEET 0 S9AIDSTY USIMID( SI9jsuel]
(€90‘6T) (0z9'91) (evv‘?) o] 0 (ev9) (008'T) a4nypuadx3
13 DWOdU| dAIsuayasdwo) |ero]
?N\MNON MC_LJU SOAJDSIU Ul JUSWBAON
(061°98¢€) (Tze'1tTE) (698‘vL) (ess'eT) (£59°sT) (941°£T) (esv'ze) pJemuoy paliied £20¢ Y24eIAl TE Je aduejeg
000,F 000,F 000.3 000,3 000,F 000,F 0003
S9NAI9S9Y |e10L SONI9SY S9NIDSY EYNEITH EVSEITHN] (senisos9y (saniasay W
a|qesnun a|gesn |e10ol  sJaieday sofle sidiadoy paJewue] paJewdsey g
leaded Suipnpui) Suipnpui)
S1UNoddYy Q2duejeg
9NUDAIY pun4 jesauan
SuisnoH
(€80°8TV) (evT 1S€) (Tv6'99) (9t€‘st) (60t 9T) (res‘s) (¢89°92) piemioy pallied SZOZ YaJeAl TE e duejeg
(ogg‘et) (884°T2) 8596°S ov'e 765 Sve'9 (t8€'T) ST/¥T0T Ul 9sea.4d9p Jo (3seasdul)
0 (6£0°2) 6L0°L LEL'L S€9 (sot'z) 119 LT suone|ngaJ Japun siseq Sulpuny
1@ siseq 3uinunodoe usamiaq syuawisnlpy
0 LT (£2) (se€ev) (ev) TGEY 0 S9AJI2S3Y USBIMID( SIajSuel]
(ogg‘ert) (9g2'vT) 906‘T 0 0 66£6 (e6v°2) aJnypuadxy
] 2WOdU| m>_mcw£wLQrCOU |erol
mN\._uNON MC_._J_U SOAJ3S9J Ul JUSWBAON
(esz‘sov) (rse‘6ze) (668°sL) (81£8T) (Toz'ot) (6£1°ST) (tog‘se) piemioy parued yzoz YdJel T€ Je uejeg
000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
SOAIDSIY |er10L SONI9SDY S9NIDSIY EYVELT EVSETEN] (seni19s9y (soni1asay W
|a|qesnun a|gesn |e1ol saieday sole sidiaooy pajsewuae] pa)ysewuey @
lexnded Suipnpur) Suipnpu)
SIUN0odYY Iouejeg
anuandy pun4 |eJdudn
SuisnoH

ININTFLVLS SIAYISTA NI LNJWNIAON

100



BALANCE SHEET

At 31 March
2024

£'000

415,414

690

12,785

946

2,569

144

432,548

490
52,924
18
6,065
18,334

77,831

(3,244)
(11,801)
(684)

(15,729)

(283)
(79,769)
(224)
(9,123)

(89,399)

405,251

£'000
75,896
329,355

405,251

Property Plant & Equipment
Heritage Assets

Investment Property
Intangible Assets

Long Term Investments
Long Term Debtors

Long Term Assets

Current Assets Held for Sale
Short Term Investments
Inventories

Short Term Debtors

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Current Assets

Short Term Borrowing
Short Term Creditors
Provisions

Current Liabilities

Provisions
Long Term Borrowing
Other Long Term Liabilities

Capital Grants Receipts in Advance

Long Term Liabilities

Net Assets

Usable Reserves
Unusable Reserves

Total Reserves

South Kesteven District Council

Note

18
21
22
23
24
26

27
24

26
28

24
30
32

32
24
33
12

35

At 31 March
2025

£'000

436,814

690

12,158

936

2,619

57

453,274

0
49,621
17
8,011
11,795

69,444

(3,242)
(17,119)
(646)

(21,007)

(154)
(76,547)
(191)
(6,738)

(83,630)

418,081

£'000
66,937
351,144

418,081




CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash outflows are shown as negative figures in the cash flow statement to allow the movement

in cash & cash equivalents to match the signage convention on the balance sheet.

2023/24
£'000
Operating Activities
2,443 Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services
18.032 Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of
’ services for non-cash movements
Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit
(7,734) on the provision of services that are investing and
financing activities
12,741 Net cash flows from Operating Activities
(8,423) Net cash flows from investing activities
(3,591) Net cash flows from financing activities
797 Net increase or (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
17,607 . .
reporting period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting
18,334 .
period
727
South Kesteven District Council 5

102

Notes

36

36

37
38

28

2024/25
£'000

(1,908)
25,979

(18,310)

5,763

(10,072)
(2,230)

(6,539)

18,334

11,795

(6,539)




NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED BUT NOT
ADOPTED

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024/25 (the
Code) requires the disclosure of information relating to the expected impact on the
accounting change that will be required by a new standard that has been issued but not yet
adopted by the Code for the relevant financial year. This applies to the adoption of the
following new or amended standards within the 2025/26 Code:

e The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rate (Lack of Exchangeability).
Amendments to IAS 21 issued in August 2023.
e Insurance Contracts (IFRS 17) issued in May 2017.

Neither of these amendments are expected to have a significant impact on the Council’s
accounts in future years.

2. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
In applying the accounting policies (see page 71), the Council has had to make certain

judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.
The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:

a. There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government,
notably issues around funding reforms and localisation of Business Rates. However, as
these reforms have been delayed until at least 2026/27 due to the economic environment
the Council has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an
indication that the assets of the Council might be impaired as a result of a need to close
facilities and reduce levels of service provision.

b. In 2024/25 the Council has adopted IFRS 16 Leases, as required by the Code of Practice
for Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom. The main impact of the new
requirements is that for arrangements previously accounted for as operating leases (i.e.
without recognising the leased item as an asset and future payments as a liability), a right
of use asset and a lease liability have been brought into the balance sheet at 1 April 2024.
These have been calculated based on the current schedule of rental payments and
discounted using the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) certainty rate. Leases for items
of low value and leases that expire on or before 31 March 2026 are exempt from the new
arrangements and have been excluded.

3. ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE AND OTHER MAJOR
SOURCES OF UNCERTAINTY

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made
by the Council about the future, or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking
account of historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because
balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from
the assumptions and estimates.

South Kesteven District Council 6

103



The items in the Council’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2025 for which there is a significant risk
of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

Item

Uncertainties

Consequences of difference
from Assumption

Valuation of Property

The Council’s external valuers
provided valuations as at 31
March 2025.

A reduction in the estimated
valuations would result in
reductions to the Revaluation
Reserve and a loss recorded in
the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. If the
value of the Council’s property
assets were to move by 0.39%
this would result in a charge of
approximately £1.7m to the
Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement and the
Revaluation Reserve.

Pension Liability

Estimation of the net liability to
pay pensions depends on
several complex judgements
relating to the discount rate
used, the rate at which salaries
are projected to increase,
changes in retirement ages,
mortality rates and expected
returns on Pension Fund
investments.

The Council has engaged
Barnett Waddingham to
provide expert advice about
the assumptions applied.

A 0.1% decrease in the discount
rate will increase the net
pension liability by £16.32m;

A 0.1% increase in the assumed
level of pension increases will
increase the net pension liability
by £15.48m

4. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Chief Finance Officer on 7th
October 2025. Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the financial statements
or notes. Where events taking place before this date provided information about conditions
existing as at 31 March 2025, the financial statements and notes have been adjusted in all
material respects to reflect the impact of this information.

5. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

There were no prior period adjustments.

South Kesteven District Council 7

104



8 [I0UNOYD 10LISIQ USAB)SEY YINOS

(ves‘s) (z89'92) (915°5€) aouejeg VyH pue pung |essud9 Buiso|)
LGE'Y 0 LGE'Y SBAJ9SaJ WOJ) /O] Siajsuel]
7661 (18e°l) €19 Jes A Ul 9ouEleg \yH pue pun4 [elauss uo (y¥oyaq) Jo snjding snid/ssa
(621°S1) (Log'se) (08¥'0%) aouejeg VyH pue pung [esauag BuiuadQ

000.3 000.3 000.3

ViH pung |esaua9 lejoL
906l (c62°L) €19 S99IAISS JO UOISINOI UO J1o1a( Jo (snjding)
(e55've) zzy'oe (1eL'g) ainjipuadx3 @ awoou| Jayi0
6S¥°9¢ (512°22) 4N S92IAI9S JO 10D JON
697/ eLv'Y Zve'Le sjosfoud g BuisnoH
v26'6 (099°9) ¥9z'c 2NN B YIMOoI9)
691°G (2oL 'v2) (€€6'81) seoneg o)sep g Aladold ‘eoueul
168°¢ (9zv°1L) WA A 99IAI8S U0I108)01d 2l|gnd @ 82UBUIBA0S) ‘@leltodlo)

000.3 000.3 000.3

juswiajels siseg Bununosay soouejeg

105

ainjipuadxg pue pue Buipung 3y} YyH pue pund |eJsuac
awoou| aAIsuayaldwo) udamjaq sjuawishipy ayj o} ajqeabieys
ayj ul aunypuadxy JoN ainypuadxg jaN

GZ/vzZoz siseg Buipunosoy pue Buipung usamlaq sjuawisnipy

"Juswialels alnjipuadx3 pue swoou| dAIsusyaldwo) ay) ul A|jnj aiow pajuasald si saonoead Buiunoooe peydesoe
Ajjesausab Japun J0) pajunoooe ainjipuadxs pue sawoou| *SBJIAISS S,|IoUN0d 8y} usamiaq sesodind Bujew uoisioap J0) pajeoo|e sI ainjipuadxa Siy} Moy SMOYS OSs[e
| "seonoeud Buinunoooe pajdesoe Ajjesausb yym aoueplodoe Ul saljlioyIne AQ paules JO pauwnsuod S924N0Sal 8SOY) Yim uosiiedwod ul safjiioyine [eoo| Ag (sejel
SSBUISNQ puE XE} |IoUN09 ‘sjual ‘sjuelb JuswuldAob) $80IN0sal WO} papun) pue pash s| ainjipuadxa [enuue Moy SMoys sisAjeuy Buipun pue ainyipuadx3 ayL

SISATVNY ONIANNd ANV FdNLIANIdX3 9

ININILVLS FANLIANIdXT ® AINODNI FAISNIHIHUHINOD FHL OL S31ON



6 [I0UNOYD 10LISIQ USAB)SEY YINOS

106

(621°G1) (rog‘sz) (os¥‘ov) aoueljeg VyH pue pung |esauag Buiso|d
yee‘e 0 yee‘e SOAJ8SAl WOJ) /0} sidjsuel |
(2€¢€) (81L8'2) (sGL'e) les A Ul eoueleg YyH pue pund [eJeuss uo (yoneq) Jo sniding sn|d/sse
(921°21) (e8¥'22) (659°6¢) aouejeg VyH pue pung |esauag Buiuado

000.3 000.3 000.3

ViH pung jesauan lejol
(ev¥‘2) (€12) (ss1'g) S9OIAI9G JO UOISINOI UO Noia( 1o (snjding)
(ov8'c2) 6L0'GL (1z8'g) aJnjipuadx3 '@ 8wWodu| Jayl0
16€°12 (zeL's)) 999G S9JIAISS JO }S0) J9N
L0Vl (8ev's) 6/8'8S sjosloud g BuisnoH
G6.L'S (¥65°2) L0Z‘c ainjnD B Yymmoio
(ze9'2) (91€9) (816'8) seoinIeg 81sep\ R Aledoud ‘eoueul
NN@.M Avmm. _\v mmm.N 90IAI9G UOI]09]0Ud dl|gnd R ©dUBUIBA0D .OW_NLOQLOO

000.3 000.3 000.3

jusuwiajels siseg m:_a:3000< saouejeg

ainjpuadx3 pue pue Buipun{ 8y} yyH pue pun4 |eiaud9
awosu] aAlsuayaisdwo) usamiaq sjuawisnipy ay) o} ajqeabieyn
9y} ul ainypuadx3 39N ainypuadx3 joN

yz/szoz siseg Buipunodoy pue Buipung usamlaq sjuawisnlpy



7. NOTE TO THE EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2024/25
Adjustments from General

Fund to arrive at the Adjustments Net change for

Comprehensive Income for Capital the Pensions  Other

and Expenditure Purposes Adjustments Differences Total

Statement amounts (Note a) (Note b) (Note c) Adjustments
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Corporate, Governance &

Public Protection Service (1,261) (170) 5 (1,426)

Finance, Property & Waste

Services (23,760) (352) 10 (24,102)

Growth & Culture (6,356) (311) 7 (6,660)

Housing & Projects 4,809 (345) 9 4,473

Net Cost of Services (26,568) (1,178) 31 (27,715)

Other Income and

expenditure from the

Expenditure and Funding

Analysis 23,429 2,455 538 26,422

Difference between

General Fund surplus or

deficit and Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure

Statement Surplus or

Deficit on the Provision of

Services (3,139) 1,277 569 (1,293)

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2023/24
Adjustments from General

Fund to arrive at the Adjustments Net change for

Comprehensive Income for Capital the Pensions Other

and Expenditure Purposes Adjustments Differences Total

Statement amounts (Note a) (Note b) (Note c) Adjustments
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Corporate, Governance &

Public Protection Service (1,209) (180) (5) (1,394)

Finance, Property & Waste

Services (5,884) (420) (12) (6,316)

Growth & Culture (2,277) (309) (8) (2,594)

Housing & Projects (5,060) (357) (11) (5,428)

Net Cost of Services (14,430) (1,266) (36) (15,732)

Other Income and

expenditure from the

Expenditure and Funding

Analysis 10,843 2,885 1,292 15,020

Difference between

General Fund surplus or

deficit and Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure

Statement Surplus or

Deficit on the Provision of

Services (3,587) 1,619 1,256 (712)

South Kesteven District Council 10

107



a) Adjustments for Capital Purposes — this column adds in depreciation and
impairment and revaluation gains and losses in the services line and for;

b)

Other Operating expenditure — adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of
income on disposal of assets and the amounts written off for those assets.
Financing and investment income and expenditure — the statutory charges for
capital financing i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision and other revenue contributions
are deducted from other income and expenditure as these are not chargeable
under generally accepted accounting practices.

Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure — capital grants are
adjusted for income not chargeable under generally accepted accounting
practices. Revenue grants are adjusted from those receivable in the year to those
receivable without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied throughout the
year, The Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income and Expenditure line is credited
with capital grants receivable in the year without conditions or for which conditions
were satisfied in the year.

Net Change for the Pension Adjustments — the removal of pension contributions
and the addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits pension related expenditure and
income:
For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions
made by the authority as allowed by statute and the replacement with current
service costs and past service costs.
For Financing and investment income and expenditure — the net interest on
the defined benefit liability is charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement (CIES).

c) Other Differences between amounts debited/credited to the CIES and amounts
payable/receivable to be recognised under statute:

Adjustment involving Accumulated Absences Account represents the amount by
which officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement on an accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the year
in accordance with statutory requirements.

8. EXPENDITURE AND INCOME ANALYSED BY NATURE

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 Expenditure/Income £000
Expenditure
23,269 Employee benefits expenses 24,866
43,458 Other services expenses 45,720
19,312 Depreciation, amortisation, impairment 31,661
86,039 Total expenditure 102,247
Income
(9,887) Fees, charges and other service income (10,925)
(26,792) Government grants and contributions (24,927)
(26,860) Dwelling Rents (28,866)
(1,103) Non- Dwelling rents (1,070)
(64,642) Total income (65,788)
21,397 Net cost of services 36,459
South Kesteven District Council 1

108



9. PRECEPTS AND LEVIES

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
2,073 Parish Council Precepts 2,398

902 Drainage Board Levies 976
2,975 3,374

10.INCOME AND EXPENDITURE AND MOVEMENT IN FAIR VALUE OF
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
(325) Income & Expenditure from investment properties (326)

0 Loss on disposal of investment property 30

Movements in relation to changes in the fair value

o7 of investment properties 488
(268) 192
11.NON SERVICE RELATED GOVERNMENT GRANTS
2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
(10,846)  Council Tax (11,551)
(8,049)  Non-Domestic Rates (7,334)
(459) New Homes Bonus (564)
(1,862) S31 Grant (5,092)
0 Right of Use Asset (3,485)
(30) S106 Contribution (1,433)
(4,489) Capital Grants (5,818)
500 Local Enterprise Partnership Grant Repayment 333
(25,235) (34,944)

South Kesteven District Council 12

109



12. GRANT INCOME

The Council credited the following grants and contributions to the Cost of Services in the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 2024/25

2023/24
£'000

18,022
208
290
156

56
80
1,061
615
634

0

57
142
943

1,078
58

80
787
587

0

0
1,419
0

295
65
345

0

226

27,204

Benefits Subsidy

Local Council Tax Admin Subsidy
Housing Benefits Admin Grant
Discretionary Housing Payment
Welfare Reform

Neighbourhood Planning Grant
Disabled Facilities Grant
Homelessness

Rough Sleeping

New Burdens - Tenant Satisfaction
Heritage Action Zone

Arts and Recreation Grants
Household Support Fund

Local Authority Data Share
Housing Benefits New Burdens
Energy Bill Support Scheme
Electoral Integrity New Burdens Funding
Pathfinder

Afghan Resettlement

Homes for the Ukraine

Asylum Dispersal

Food Waste

UK Shared Prosperity Fund
Planning Skills Delivery Fund
ERDF - Blue Green Corridor
Garden Communities Programme
Swimming Pool Support Fund
Lincolnshire Safer Streets Grant
Other Grants

2024/25

£'000

17,333
279
11
157

0

0
1,210
662
646
18

0

3
439
20

30

0

32

0

357
108
106
280
2,479
75

0

0

0

96
47

24,388

The Council has received a number of grants and contributions that have yet to be recognised
as income as they have conditions attached to them that will require the money to be returned.

The balances at the year end are as follows:

2023/24 Capital Grants 2024/25
£'000 Receipts in Advance £'000
1,306 Receipts in Advance 62
7,817 S106 Contributions 6,676
9,123 6,738
South Kesteven District Council 13

110



13.OFFICER REMUNERATION

The number of employees whose remuneration was £50,000 or more, (excluding those
classed as senior employees with strategic responsibility and shown separately in the second
table below) in bands of £5,000 were:

2023/24 2024/25
No. of officers No. of officers
Remuneration Band
£50,000 - £54,999
£55,000 - £59,999
£60,000 - £64,999
£65,000 - £69,999
£70,000 - £74,999
£75,000 - £79,999
£80,000 - £84,999
£85,000 - £89,999

—
o

O WO O WWN
NO -~ = WwWdho o

N
-
N
S

South Kesteven District Council 14

111



The remuneration of senior employees (i.e. those with strategic responsibility for the Council)
is shown below:

Salary, Fees Bonuses & Compensation Employers

& Expenses for Loss of Pension ?:yl O:er:t Total
Allowances Allowances Employment contribution emolume
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Chief Executive 2024/25 148 10 0 37 11 206
2023/24 149 0 0 36 11 196
Director of 2024/25 101 0 0 25 4 130
Housing 2023/24 6 0 0 0 0 6
Director for Growth 2024/25 64 0 49 19 8 140
and Culture
2023/24 101 0 0 25 0 126
Chief Finance and 2024/25 121 0 0 30 9 160
SISt 0fficer 5053104 115 0 0 28 8 151
Deputy Chief  5454/25 0 0 0 0 0 0
Executive &
Monitoring Officer
2023/24 32 0 23 7 0 62
Interim Director of 2024/25 0 0 0 0 0 0
Housing 2023/24 47 0 9 12 3 71
o . 2024/25 90 4 0 22 5 121
Monitoring Officer
2023/24 90 0 0 22 0 112
Head of Service - 2024/25 63 0 0 0 0 63
Human Resources
& Organisational ) )4 64 0 0 0 0 64
Development
South Kesteven District Council 15

112



14. TERMINATION BENEFITS

Number of Total number of Total cost of exit

Exit Package cost bands  compulsory  exit packages by  packages in each
(including special redundancies cost band band
payments) 2023/24 2024/25 2023/24 2024/25 2023/24 2024/25

No. No. No. No. £'000 £'000
£0-£20,000 0 0 13 4 87 23
£20,001 - £40,000 0 0 2 1 45 21
£40,001 - £60,000 0 0 0 1 0 49
£60,001 - £80,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
£80,001 - £100,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
£150,000 and above 0 0 0 0 0 0
Totall Cost included in 0 0 15 6 132 93
bandings
Amounts provided for in
CIES not included in 0 0
bandings
Total Cost included in CIES 132 93

15.MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES

The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) Regulations 2003 requires local authorities to
publish the amounts paid to members under the Members’ allowance scheme.

The Council had 56 elected Councillors as at 31 March 2025.

Members’ allowances and expenses paid during the year amounted to £582,329 (2023/24
£559,783). The figure includes basic allowance, special responsibility, and other related
allowances.

16. JOINT OPERATIONS

South Kesteven District Council are members with Newark and Sherwood District Council and
Rushcliffe Borough Council of the Building Control Partnership. The partnership’s net
expenditure in 2024/25 is £103,135 of which £34,379 is attributable to South Kesteven District
Council and accounted for within the Council’'s Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

South Kesteven District Council 16

113



NOTES TO THE MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

17.ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING BASIS
UNDER STATUTE

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and
expenditure recognised by the Council in the year in accordance with proper accounting
practices, to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the
Council to meet future capital and revenue expenditure.

The descriptions of the reserves that the adjustments are made against are as follows:
General Fund Balance

The General Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of a Council are required to
be paid and out of which all the liabilities are to be met, except to the extent that statutory rules
might provide otherwise. These rules can also specify the financial year in which liabilities and
payments should impact on the General Fund Balance, which is not necessarily in accordance
with proper accounting practice. The General Fund Balance therefore summarises the
resources that the Council is statutorily empowered to spend on its services or on capital
investment (or the deficit of resources that the Council is required to recover) at the end of the
financial year however the balance is not available to be applied to HRA services.

Housing Revenue Account Balance

The Housing Revenue Account Balance reflects the statutory obligation to maintain a revenue
account for local authority council housing provision in accordance with Part VI of the Local
Government & Housing Act 1989. It contains the balance of income and expenditure as
defined by the 1989 Act that is available to fund future expenditure in connection with the
Council’s landlord function or (if in deficit) that is required to be recovered from tenants.

Major Repairs Reserve

The Council is required to maintain the Major Repairs Reserve which funds capital investment
in HRA assets or the financing of historical capital expenditure by the HRA. The balance
shows the capital resources that have yet to be applied at year end.

Capital Receipts Reserve

The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets
which are restricted by statute from being used other than to fund new capital expenditure or
to be set aside to finance historical capital expenditure. The balance on the reserve shows
the resources that have yet to be applied for these purposes as at the year-end.

South Kesteven District Council 17

114



8L [IDUNOYD JOLISIQ USASIS8Y YIN0S

(620°2) 6.0°L 1811 GE9 (sov‘2) ZLL9 sjuawysnipy |ejo |

(6%) 14 0 0 0 6v SjuaWINI}SU| [BIOUBUI
SJUSWINIISU] [EI2UBUIS JO aN[EA 3y} 0} Bunejas syuswysnipy
JUNOD2Y SIUSSAY

(1e) le 0 0 L ve pajesuadwon Bueinwinady ay} BuiAjoAul Ajewnd syuswsnipy
(922'1) 9/2‘L 0 0 0/¢ 900°L SuONNQLIUOD [ENJO. 1O} SBLIUS Juswallal gl SY| 40 Juswisnlpy
pung uoisuad ayj Buiajoaul Ajuewind syjuswysnlpy
(G67) G6¥ 0 0 0 G6¥ awooul YANN 03 wawjsnlpy
(€p) 547 0 0 0 eY BWOJU| X} [12uno 0} Juswisnipy
JUNO22Y
juawisnipy pung uonaajjon ayj buiajoaul Ajuewud syjuswysnipy
8 (8) 0 0 (1) 0 PaNUIUOJSIP UOIIONJISUOD Japun S}ossy
€65°C (£65°¢) 0 (621'Y) GZ0'L LLL S}8SSE JUS.INO-UOU JO [esodsip Uo SSOTAl0Id
(zg82) 282 0 0 0 292 JuawisaAul |eyided Jo Buloueuly 1o) uoisianoid Aioniels
(G8¥'¢e) G8Y'e 0 0 0 G8v'e jJossy asn 40 Wby 91 S¥4| 0 uondopy
(0v9°L€) 0v9'LE 1€8'CL ¥9¢'G €958 z88'v ainyipuadxe [ejded
(025'S) 02S'S 0 0 0 02s'S SND43Y jo Buroueuly
02s°S (025°9) 0 0 0 (025°9) (SNO43Y) ansels Japun |eyided woly papuny ainjipusdxa snuaAsy
88Y (88t) 0 0 8l (905) seladoid JusW)SaAUI JO SNjeA 18)JEL Ul SJUSWUBAON|
LEL'GL (LE1'G1) 0 0 (££1°G1) 0 S31D 0} pabieyo syjusuiedw
L¥0'C (1¥02) 0 0 (198°1) (081) Jdd uo sessoj/suleb uonenjersy
80¥% (80%) 0 0 (z82) (9z1) sjesse a|qibueul Jo uonesiuowy
L¥S'8 (L¥58) (¥60°9) 0 0 (esv'e) S}esse Jualnd-uou Jo uolerdalda(
JUNO029Y Jusuwisnipy jenden ayy BuiAjoAul Ajewnd syusunsnipy
000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
SOAI9SOY  OAIDSOY 9AIDSY
S9AI9S9Y a|qes slieda sydiaos pund
alqesnun ldgesn leday 1909y ViH |esauan Ggeliveoe
lejol Jofepy lended

(penunuon) suonejnbay 1opun siseg Buipun4 pue siseg BuiuNosdy usam}aq syuawisnlpy

115



(618°1) 618°L avL‘e (519) 90€ (810°1)
0 0 0 0 0 0
€8l'l (€8LL) 0 (¥62) 0 (68€)
9¢ (9¢) 0 0 (6) (L2)
(619°1) 6191 0 0 cee 98z'|L
0
(6EE‘L) 6E€’L 0 0 0 6EL’L
Ly (Lv) 0 0 0 (L¥)
6¢ (62) 0 0 (62) 0
29l‘c (zolL'e) 0 (e£6'2) LS (009)
(282) 182 18¢
(0st'02) 0S¥'02 120'8 zZL'e z58's 6SY
(€50°2) €602 0 0 Z 150
€302 (€502) 0 0 0 (€502)
.S (£9) 0 0 (€) (¥9)
LEE'6 (1eg's) 0 0 (66L°6) (zeL)
(gzg) €ze 0 0 6LC v0l
0S€ (0s€) 0 0 (1€2) 6L1L)
¥00'8 (¥00'g) (188't) 0 0 (gzL'e)
000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
SOAIISIY OAIDSY OAIOSY
SOAI9SOY pung
a|gesn slieday s)diaoay ViH
ajqesnufn |elauan)
leyol Jofepy lended

6l [IDUNOYD 1OLISIQ USASISaY YINoS

sjuawisnipy ejo |

|ood sidieoay [elden BuisnoH 03 sjuswAed

S9AIDSDY d|ges udaamjaq syuswisnipy

sjuswinijsu| [eloueul

sjuawinjsuj [eldueuly jJo anjeA ayj} o} bunejas syuswisnipy
JUNO22Y SAJ2UASAY

pajesuadwos Buize|nwinaoy ay} buinjoAul Ajuewiud syuawisnipy
SUOIINQUIUOD [BNJOB 10} SBLUS JUBwWalljal 6| S| 4O Juswisnlpy
pun4 uoisuad a3y} buinjoaul Ajuewad syuswisnipy

awooul YANN 0} Juswisnipy

aW02Ul XE} [1I9uUN09 0} Juswisnipy

jJuno2dy

juawysnipy pung uoi}o29jj0o9 ay} buiajoaul Ajewud syjuswysnlpy
19SSy pejeuoq

S}asse jJualind-uou 4o |esodsip Uo sso7/1j0id

wawsanul [eydes Jo Buioueuly 10) uolisiaoid Alojnyers

alnjipuadxs |elden

SND43Y jo Buroueuly

(SND43Y) anels Japun [eydes wouy papuny ainjipuadxs anuanay
soladold JuswisaAul JO anjeA Ja)iew Ul SJUSWBAON

S 31D 03 peblieyd sjuswiedw|

Jdd uo sassoj/suieb uonenjearsy

sjasse g|qibuejul Jo uoiesIowy

S}asse jJualind-uou Jo uoneldaidag

JUNO029Y Jusdwisnipy jepdes ayj buinjoAul Ajuewind syuawiysnipy

veieeoc

(penunuon) suonejnbay 1opun siseg Buipun4 pue siseg BuiuNosdy usam}aq syuawisnipy

116



0¢ [IoUNOY) 10UISI UBAB]SOY YINnoS

viLg8osy  180°LL 0Ll LIy'9 z82‘89 ¥98‘05¢ GZOZ YdIel LE e $ZOZ YdMen LE¥e  bLP'SLY  920°G 061 690°G 895°G9 LLG‘6EE
anjep yoog joN
(oco'vl) 0 0 (esp'cL) (LLp) (92) GZOZ Udiel Lg e pzoz yotel Lgre  (0Z€'cl) O 0 (L16°2Z1) (86¢) (19)
769 0 0 769 slesodsiq - uopubooaieq  $20°) 0 0 ¥20°L 0 0
) (g'sl) eupuec o) (661'6)
IEL'GL) 0 0 0 0 /E1°GL [Eaden Buioueyug uop o uoguboosleqg €6+ 0 0 0 0 6616
Juswsales
005Gl 0 0 0 LE) €9g'G1L ainjipuadx3 '@ SWOoU| dAIsUBYaIdWOD €266 0 z 0 44" 1/£'6
ayj 0} INo uapum uopepaidsg
. . . OAIBSOY . . .
0£8'9 0 Gl 0 [Korard ¥8S'y UOHEN(EASY Bl O] I UenuM uoneoeideg 2079 0 4 0 £66°L S6E'Y
(2¥5'8) 0 (1) (992°1) (L¥+'2) (s28'v) ebieyo uopepsideq  (#00°8) 0 (91) (021°1) (€02'2) (S19'P)
(ozgcL) o 0 (r6°2L) (86¢) (19) $20Z Iudy | je czozudy Ly (9LL‘el) 0 0 (s9,21) (zee) (61)
jJuswuiredwy @ uoneldaidag pajenWNIdyY
Pp80SY  180°LL 0LL 006'61 €6/'89 0176'0S¢€ GZOZ U2JBeN LEYe  $ZOZ YDJBeN LEIe  $82'82¥  90'G 061 086'LL 996'G9 2.5'6£€
uononsuo) i .
0 (sv2) 0 0 0 (17 JOPU SI19SSY WOLL(O]) POLISSE[08) SIOSSY (zs0's) (28¢'8) 0 0 0 gee
0 0 pelisseoal sjessy 0 0 Sy 0 (S¥) 0
sjesodsi uol}oNJIsuod
(59¢€) (8 (02) (962) (o1e) (1€2'2) _ 'a/uonony (99¢¢) (62) 0 (291°1) (569) (S2¥°1)

Japun sjassy) uonpubooalaq
S92IAISS JO UOISIAOIH
(o¥sZL) 0 0 0 (062) (os2'21) uo Joya@/sniding ayy Ul pesubooal  (661°6) 0 S 0 (S) (661°6)
(sesealoap)/sasealou] uonenieasy
aAIaSaY UoljEN|BASY 8U) Ul pasiubooal

8hL'6 0 0 0 (zLi‘y) 09zZ°0l (seseaiep)/seseesul uogenerey  F8 0 0 0 9¢z G/SLL
zesoe 86/ 0 1WA v10'L Y¥8'6l suonippy  $0.°91 £6¢L 0 £€89°L 0zy 80Z'¢lL
692°Csy  9.0°S 061 086°LL LS¥°69 T.6'6€€ ¥20z 1udy | 9ouejeqg Buluado pajsnipy
11 4% §8y'e (91 S¥41) wewisnipy soueleg Buuado
¥8L'82Yy  9.0°S 061 086°LL 996‘G9 T.5'6€€ ¥20zZ Iudy | je gzozudy L3e  988°0Zy  660°CL ovL YoV LL 55099 8z1'sze
uoijenjeA 1o }so)d

000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3

3dd ejol uoiodnisuo)d sj}ossy HCQEQ_JUN wmc_—u__:m wm:___wgn_ ddd Iejol uoionisuo)d sj}ossy u_._w:._n__:vm wm:__u__:m wm:___mgn_
Japun s)assy wz_n._zw Q jue|d Q pue’] [1ouno) saduejeg Uo JUSWSAON Japun s)ossy m:_Q.:._w Q jue|d 2 pueT] ouno)
‘S9IDIYdA Y10 ‘S9IDIYIA 5111 T}
GZ/¥20¢C Ul JUsWasAo\ $2/€202Z ul JUSWaAON

:BuIMO]|0} B} 8pN|oUl [IDUNOY 8U) AQ PasEs| S1asse pue PaUMO S}8SSE JUaLINO-UON
(3dd) LNINdIND3 ANV INV1d ALY3dO¥d 8}

LAHHS HONVIVE dHL OL SHLON

117



Property, Plant & Equipment (Continued)
Valuation Assumptions

The significant assumptions applied in estimating the current values by the Valuer are as
follows:

¢ No potentially deleterious or hazardous materials were used in the construction of
the assets and none has subsequently been incorporated.

e That the properties are not subject to any unusual or especially onerous restrictions,
encumbrances or outgoings and good titles can be shown.

e The properties and their values are unaffected by any matters which would be
revealed by a local search or inspection of any register and that use and occupation
are both legal.

e The inspection of those parts which have not been inspected would cause the
Valuer to alter their opinion of value.

e Theland and properties are not contaminated nor adversely affected by radon.

¢ No allowances have been made for any rights obligations or liabilities arising from
the Defective Premises Act 1972.

e The Council carries out a full revaluation of its properties on a rolling basis over a
five year period. In the years where an asset is not subject to a full revaluation a
review is carried out by appointed valuers Valuation Office Agency in accordance
with the methodologies and basis for estimation set out in the professional
standards of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). Valuations of
vehicles, plant and equipment are based on depreciated cost.

e A full year of depreciation is charged in the year of acquisition and none in the year
of disposal.

e The net book value of vehicles, plant and equipment includes vehicles valued at
£2.8m which are depreciated using reducing balance method.

¢ In the adoption of accounting standard IFRS16 a right of use asset has been
brought onto the balance sheet. Bourne Leisure Centre has been added to the
reporting of Other Land and Buildings and is shown as an opening balance
adjustment.

South Kesteven District Council 21

118



19.CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAPITAL FINANCING

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below
together with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is
to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Council, the
expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure
of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Council that has yet to be financed. The

CFR is analysed in the second part of this note.

2023/24
£'000
104,146  Opening Capital Finance Requirement
Capital Investment
4,009 Council Dwellings
420  Other land & buildings
1,683  Vehicles, plant & equipment
1,393  Assets under construction
21 Investment property
9,200 Capital expenditure
870 Intangible Assets
2,053 Revenue expenditure charged to capital under statute

Sources of Finance
(3,113) Capital receipts
(4,818) Capital grants & contributions
(14,859)  Sums set aside from revenue

101,005 Closing Capital Financing Requirement

Explanation of movements in year
Increase/(Decrease) in underlying need to borrow
(supported by government financial assistance)

Increase/ (Decrease) in Capital Financing

(3,141) Requirement

(3,141)

South Kesteven District Council 22

119

2024/25
£'000
101,005

4,707
1,014
2,716
6,758
301
15,137
398
5,520

(5,364)
(11,756)
(20,323)

100,113

(892)

892



20.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 March 2025 the authority had entered into two contracts for the construction or
enhancement of property, plant and equipment in 2025/26.

Contractor £'000

Waste Depot Lindum Group 5,423
Swinegate New Homes Lindum Group 787

Contract commitments at 31 March 2025 6,210

21.HERITAGE ASSETS

Reconciliation of the carrying value of tangible Heritage Assets held by the Council

Assets held at value  ~SSets held - Total

at cost Assets
Miscellaneous Art
Antiques Artefacts Installation

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost or Valuation
1st April 2023 257 398 35 690
Revaluations 0 0 0 0
Additions in year 0 0 0 0
Disposals in Year 0 0 0 0
31st March 2024 257 398 35" 690
Revaluations 0 0 0 0
Additions in year 0 0 0 0
Disposals in Year 0 0 0 0
31st March 2025 257 398 35 690

It is not practicable to report any transactions relating to Heritage Assets before 1 April 2010,
as such transactions were not distinguished from those relating to operational assets.

a. Antiques

The Council's collection of antiques is reported in the Balance Sheet at insurance valuation
which is based on market values. The collection includes items such as the chandeliers and
mirrors at Stamford Arts Centre and two large Japanese bronze koros in the civic suite at
Grantham. The collection also includes an 18th Century portrait of Catherine Manners, Lady
Huntingtower on view at Guildhall Arts Centre, Grantham.

b. Miscellaneous Artefacts

Items of note in this collection include civic regalia and a Victoria Cross medal. Items in this
collection are reported in the Balance Sheet at insurance valuation which is based on market
values. The collection is held at Grantham.

Valuations were undertaken in May 2023 for insurance purposes by Anthony Marriott, Fine
Art Consultant & Valuer.

c. ArtInstallations
The Orrery sculpture in Grantham Market Place and the light installation on St Peter’s Hill
South Kesteven District Council 23

120



are reported at cost. The statue of Baroness Thatcher donated in year by the Public
Memorials Appeal is reported at the estimated cost provided by the donor.

d. Historic

The Council has a collection of assets that are of historic significance but are not reported
on the balance sheet as their value cannot be reliably established. This collection is made
up of the following:

St Leonard Priory, Stamford 12th Century Priory listed ancient monument
Conduit, Grantham 16th Century Well Head

Dysart Park Band Stand, Grantham Victorian wrought iron band stand

Wyndham Park Shelter, Grantham World War 1 memorial shelter

17th Century Stocks, Witham on the Hill

Statue, St Peter’s Hill, Grantham Baroness Thatcher of Kesteven

Currently the Council has no intangible Heritage Assets

More details on the Heritage Assets held by the Council including their location and any
public access allowed is held on the Council's Heritage Asset schedule.

22.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The following items of income and expense have been accounted for under Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
Statement:

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
(369) Rental income from investment property (371)
Direct operating expenses arising from investment
44 45
property
(325) (326)

There are no restrictions on the Council’s ability to realise the value inherent in its investment
property or on the Council’s right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal.
The Council has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment
property, or repairs, maintenance or enhancement.

The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over
the year:

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
5,019 Balance at start of year 12,785
21 Additions - Purchases 301
8,052 Transfers from Assets under construction 0
(57) Net gains/(losses) from fair value adjustments (488)
(250) Disposals (440)
12,785 Balance at end of year 12,158

The fair value of investment property was determined by external, independent property
valuers, having appropriate recognised professional qualifications. Fair value measurement

South Kesteven District Council 24

121



for investment property has been categorised as Level 2 fair value based on information from
observable market transactions of comparable property with no significant adjustments.

23.INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Council accounts for its software licences as intangible assets where the software is not
an integral part of a particular IT system. The intangible assets included in the balance sheet
only include purchased licences. They are held at historic cost.

All licences are given a finite useful life, based on assessments of the period the software is
expected to be of use to the Council.

Movements on Intangible Assets during the year were as follows:

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
Balance at start of year:
1,243 Gross carrying amount 2,101
(817) Accumulated amortisation (1,155)
426 Net carrying amount at start of year 946
870 Additions 398
(350) Amortisation for the period (408)
520 (10)
(12) Disposals (408)
12 Amortisation written back 408
0 0
946 Net carrying amount at end of year 936
Comprising Comprising
2,101 Gross carrying amount 2,091
(1,155) Accumulated amortisation (1,155)
946 936

None of the intangible assets are individually material to the financial statements.

South Kesteven District Council 25

122



24.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instruments of another entity. Non exchange transactions, such
as those relating to taxes and government grants, do not give rise to financial instruments.
The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet:

Financial Assets

Non Current Current
Investments Debtors Investments Debtors
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Amortised Cost
Principal 2,619 2,569 57 144 49,000 52,000 4,408 3,902
Investment Accrued
Interest 0 0 0 0 621 924 0 0
Cash and cash
equivalents (CCE) 0 0 0 0 11,795 18,334 0 0
Fair value through
other
comprehensive
income - other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total financial
assets 2,619 2,569 57 144 61,416 71,258 4,408 3,902
Non financial assets 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,603 2,163
Total 2,619 2,569 57 144 61,416 71,258 8,011 6,065
Financial Liabilities
Non Current Current
Investments Investments Creditors
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Amortised Cost
Principal 76,547 79,769 3,223 3,223 8,810 6,190
Interest 0 0 19 21 0 0
T otal financial liabilities 76,547 79,769 3,242 3,244 8,810 6,190
Non financial liabilities 0 0 0 0 6,555 5,611
Total 76,547 79,769 3,242 3,244 15,365 11,801

The Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities that are not measured at
Fair Value

Except for the financial assets carried at fair value (described in the table above), all other
financial liabilities and financial assets represented by amortised cost and long-term debtors
and creditors are carried on the balance sheet at amortised cost. Their fair value can be
assessed by calculating the present value of the cash flows that take place over the
remaining life of the instruments, using the following assumptions:

South Kesteven District Council 26

123



e Forloans from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) and other loans payable,
premature repayment rates from the PWLB have been applied to provide the fair
value under PWLB debt redemption procedures.

e Forloans receivable prevailing benchmark market rates have been used to
provide the fair value.

e No early repayment or impairment is recognised.

¢  Where an instrument has a maturity of less than 12 months or is a trade or other
receivable the fair value is taken to be the carrying amount or the billed amount.
e The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed

amount.
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amount Value Amount Value

£000 £000 £000 £000
PWLB 79,789 0 83,013 0
Short Term Creditors 8,810 8,810 6,190 6,190
Total 88,599 8,810 89,203 6,190

The fair value of the liabilities is less than the carrying amount because the Council’s portfolio
of loans includes a number of fixed rate loans where the interest rate payable is lower than
the rates available for similar loans in the market at the Balance Sheet date. This shows a

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cash and Cash
Equivalents 11,795 11,795 18,334 18,334
Short Term
Investments 49,000 49,000 52,000 52,000
Long Term
Investments 2,619 2,619 2,569 2,569
Short Term Debtors 4,408 4,408 3,902 3,902
Long Term Debtors 57 57 144 144
Total 67,879 67,879 76,949 76,949

The fair value measurement of the financial assets and liabilities are all hierarchy level 2 -
other significant observable inputs.

25.NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The key risks are:

e Credit risk — the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the
Council;

e Liquidity risk — the possibility that the Council might not have funds available to meet
its commitments to make payments;
South Kesteven District Council 27

124



¢ Re-financing risk — the possibility that the Council might be requiring to renew a
financial instrument on maturity at disadvantageous interest rates or terms;

e Market risk - the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Council as a result of
prior to the commencement of the year to which it relates. This strategy sets out the
parameters for the management of risks associated with financial instruments.

The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy for 2024/25 is available on the Council’s
website at Treasury Management Strateqgy 2024-25

The strategy also includes an Annual Investment Strategy for the forthcoming year, setting
out the Council’s criteria for both investing and selecting investment counterparties.

These strategies are implemented by the central treasury department. The Council maintains
written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific
areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk, and the investment of surplus cash through
Treasury Management Practices (TMPs). These TMPs are a requirement of the Code of
Practice and are reviewed periodically.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit
exposures to the Council’s customers.

This risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy, which is available on the
Council's website.

The Council’s credit risk management practices are set out on pages 17 to 19 of the Annual
Investment Strategy. With particular regard to determining whether the credit risk of financial
instruments has increase significantly since initial recognition.

The Annual Investment Strategy requires that deposits are not made with financial institutions
unless they meet identified minimum credit criteria, in accordance with the Fitch, Moody’s
and Standard and Poor’s Credit Ratings Services. The Annual Investment Strategy also
considers maximum amounts and time limits with a financial institution located in each
category.

The Council uses the creditworthiness service provided by Link. This service uses a
sophisticated modelling approach with credit ratings from all three rating agencies — Fitch,
Moody’s and Standard and Poors, forming the core element. However, it does not rely solely
on the current credit ratings of counterparties but also uses the following as overlays:

o Credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies
e Credit Default Swap spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings.
e Sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy countries

The full Investment Strategy was approved by Full Council on 29" February 2024 and is
available on the Council’s website.

Customers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their financial position,
past experience and other factors, with individual credit limits being set in accordance with
internal ratings in accordance with parameters set by the Council.

The Council’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks, building
societies, property fund and money market funds of £62.386m cannot be assessed generally
as the risk of any institution failing to make interest payments or repay the principal sum will
be specific to each individual institution. Recent experience has shown that it is rare for such
entities to be unable to meet their commitments. A risk of irrecoverability applies to all of the
Council's deposits, the Council has £3m invested with the property fund and at 31 March
2025 this was valued at £2.619m.

South Kesteven District Council 28

125



Amounts Arising from Expected Credit Losses

We have assessed the Council's short and long term investments and concluded that the
expected credit loss is not material therefore no allowances have been made.

A summary of the credit quality of the Council’s investments at 31 March 2025 is shown
below, along with the potential maximum exposure to credit risk, based on experience of

default and uncollectability.

g

2

3

5

o o

o c

Q 5

» (14

8 E Estimated

GE, 2 maximum

n o exposure to

9 S Historical default and

2 "qw'; Balance at | Experience | uncollectability

< % 31 March | of Default | at 31 March 2025

| - 2025 £'000 % £
Deposits with Banks and Financial Institutions
Standard Chartered Bank (ESG) Orange A+ 4,000 0.004% 160
Standard Chartered Bank (ESG) Orange A+ 5,000 0.042% 2076
Lloyds Bank Plc (RFB) Orange A+ 5,000 0.015% 761
CCLA Property Fund Not Rated [Not Rated 3,000 0.000% 0
BNP Paribas MMF* Yellow AAA 767 0.000% 0
LGIM MMF* Yellow AAA 5,000 0.000% 0
Aberdeen Standard Investments MMF* Yellow AAA 5,000 0.000% 0
Santander UK PLC Red A 10,000 0.012% 1185
Highland Council Yellow AA- 5,000 0.012% 0
Reading Borough Council Yellow AA- 3,000 0.001% 0
Newcastle Building Society White Not Rated 2,000 0.000% 0
Plymouth City Council Yellow AA- 5,000 0.007% 0
National Bank of Canada Orange A+ 5,000 0.019% 942
Lancashire County Council Yellow AA- 5,000 0.013% 0
Total Investments 62,767 5,124

* Money Market Funds

No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period and the Council does not expect
any losses from non-performance by any of its counterparties in relation to deposits and

bonds.

South Kesteven District Council

126

29




The Council does not generally allow extended credit for its trade debtors, but some of the
current balance is past its due date for payment. The past due but not impaired amount can
be analysed by age as follows:

At 31 March At 31 March At 31 March

2025 2024 2023

£'000 £'000 £'000
Under 30 Days 65 112 132
30-60 days 1,296 1,157 2,521
60-90 days 122 146 122
Over 90 Days 581 568 639
Total 2,064 1,983 3,414

During the reporting period the Council held no collateral as security.
Liquidity risk

The Council manages its liquidity position through the risk management procedures above
(the setting and approval of prudential indicators and the approval of the treasury and
investment strategy reports), as well as through a comprehensive cash flow management
system, as required by the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice. This seeks to
ensure that cash is available when needed.

The Council has ready access to borrowings from the money markets to cover any day to
day cash flow need, and the PWLB and money markets for access to longer term funds. The
Council is also required to provide a balanced budget through the Local Government Finance
Act 1992, which ensures sufficient monies are raised to cover annual expenditure. There is
therefore no significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments
under financial instruments.

The maturity analysis of financial assets, excluding sums due from customers, is as follows:

At 31 March At 31 March At 31 March

2025 2024 2023

£'000 £'000 £'000
Less than one year 59,767 70,420 65,509
Between one and two years 2,619 2,569 2,632
Total 62,386 72,989 68,141

Re-financing and Maturity Risk

The Council maintains a significant debt and investment portfolio. Whilst the cash flow
procedures above are considered against the refinancing risk procedures, longer term risk to
the Council relates to managing the exposure to replacing financial instruments as they
mature. This risk relates to both the maturing of longer term financial liabilities and longer
term financial assets.

The approved treasury indicator limits for the maturity structure of debt and the limits on
investments placed for greater than one year in duration are the key parameters used to
address this risk. The Council approved treasury and investment strategies address the main
risks and the central treasury team address the operational risks within the approved
parameters. This includes:

South Kesteven District Council 30

127



¢ Monitoring the maturity profile of financial liabilities and amending the profile through
either new borrowing or the rescheduling of the existing debt; and

¢ Monitoring the maturity profile of investments to ensure sufficient liquidity is available for
the Council’s day to day cash flow needs, and the spread of longer term investments
provide stability of maturities and returns in relation to the longer term cash flow needs.

The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as follows:

At 31 March At 31 March At 31 March

2025 2024 2023

£'000 £'000 £'000
Less than one year 3,242 3,244 3,245
Between one and two years 3,222 3,222 3,222
Between two and five years 9,665 9,665 9,665
Between five and ten years 16,109 16,109 16,109
Between ten and fifteen years 41,109 41,109 41,109
Over Fifteen Years 6,442 9,664 12,886
Total 79,789 83,013 86,236

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Council is exposed to interest rate movements on its borrowings and investments.
Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the Council, depending on how
variable and fixed interest rates move across differing financial instrument periods. For
instance, a rise in variable and fixed interest rates would have the following effects:

e Borrowings at variable rates — the interest expense charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Account will rise;

e Borrowings at fixed rates — the fair value of the borrowing will fall (no impact on revenue
balances);

¢ Investments at variable rates — the interest income credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Account will rise; and

¢ Investments at fixed rates — the fair value of the assets will fall (no impact on revenue
balances).

Borrowings are not carried at fair value on the balance sheet, so nominal gains and losses
on fixed rate borrowings would not impact on the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services or Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. However, changes in interest
payable and receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted to the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services and affect the General Fund Balance.
Movements in the fair value of fixed rate investments that have a quoted market price will be
reflected in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

South Kesteven District Council 31
128



The Council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. The Annual Treasury
Management Strategy draws together the Council’'s prudential and treasury indicators and
its expected treasury operations, including an expectation of interest rate movements. From
this Strategy a treasury indicator is set which provides maximum limits for fixed and variable
interest rate exposure. The central treasury team will monitor market and forecast interest
rates within the year to adjust exposures appropriately. For instance, during periods of falling
interest rates, and where economic circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate investments
may be taken for longer periods to secure better long term returns, similarly the drawing of
longer term fixed rates borrowing would be postponed. If all interest rates had been 1%
higher (with all other variables held constant) the financial effect would be:

£'000
Increase in interest payable on variable rate borrowings 0
Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments 343
Impact on Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 343

Decrease in fair value of fixed rate borrowing liabilities (no
impact on the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services or Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure) 15,588

The approximate impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the
movements being reversed. These assumptions are based on the same methodology as
used in the Note — Fair value of Assets and Liabilities carried at amortised Cost.

Price risk

The Council, excluding the pension fund, does not generally invest in equity shares or
marketable bonds but does have shareholdings in the Gravitas Housing Limited which is a
wholly owned Local Authority Controlled Company. Whilst these holdings are generally
illiquid, the Council is consequently exposed to losses arising from movements in the prices
of the shares.

As the shareholdings have arisen in the acquisition of specific interests, the Council is not in
a position to limit its exposure to price movements by diversifying its portfolio. Instead, it only
acquires shareholdings in return for “open book” arrangements with the company concerned
so that the Council can monitor factors that might cause a fall in the value of specific
shareholdings.

The shares in Gravitas Housing Limited have been elected as Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income, meaning that all movements in prices will impact on gains and
losses recognized in the Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve. A general shift of 5%
in the general price of the shares (positive or negative) would have resulted in a £56k gain
or loss being recognised in the Financial Instrument Revaluation Reserve.

Foreign exchange risk

The Council has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. It
therefore has no exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates.

South Kesteven District Council 32

129



26.DEBTORS

An analysis of Debtors is shown below

At 31 March At 31 March
2024 2025
£'000 £'000

Current Debtors

1,041 Government Departments 3,034
1,639 Other Local Authorities 1,002
19 NHS 19
3,366 Other entities and individuals 3,956
6,065 8,011

Long Term Debtors
144 Other 57
144 57

27.ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

The details of the assets held for sale are shown below.

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
1,090 Balance at start of year 490

Assets newly classified as held for sale:
0 Property, Plant & Equipment 0
(600) Assets sold (490)
490 0

28.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The balance of cash and cash equivalents is made up of the following elements:

At 31 March 2024 At 31 March 2025
£000 £'000
1 Cash held by the authority 1
(87) Bank current accounts 1,027
18,420 Short Term Deposits 10,767
18,334 Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 11,795

Some instant access accounts are used for short-term investments where the rate of interest
achieved is better than for a short-term investment. However, due to the requirements of the
Code they are included as Cash and Cash Equivalents on the Balance Sheet.

South Kesteven District Council 33

130



29.BORROWING

Non-Current Borrowing represents borrowing repayable within a period in excess of one
year.

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 Analysis of Loans by Source £'000
79,769 PWLB 76,547
79,769 76,547
£'000 Analysis of Loans by Maturity £'000
3,222 Between 1 and 2 Years 3,222
9,665 Between 2 and 5 Years 9,665
16,109 Between 5 and 10 Years 16,109
41,109 Between 10 and 15 Years 41,109
9,664 Over 15 years 6,442
79,769 76,547

Current Borrowing represents borrowing repayable within one year.

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
3,245 Balance at start of year 3,244
(3,244)  Borrowing repaid during year (3,243)
3,222  Transferred from Non-Current Borrowing 3,222

21 Accrued interest at end of year 19
3,244  Balance at end of year 3,242

30.CREDITORS

An analysis of Creditors is shown below:

At 31 March At 31 March
2024 2025
£000 £000
3,004 Government Departments 4,461

394 Other Local Authorities 350
8,403 Other entities and individuals 12,308
11,801 Total 17,119
31.LEASES

In 2024/25 the Council has adopted IFRS 16 Leases, as required by the Code of Practice for
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom. The main impact of the new requirements is
that for arrangements previously accounted for as operating leases (i.e. without recognising the
leased item as an asset and future payments as a liability), a right of use asset has been brought
into the balance sheet at 1 April 2024.

Leases for items of low value and leases that expire within a year on the reporting date are
exempt from the new arrangements. These are expensed to the Comprehensive Income and
South Kesteven District Council 34

131



Expenditure Statement as incurred and not recognised on the balance sheet.

Discount rates used for calculating lease liabilities — where an interest rate is not implicit within
the lease / contract, the appropriate PWLB borrowing rate has been used.

Council as Lessee

The Council’s lease contracts comprise of operational land and buildings only. All Vehicles,
Plant and Equipment are owned outright or constitute low value assets such as printers and as
such have not been include in the tables below.

e The lease for Bourne Leisure Centre commenced 17" May 1990 for a term of 99 years
at a rent of £1 per year if demanded. The value of this asset can be seen in the table
below.

Right of use assets

Land and
Buildings Total
£'000 £'000

Balance at 01 April 2024 3,485 3,485
Additions 196 196
Revaluations (74) (74)
Depreciation and Amortisation (9) (9)
Disposals 0 0
Balance at 31 March 2025 3,598 3,598

Lease Liabilities — The lease liabilities of the Council are not material, totalling less than
£1,000.

Council as Lessor

The Council has leased out HRA shops and the Crematorium at Grantham on finance leases
with the remaining terms being between 65 and 70 years. The Council has a gross
investment in the lease, made up of the minimum lease payments expected to be received
over the remaining term and the residual value anticipated for the property when the lease
comes to an end. The minimum lease payments comprise settlement of the long-term debtor
for the interest in the property acquired by the lessee and finance income that will be earned
by the Council in future years whilst the debtor remains outstanding.

Gross Investment in the Lease

At 31 March At 31 March
2024 Finance Lease Debtor (net present value 2025
£000 of minimum lease payments) £000

1 Non-Current 10

51 Unearned finance income 51

1,740 Unguaranteed residual value of property 1,740

1,802 Gross Investment in the Lease 1,801
South Kesteven District Council 35

132



The gross investment in the lease and the minimum lease payments will be received over
the following periods:

Lease
Gross Investment in the Lease Payments
At 31 March At 31 March
2025 At 31 March 2024 2025
£'000 £'000 £'000
Not later than one year 1 1 0
Between one & five years 5 5 1
Later than 5 years 1,795 1,796 11
1,801 1,802 12
Minimum
Gross Investment in the Lease Lease
At 31 March At 31 March
2024 At 31 March 2023 2024
£'000 £'000 £'000
Not later than one year 1 1 0
Between one & five years 5 5 1
Later than 5 years 1,796 1,797 11
1,802 1,803 12

No allowance for uncollectible amounts has been set aside as at 31 March 2025.

The minimum lease payments do not include rents that are contingent on events taking place
after the lease was entered into, such as adjustments following rent reviews. In 2024/25
no contingent rents were receivable by the Council

Operating Leases

The Council leases out property under operating leases for the following purposes

* For the provision of community services such as leisure and community services.

* For economic development services to provide suitable affordable accommodation
for local businesses.

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years
are shown below:

At 31 March At 31 March
2024 2025
£'000 £'000

771 Not later than one year 754
1,330 Between one & five years 1,217
3,546 Later than 5 years 3,351
5,647 5,322
South Kesteven District Council 36

133



32.PROVISIONS

All of the personal injury and property damage compensation claims are individually
insignificant. They relate to personal injury or property damage sustained where the Council
is alleged to be negligent. Provision is made for those claims where it is deemed probable
that the Council will have to make a settlement, based on reserves set by the Council’s
insurer. Of the £198k provided at 315t March 2025 £115k is expected to be settled in 2025/26.

2024/25

Balance at 1 April 2024

Additional provisions made in 2024/25
Amounts used in 2024/25

Unused amounts reversed in 2024/25

Total

Split between:
Short-term provisions
Long-term provisions

2023/24

Balance at 1 April 2023

Additional provisions made in 2023/24
Amounts used in 2023/24

Unused amounts reversed in 2023/24
Total

Split between:
Short-term provisions
Long-term provisions

Injury &
Damage Business Rates
. Total
Compensation Appeals
Claims
£000 £'000 £'000
301 666 967
115 236 351
(109) (300) (409)
(108) 0 (108)
199 602 801
129 517 646
69 85 154
198 602 800
166 2,339 2,505
230 168 398
(34) (1,841) (1,875)
(61) 0 (61)
301 666 967
163 521 684
138 145 283
301 666 967

The Council has a provision for any potential liabilities as a result of Business Rate Payers
appeals against rateable valuations. The Council is responsible for a 40% share of this
liability along with Government who a responsible for 50% and Lincolnshire County Council

being responsible for a 10%.

South Kesteven District Council

134

37



33.DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEME
a. Participation in Pension Scheme

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers and other employees, the
Council makes contributions towards the cost of post-employment benefits. Although these
benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Council has a commitment to
make the payments for those benefits and to disclose them at the time that employees earn
their future entitlement.

The Council participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by
Lincolnshire County Council.

e This is a funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning the Council, and
employees, pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the
pension’s liabilities with investment assets.

e Arrangements for the award of discretionary post-retirement benefits upon early
retirement are an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which liabilities are
recognised when awards are made. However, there are no investment assets built up to
meet these pension liabilities, and cash has to be generated to meet actual pension
payments as they eventually fall due.

e The Lincolnshire County Council pension scheme is operated under the regulatory
framework for the Local Government Pension Scheme and the governance of the
scheme is the responsibility of the pensions committee of Lincolnshire County Council.
Policy is determined in accordance with the Pension Fund Regulations.

e The principal risks to the Council of the scheme are the longevity assumptions, statutory
changes to the scheme, structural changes to the scheme (i.e. large scale withdrawals
from the scheme), changes to inflation, bond yields and the performance of the equity
investments held by the scheme. These are mitigated to a certain extent by the statutory
requirements to charge to the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account the amounts
required by statute as described in the accounting policies note.

Discretionary Post-retirement benefits on early retirement are an unfunded defined benefit
arrangement, under which liabilities are recognised when awards are made. There are no
plan assets built up to meet these pension liabilities.

b. Transactions Relating to Post-Employment Benefits

The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the cost of services when they are
earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions.
However, the charge the Council is required to make against council tax is based on the cash
payable in the year, so the real cost of post-employment/retirement benefits is reversed out
of the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account via the Movement in Reserves
Statement. The reversal of the IAS19 transactions ensures that there is no effect on the
amounts to be met from government grant and the local taxpayers. The following transactions
have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the General
Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the year.

South Kesteven District Council 38

135



2023/24
£'000
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Cost of Services
2,744 - current service cost
8 - past service cost
108  Administration fee
Financing & Investment Income & Expenditure
6,210 - Net interest expense
(6,563) -Expected return on assets in the scheme
2 507 Total Post-employment benefits charged to the
’ (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services
Other Post-employment benefits charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability
comprising:
-return on plan assets (excluding the amount included in
(6,467) )
the net interest expense)
-Actuarial (gains) and losses arising on changes in
(1,779) : .
demographic assumptions
(874) -Actuarial (gains) and losses arising on changes in
financial assumptions
10,330 Impact of pension net asset ceiling
382  -Other
1 592 Total Other Post-employment benefits charged to the
’ Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Total Post Employment Benefit charged to the
4,099 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement
Movement in Reserves Statement
4,126 - Employers' contributions payable to scheme.
(2,507) Total Post-employment benefits charged to the
’ (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services
Reversal of net charges made to the (Surplus) or Deficit
1,619 for the Provision of Services for post employment
benefits in accordance with the Code
Actual amount charged against the General Fund
Balance for pensions in the year.
4,126 - Employers' contributions payable to scheme.
South Kesteven District Council 39

136

2024/25
£'000

3,159
0
130

6,889
(6,986)

3,192

1,452
(332)

(18,358)

18,833
(352)

1,243

4,435

4,468
(3,192)

1,276

4,468




c. Pensions Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Council’s obligation in respect of
the defined benefit plans is as follows:

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

126,746 Present Value of the defined benefit obligation 112,360
(142,666)  Fair value of plan assets (147,893)
(15,920)  Deficit / (Surplus) (35,533)
224  Present Value of unfunded obligation 191
15,920 Impact of asset ceiling 35,533
224 Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 191

d. Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme (Plan) Assets

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
130,779  Opening fair value of scheme assets 142,666
6,563 Interest income 6,986

Remeasurement gain/ (loss):
The return on plan assets, excluding the amount included

6,467 in net interest (1,452)
4,126 Contributions from employer 4,468
1,064  Contributions from employees into the scheme 1,156
(6,225)  Benefits paid (5,801)
(108)  Administration Expense (130)
142,666 Closing fair value of scheme assets 147,893

In June 2023, the High Court handed down a decision in the case of Virgin Media Limited v
NTL Pension Trustees Il Limited and others relating to the validity of certain historical
pension changes due to the lack of actuarial confirmation required by law. On 2 September
2025, the Government published draft amendments to the Pensions Scheme Bill which would
give affected pension schemes the ability to retrospectively obtain written actuarial
confirmation that historical benefit changes met the necessary standards. The draft
legislation will need to be agreed by both Houses of Parliament before it passes into law. It
was not previously clear whether the Virgin Media ruling would apply to the LGPS but,
following the publication of draft legislation, we do not now expect the ruling to give rise to
any additional liabilities.

The asset ceiling is the present value of any economic benefit available to the employer in the form of
refunds or reduced future employer contributions. The actuary has calculated the asset ceiling using their
interpretation of IFRIC14 i.e. the estimated future service cost in each period, less the estimated
minimum funding contributions for future service in those periods (per IFRIC 14.20(b)) plus a minimum
funding liability in respect of any positive secondary contributions. The calculation are based on following
factors:

e There is no prospect of the Employer having an unconditional right to a refund of surplus on the
basis that such a payment would be at the discretion of the Fund.

South Kesteven District Council 40
137



o The Employer is a scheduled body and assumed to participate indefinitely.
e Primary contributions are considered to be a minimum funding requirement (MFR).

¢ The MFR exceeds the current cost of accrual and so the potential economic benefit
from future contribution reductions is nil.

e The value of the asset ceiling is therefore nil. The impact of the asset ceiling is shown

below:

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
5322 Opening impact of asset ceiling 15,920

268 Interest on impact on asset ceiling 780
10,330 Actuarial losses / (gains) 18,833
15,920 Closing impact of asset ceiling 35,533

e. Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit
Obligation)

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
125,708  Opening balance at 1 April 126,970
2,744 Current Service Cost 3,159
5,942  Interest cost 6,109
1,064  Contributions from scheme participants 1,156
Remeasurement (gains) and losses:
(1,779)  Change in demographic assumptions (332)
382  Experience loss/(gain) on defined benefit obligation (352)
(874) Actuarial. gains/ losses arising from changes in financial (18,358)
assumptions
8  Past Service cost 0
(6,225)  Benefits paid (5,801)
126,970 Closing Balance at 31 March 112,551

f. Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised

2023/24 Fair Value of Scheme Assets 2024/25
£'000 £'000
71,338 Equities 69,980
19,561 Bonds 21,444

9,704 Property 10,467
3,622 Cash 5,097
5,727 Infrastructure 6,840
32,714 Absolute return fund 34,065
142,666 Total Assets 147,893
South Kesteven District Council 41

138



g- Basis of Estimating Assets and Liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit cost method,
an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependant on assumptions
about mortality rates, salary levels etc.

Both the Local Government Pension Scheme and discretionary benefits liabilities have been
estimated by Barnett Waddingham, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the
Lincolnshire Pension Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31

March 2022.
The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been:

2023/24 2024/25

Mortality Assumptions
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:

19.5 Men 19.5
22.7 Women 22.7
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:
20.8 Men 20.8
241 Women 241
3.9% Rate of increase in salaries 3.9%
2.9% Rate of Increase in Pensions 2.9%
4.9% Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 5.8%

The estimate of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to actuarial assumptions set out
in the table above. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period
and assumes for each change that the assumption analysed changes while all the other
assumptions remain constant. The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life
expectancy increases or decreases for men and women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur,
and changes in some assumptions may be interrelated. The estimations in the sensitivity
analysis have followed the accounting policies for the scheme, i.e. on an actuarial basis using
the projected unit credit method. The method and types of assumptions used in preparing
the sensitivity analysis below do not change from those used in the previous period.

Increase in Decrease in
Assumption  Assumption

£000 £'000
Longevity (increase or decrease in 1 year) 4,223 4,049
Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 129 129
Rate of increase in pensions (increase or decease by 0.1%) 1,548 1,512
Rate of discounting scheme liabilities (Increase or decrease by 0.1%) 1,595 1,632

h. Impact on the Council’s Cash Flows

The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers’ contribution at as constant a rate as
possible. Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis. The last triennial valuation was
dated 31 March 2022.

The Council is anticipated to pay £4.526m expected contributions to the scheme in 2025/26.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for scheme members is 15
years.
South Kesteven District Council 42

139



Further information can be found in Lincolnshire Pension Fund Annual Report which is
available upon request from the Pension Fund Manager, Lincolnshire County Council, County
Offices, Newland, Lincoln, LN1 1YL (Tel: 01522 553656).

South Kesteven District Council 43

140



14%

Z1s'se (929°01) LLL's Llv'of (reL‘s) GG6'G 969°6¢
K] (ave9) 0 08L'GL (0es2) ves 9/1°LL
€161 (cz2) 0 962°C 0 ¥eG ZYAD
192°2 (£29'9) 0 ¥88°ClL (0£s'2) 0 vLy'GL
8/9°9Z (oce'y) LLLG 162°G2 (¥09°2) LZr's os¥‘zz
9£G6°C (6ELY) 0 G/9'9 0 112 86¥°C
9zs's 0 8G6Z'1L 892'C 0 v0Z'1L ¥90°L
£G0'S (161) 0 v¥e's (G26°1) 0 618'9
LLG'GL 0 €6ty 8G0°LL (620°1) 0 18021
zs 0 0 4 0 0 4]
000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3 000.3
GZO0Z YOIENl LS ©OAI9SOY WOod{ OAI9SdYy O] $202 Y2IENl LS ©OAI9SOY WOoI4{ OAIBSdy O] €£Z0Z UYdIelN LE
je aosuejeg J9ysuel | lajsuel | je aosuejeg J9ysuelr | lgysuel | Je aouejeg

[IDUNOYD JOLISIQ USAB)SEY YINOS

leyoL

SOAI9SOY payJewles

Buipn|oul JUNO22Y anuaAay BuisnoH
3oUBRg JUNOJDY SNUBASY Buisnoy
soAIesaY YYH peyiew.es

JUNO22Y BnuaAdy Buisnoy

S9AI9SaY payleune]
Buipnjour asuejeg pun4 |elauas)
aoueleg pun4 [BJaus9

PaAI90aY SJUBIS) JUSWUIBAOS)

SOAI9SY S0UBUIBAOD)

sonIasay Aleuonalosiq
:SOAIBSOY BNUBASY 9 paylewle]
sanIesay [eyde) 49 paylew.e]
pund |eJaua9)

:MOJoq PUE JUSWS)E]S SOAISSSY Ul JUBWBAO|\ 8Y} Ul pa|ielap 8le SaAIasal 8|gesn S,[Iouno) a8y} Ul SJUSWSAON

SAANYISTAY F19vSNve

141



35.UNUSABLE RESERVES

At 31 March

2024

£'000
125,958
203,462
(224)
819

(240)

10
(430)

Revaluation Reserve

Capital Adjustment Account
Pensions Reserve

Collection Fund Adjustment Account

Accumulated Absences Adjustment Account

Deferred Capital Receipts
Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve

329,355

a. Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in
the value of its Property, Plant & Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with

accumulated gains are:

¢ Re-valued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost
e Used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation or
e Disposed of and the gains are realised

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date the
Reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the

balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.

2023/24
£'000
109,714 Balance at start of year
19,023 Upward revaluation of assets
Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses
(811) not charged to the Surplus/Deficit on Provision of
Services
127 926 Surplus/Deficit on revaluation of non-current assets not
’ posted to Surplus/Deficit on Provision of Services
Difference between fair value depreciation and
(1,629) . . L
historical cost depreciation
(339) Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped
(1,968) Amounts written off to the Capital Adjustment Account
125,958 Balance at end of year
South Kesteven District Council 45

142

At 31 March
2025
£'000

137,897
212,662
(191)
1,357

(209)

9
(381)

351,144

2024/25
£'000
125,958
19,568

(3,589)

141,937

(3,832)
(208)

(4,040)

137,897




b. Capital Adjustment Account (CAA)

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the
acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The
account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation,
impairment losses and amortisation are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert
current value figures to a historical cost basis). The Account is credited with the amounts set
aside by the Council as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement.

The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and also
contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant & Equipment before 1 April 2007,
the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.

South Kesteven District Council 46

143



35b CAA Continued

2023/24
£'000
202,892 Balance at start of year
Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure
debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure Statement
(8,004) Charges for depreciation of non-current assets
(9,331)  Charges for impairment of non-current assets
(47) Revaluation losses on Property, Plant & Equipment
Revaluation gains reversing previous impairments
341 charged to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
Statement
(350)  Amortisation of intangible assets
(2,053) Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute
Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or
(2,823) sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement
180,625
1,629  Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve
Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets
182,254 .
consumed in the year
Capital financing applied in the year
3113 Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new
’ capital expenditure
Use of the Major Repairs reserve to finance new capital
8,027 )
expenditure
Capital grants and contributions credited to the
4,798 Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement that
have been applied to capital financing
087 Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment
charged against the General Fund & HRA balances
3,817  Self-financed capital expenditure
(1,525) Long Term Debtor written down
Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund and
2,748
HRA balances
21,265
Movements in the market value of Investment Properties
(567)  debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure Statement
Adoption of IFRS16 Right of Use Asset credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
203,462 Balance at end of year
South Kesteven District Council 47

144

2024/25
£'000
203,462

(8,547)
(15,345)

(2,032)

193

(408)
(5,520)

(3,385)

168,418
3,832

172,250

5,364

12,831

9,635

282

5,861
(27)

3,469

37,415

(488)

3,485

212,662




c. Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements
for accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with
statutory provisions. The Council accounts for post-employment benefits in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees
accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing
assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However,
statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Council makes
employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is
directly responsible. The balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial
shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the Council
has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that the funding will have
been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
(251) Balance at start of year (224)

(1,592) Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/ (1,243)
(asset)
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited

(2,507)  or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of (3,192)
Services

Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments
to pensioners payable in the year

(224) Balance at end of year (191)

4,126 4,468

d. Collection Fund Adjustment Account

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition
of council tax and non-domestic rates income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as it falls due from council tax payers and business rates payers compared with the
statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the General Fund from the Collection
Fund.

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
(473) Balance at start of year 819

Amount by which council tax income credited to the
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement is

(47) different from council tax income calculated in 43
accordance with statute
Amount by which NNDR income credited to the CIES is
1,339 different from NNDR income calculated for the year in 495
accordance with statutory requirements
819 Balance at end of year 1,357
South Kesteven District Council 48

145



e. Accumulated Absences Account

The Accumulating Compensated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would
otherwise arise on the General Fund Balance from accruing for compensated absences
earned but not taken in the year e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31 March.
Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund Balance is neutralised
by transfers to or from the account.

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
(204) Balance at start of year (240)

Amounts accrued at the end of the current year
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement on an

(36) accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in 31
the year in accordance with statute
(240) Balance at end of year (209)

f. Deferred Capital Receipts

The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non-
current assets but for which cash settlement has yet to take place. Under statutory
arrangements, the Council does not treat these gains as usable for financing new capital
expenditure until they are backed by cash receipts. When the deferred cash settlement
eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
10 Balance at start of year 10
0 Repayments received in year (1)
10 Balance at end of year 9
South Kesteven District Council 49

146



g- Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve

The Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council
arising from increases in the value of its investments which are measured at fair value
through profit and loss. The balance is reduced when investments with accumulated gains
are:

- Revalued downwards or impaired and gains are lost

- Disposed of and the gains are realised

Statutory override on pooled investments
The Council holds £3m of pooled investments. The Council is using the temporary statutory

override agreed by MHCLG (applicable up to 1 April 2029) to account for any changes in the
fair value on its pooled investments.

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
(367) Balance at start of year (430)
(63) Revaluation of Investments 49
(430) (381)
Accumulated gains or losses on assets sold and maturing
0 assets written out to the CIES as part of Other Investment 0
Income
(430) Balance at end of year (381)
South Kesteven District Council 50

147



NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

36.CASH FLOW STATEMENT — OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The adjustments to the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-cash
movements can be analysed as follows;

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
8,004 Depreciation 8,547
9,363 Impairment & downward valuations 17,184
350 Amortisation 408
(1,363) Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors 2,972
1,567 (Increase)/Decrease in Debtors (2,029)
(1) (Increase)/Decrease in Stock 1
(1,619) Movement in pension liability (1,276)

Carrying amount of non-current assets and non-current

2,823 assets held for sale, sold or de-recognised 3,385

(1,092) Other non-9a§h items charged to the net surplus or deficit (3.213)
on the provision of services

18,032 Adjustment to surplus or deficit on the provision of 25,979

services for noncash movements

Adjustments to the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services that are investing or
financing activities:

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
(2,957) Eroceeds from the sale qf property, plant and equipment, (4.744)
investment property and intangible assets
4.777) Other items for which the cash effects are investing or (13,566)

financing cash flows

Adjustment for items included in the net surplus or
(7,734) deficit on the provision of services that are investing (18,310)
and financing activities

The cash flows for operating activities include the following items:

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
3,616 Interest Received 4,436
(2,238) Interest Paid (2,288)
1,378 2,148
South Kesteven District Council 51

148



37.CASH FLOW STATEMENT - INVESTING ACTIVITIES

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
(17,595) Purchase of proper_ty, plant and equipment, investment (31,031)
property and intangible assets
(52,000) Purchase of short-term and long-term investments (49,000)
(1,798) Other payments for investing activities 0
2,057 Proceeds from the sale qf property, plant and equipment, 4,745
investment property and intangible assets
48,000 Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments 52,000
12,013 Other receipts from investing activities 13,214
(8,423) Net cash flows from investing activities (10,072)
38.CASH FLOW STATEMENT - FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash flow Financing Activities:
2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
0  Cashreceipts of short- and long-term borrowing 0
(3,222) Repayments of short- and long-term borrowing (3,222)
(369) Other payments for financing activities 992
(3,591) Net cash flows from financing activities (2,230)

South Kesteven District Council 52

149



OTHER DISCLOSURE NOTES

39. INTEREST IN OTHER COMPANIES AND ENTITIES

South Kesteven District Council wholly owns LeisureSK Limited. Group accounts have been
produced for LeisureSK Limited and these are available on page 65 onwards.

The Council previously had two other wholly owned subsidiaries - Gravitas Housing Limited
which was dissolved on 12" November 2024 and EnvironmentSK Limited which was dissolved
on 11" March 2025.

40.EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS

The Council has incurred the following costs in relation to the external audit of the Statement
of Accounts, certification of grant claims and other audit work. The Council has not made any
payments for non-audit services to its external auditors and not incurred any costs for statutory
inspections.

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
Fees payable to the external auditors with regard to external
151 : . . . . 166
audit services carried out by the appointed auditor.
o7 Fees payable to the external auditors for the certification of 57
grant claims.
12 Fees payable to external auditors for the certification of 6
returns
190 199

41.RELATED PARTIES

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties — bodies or
individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or
influenced by the Council. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent
to which the Council might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might
have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Council.

Central Government has effective control (significant influence) over the general operations
of the Council. It is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Council
operates, provides the majority of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of
many of the transactions the Council has with third parties e.g. housing benefits. Details of
transactions with government departments are set out in Notes 11 and 12 relating to grant
income.

Members of the Council have direct control over the Council's financial and operating
policies. Guidance has been issued to make Members, Chief Officers and senior managers
aware of the requirements to declare all interests relevant to the Council including interests of
families, partners and entities controlled by them. Also all Members, Chief Officers and senior
managers have been requested to complete a Related Party Transaction declaration. Upon
analysis of completed returns no material items were identified that required separate
disclosure. The Council maintains a Register of Interests which is complete and up to date
on the basis of information received.

South Kesteven District Council 53

150



Wholly owned companies of the Council have members and senior officers on the board of
Directors. As at the 315 March 2025 the boards were constituted as follows:

Mr D P Monkhouse

Ms D A Roberts (Resigned 1 April 2025)

Mr P B Sutton (Appointed 26 April 2024 and resigned 1 April 2025)
Mr P J Knowles (Appointed 26 April 2024)

Ms P Ellis (Appointed 26 April 2024)

Mr D Scott (Appointed 31 March 2025)

Precept & Levying bodies, town councils, parish councils and drainage boards levy demands
on the Council Tax, and the transactions are detailed below.

Payments made during the year were as follows:

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
2,073 Town and Parish Councils 2,398

172 Upper Witham Drainage Board 199
81 Black Sluice Drainage Board 88
649 Welland and Deepings Drainage Board 688
2,975 3,374

42. AUTHORISATION OF ACCOUNTS FOR ISSUE

The date that the Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue was 23 February 2026. This
is the date up to which events after the Balance Sheet date have been considered. The name
of the person who gave the authorisation was Richard Wyles (Chief Finance Officer).

South Kesteven District Council 54

151



HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 MARCH 2025

The HRA Income and Expenditure Statement shows the economic cost in the year of providing
housing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the
amount to be funded from rents and government grants. Authorities charge rents to cover
expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost.
The increase or decrease in the year, on the basis on which rents are raised, is shown in the

Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Statement.

2023/24
£'000

Income
Gross Rental Income
(26,982) - Dwelling Rents
(282) - Non-Dwelling Rents
(831) Charges for Services and Facilities
(77) Other Income
(28,172) Total Income
Expenditure
9,891 Repairs and Maintenance
4,418 Supervision and Management
58 Rent, rates, taxes and other charges
431 Increase/(Decrease) in Prov'n for Doubtful Debts
Depreciation and impairment of Non-Current
14,110
Assets
40 Debt Management Costs
28,948

776 Net Cost of HRA Services

2,759 HRA share of Corporate and Democratic Core
Net Cost of HRA Services as included in the
3,535 whole authority Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement
(371) (Gain)/loss on sale of HRA assets
Other operating income (Right to Buy Discount
(24) Repaid)
2,237 Interest payable and similar charges
(2,302) Interest and Investment Income
(24) Investment Property Income and Expenditure
Pension Interest Costs and Expected Return on
(74)
Assets
(3,620) Recognised capital grants and contributions
(643) (Surplus)/Deficit for the year on HRA services

South Kesteven District Council 55

152

2024/25
£'000

(28,729)
(284)
(1,037)
(68)
(30,118)

12,472
5,282

(52)
380

22,369

38
40,489
10,371

2,759
13,130

(1,025)
(16)

2,138
(1,457)
(46)

(21)

(3,304)
9,399



MOVEMENT ON THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT STATEMENT

2023/24
£'000

(1,763)

(643)

(2,378)

(3,021)

2,488

(2,296)

Balance on the HRA at the end of the
previous year

(Surplus)/Deficit for the year on the HRA
Income & Expenditure Statement

Adjustments between Accounting Basis and
Funding Basis under statute

Net (increase) or decrease before
transfers to or from reserves

Transfers to or (from) reserves
Balance on HRA at the end of the current
year

South Kesteven District Council

153

Note

56

2024/25
£'000

(2,296)

9,399

(9,440)

(41)

764
(1,573)



NOTES TO THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

The Housing Revenue Account reflects a statutory obligation to maintain a revenue account
for local Council housing provision in accordance with part 6 of the Local Government and
Housing Act 1989. The Act sets the framework for "ring fencing" the Housing Revenue Account
(HRA). The account has to be self-financing and there is a legal prohibition on cross subsidy
to or from the General Fund.

1. HOUSING STOCK

The Council was responsible for managing on average 5,839 dwellings during 2024/25. The
housing stock and changes during the year are as follows:

At 1 April . Disposals At 31 March

2024  Additions e les 2025
Rentable Stock
- Houses 2,993 5 (28) 2,970
- Bungalows 1,518 1 (4) 1,515
- Flats 1,310 19 (1) 1,328
Shared Ownership 22 0 0 22
Total 5,843 25 (33) 5,835

South Kesteven District Council 57

154



2. LAND HOUSES AND OTHER PROPERTY
Analysis of Housing Fixed Assets

The vacant possession value of dwellings at 31 March 2025 was £822.777m (£797.173m at 31 March 2024).
Each council dwelling owned, in full or part, by the Council has been valued by the Valuation Office Agency
in accordance with the guidance issued by MHCLG. The vacant possession value of dwellings must be
adjusted to reflect the social housing status of local authority dwellings i.e. that social housing is available to
tenants at less than open market rents. The predetermined adjustment factor for social housing in the East
Midlands is 42%.

Operational Assets Non Operational

Assets
2 £
- o =
-g £ o = 3 .E’ Total

5 5 8 sE © ¢ 5%

c a2 o2 ESt .-

= = 5 0 > "(;; = 0 w k]

° o 2 = O 0o 22 ® C

3 £ 5 o W >58 )

a Oom > o3 SEna <O

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000

Cost or Valuation at 1 April 2024 339,572 4,278 1,388 498 1,687 347,423
Additions 19,844 0 0 0 2,772 22,616
Revaluatlon mgreases/(decreases) recognised 10.260 491 0 0 0 10,681
in the Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised
in the Surplus/Deficit on Provision of Services (17,250) (28) 0 18 0 (17,260)
Derecognition - Disposals (2,231) 0 0 0 (2,231)
Derecognition - Other 0 0 0 0 (8) (8)
Assets reclassified 0 0 0 0 0 0
Assets reclassified to/from Assets Under
Construction 745 0 0 0 (745) 0
Gross Book Value as at 31 March 2025 350,940 4,671 1,388 516 3,706 361,221
Depreciation & Impairments
At 1 April 2024 (61) (1) (1,097) 0 0 (1,159)
Depreciation charge (4,825) (229) (35) (5) 0 (5,094)
Depreciation written out to the revaluation 4,584 174 0 5 0 4,763
reserve
Depreciation written out to the CI&E 15,363 55 0 0 0 15,418
Impairment losses/(reversals) recognised in
the Surplus/Deficit on Provision of Services (15,137) 0 0 0 0 (15,137)
Derecognition - Disposals 0 0 0 0 0 0
At 31 March 2025 (76) (1 (1,132) 0 0 (1,209)
Balance Sheet Amount at 31 March 2025 350,864 4,670 256 516 3,706 360,012
Balance Sheet Amount at 31 March 2024 339,511 4,277 291 498 1,687 346,264
South Kesteven District Council 58

155



3. HRA REVALUATION LOSS

When assets are re-valued, the increase or decrease is an “unrealised gain or loss” until the asset is sold.
These unrealised gains and losses are held in the revaluation reserve. If an asset is revalued upward, then
in subsequent years re-valued downward, the revaluation loss is set against the original gain in the reserve,
so reducing it. Once any gains in the reserve are reduced to zero, any further loss must be charged as
expenditure to the Housing Revenue Account in the year.

Due to accounting rules, the Revaluation Reserve was set up with an opening balance of zero at 1 April 2007.
The closing position on the Reserve at 31 March 2025 therefore only shows revaluation gains accumulated
since 1 April 2007 together with depreciation adjustments to comply with accounting rules. Any revaluation
gains (and losses) on non-current assets prior to 1 April 2007 are accounted for in the Capital Adjustment
Account.

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £000
4,881 Depreciation 5,094
(216) Revaluation Loss/(Gain) 1,843
9,228 Impairment Losses 15,137

13,893 22,074

4. MAJOR REPAIRS RESERVE

The Major Repairs Reserve is maintained to meet HRA capital expenditure. Movements on the Reserve were:

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
19,553  Opening balance on the Major Repairs Reserve 18,718

Transfer to/ (from) the Major Repairs Reserve

4,881 Transfer from HRA equal to depreciation 5,094
2,311  Additional contribution from HRA 4,335
(8,027) Financing of Capital Expenditure (12,831)
18,718 Closing balance on the Major Repairs Reserve 15,316
South Kesteven District Council 59

156



5. FINANCING CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The capital expenditure on land, houses and other assets in the HRA together with its financing is shown
below:

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
Expenditure

13,208 Council Dwellings 19,844
19 Plant and Equipment 0
565 Intangible Assets 154
1,024 Assets Under Construction 2,772
14,816 Total 22,770

Financed from:

8,027 Major Repairs Reserve 12,831
1,160 Capital Receipts 4,598
2,684 HRA Earmarked Reserves 2,036
2,945 Capital Grants and Contributions 3,305
14,816 Total 22,770

Supported Capital Expenditure allowances are issued by the Government as part of The Prudential Code
for Capital Finance in Local Authorities.

6. CAPITAL RECEIPTS

The sale of HRA assets during the year is detailed in the following table.

Receipt in

Year

£'000
Sale of Land 0
Sale of Vehicles 0
Sale of Council Dwellings 3,256
Repayment of discounts 16
Total 3,272
South Kesteven District Council 60

157



7. ANALYSIS OF RECONCILING ITEMS IN MOVEMENT ON THE HOUSING REVENUE
ACCOUNT STATEMENT

Movement on the Housing Revenue Account

2023/24 Statement 2024/25
£'000 £'000
Adjustments between Accounting and Funding
Basis:
(506) IAS 19 (664)
839 - Pension Costs Charged to Rent Income 934
(9,228) - Non-Enhancing Capital Expenditure (15,137)
6,169 Capital Expenditure 6,527
372 Gains/losses on disposal of non current 1018
assets
216 Revaluation gains/(losses) on PPE (1,843)
(231) Depreciation of non-current assets (282)
(9) Compensated absences 7
(2,378) (9,440)
Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves:
2,465 - Transfers to/(from) reserves 764
2,465 764
8. RENT ARREARS
An analysis of rent arrears is shown below:
£'000 £'000
1,515 Current Tenants 1,761
1,122 Former Tenants 1,369
2,637 Gross Rent Arrears 3,130

(1,698) Impairment Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debt (2,078)

South Kesteven District Council 61

158



COLLECTION FUND INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

The Collection Fund is an agent’s statement that reflects the statutory obligation for billing authorities to
maintain a separate Collection Fund. The statement shows the transactions of the billing authority in relation
to the collection from taxpayers and distribution to local authorities and the Government of council tax and
non-domestic rates.

2023/24
Business Council
Rates Tax Total
£'000 £000 £'000
Income
0 99,502 99,502 Council Tax Payers
38,181 0 38,181 Business Ratepayers
Apportionment of Previous Year Deficit -
0 0 0 Central Government
0 0 0 South Kesteven District Council
0 0 0 Lincolnshire County Council
0 0 0 Lincolnshire Police & Crime Commissioner
38,181 99,502 137,683 Total Income
Expenditure
39,822 99,421 139,243 Precepts and Demands
174 0 174 Costs of Collection
(1,550) 0 (1,550) Transitional Protection Payment
Bad and doubtful Debts -
295 266 561 Write Offs
148 144 292 Provisions
(4,182) 0 (4,182) Appeals
15 0 15 Interest
Apportionment of Previous Year Surplus -
16 0 16 Central Government
13 11 24 South Kesteven District Council
3 72 75 Lincolnshire County Council
0 14 14 Lincolnshire Police & Crime Commissioner
34,754 99,928 134,682 Total Expenditure
3,427 (426) 3,001 Movement on Fund
(1,252) -126 (1,378) Balance at the Beginning of the Year
2,175 (552) 1,623 Surplus/(Deficit) on Fund at End of Year
Allocated to -
1,080 0 1,080 Central Government
879 (60) 819  South Kesteven District Council
216 (412) (196) Lincolnshire County Council
0 (80) (80) Lincolnshire Police & Crime Commissioner
2,175 (552) 1,623
South Kesteven District Council 62

159

2024/25
Business Council
Rates Tax Total
£'000 £'000 £'000

0 105,701 105,701
42,292 0 42,292
501 0 501
401 31 432
100 209 309
0 40 40
43,294 105,981 149,275
42,357 105,138 147,495
175 0 175
(569) 0 (569)
325 258 583
4) 190 186
(159) 0 (159)
19 0 19

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0
42,144 105,586 147,730
1,150 395 1,545
2,175 (552) 1,623
3,325 (157) 3,168
1,626 0 1,626
1,374 (18) 1,356
325 (116) 209
0 (23) (23)
3,325 (157) 3,168




NOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUND
1. COUNCIL TAX

Council Tax income derives from charges raised according to the value of residential properties that have
been classified into eight Valuation Bands (A to H). Individual charges are calculated by estimating the
amount of income required to be taken from the Collection Fund by Lincolnshire County Council, Office of
the Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire and South Kesteven District Council together with each
parish requirement and dividing this by the Council Tax base i.e. the number of properties in each valuation
band converted to an equivalent number of band D dwellings and adjusted for discounts.

The Council Tax base for 2024/25 increased to 49,710.1 (49,329.0 in 2023/24)

The Council Tax base was calculated as follows:

Estimated No. of Taxable Band D
Band Properties After Effect of Ratio Equivalent
Discounts Dwellings
A 13,554.14 6/9 9,036.1
B 12,561.70 7/9 9,770.2
C 10,302.72 8/9 9,158.0
D 8,714.61 9/9 8,714.6
E 5,602.40 11/9 6,847.4
F 2,911.16 13/9 4,205.0
G 1,061.97 15/9 1,770.0
H 72.90 18/9 145.8
Band A entitled to Disabled
Relief Reduction 21.70 59 12.1
49,659.2
Ministry of Defence Properties 50.9
Council Tax Base 49,710.1

2. BUSINESS RATES

Under this scheme SKDC keeps the total non-domestic rates due, less certain reliefs and deductions and
then redistributes the rates collected based on estimates at the start of the year. The redistribution of the
central and local shares is based on the ratio of 50:40:10 for Central Government, SKDC and Lincolnshire
County Council. The business rates retention scheme is designed to encourage economic growth and
incentivise Councils by allowing them to keep a proportion of any business rates growth achieved during the
year.

Under the arrangements for Non-Domestic Rates, the Council collects rates for its area based upon local
rateable values (determined by the Valuation Office Agency, an executive agency of HM Revenue &
Customs) multiplied by the multiplier (determined by Government). For 2024/25 there are two multipliers:

Full 54.6p (51.2p for 2023/24)
Small Business 49.9p (49.9p for 2023/24)

The total Non-Domestic Rateable Value at 31 March 2025 was £114.692m (31 March 2024 £114.342m).

South Kesteven District Council 63

160



3. PRECEPTS AND DEMANDS

2023/24
£'000 £'000 £'000
Council Tax Business Total
Rates
0 19,673 19,673
74,172 3,935 78,107
14,367 0 14,367
10,882 16,214 27,096
99,421 39,822 139,243

South Kesteven District Council

Central Government

Lincolnshire County Council

Lincs Police & Crime
Commissioner

South Kesteven District Council

64
161

2024/25
£'000 £'000 £'000
Council Tax Business Total
Rates
0 20,997 20,997
78,477 4,199 82,676
15,122 0 15,122
11,539 17,161 28,700
105,138 42,357 147,495




STATEMENT OF GROUP ACCOUNTS

INTRODUCTION

The statement of group accounts consolidates South Kesteven District Council accounts with those of its
subsidiary LeisureSK Limited — Company Registration No.12888724 (England and Wales).

LeisureSK Limited was formed to deliver the Council’s Leisure Management contract. The company is
wholly owned by the Council and the aggregation of accounts has been completed on a line-by-line basis
with intra-group transactions removed.

Group accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024/25 (the Code) published by the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA).

The aim of the statement of group accounts is to provide the reader with an overall view of the material
economic activities of the Group. It provides a summary of the group’s financial position and details of
material items that have impacted on the accounts during the year. The same accounting policies have
been applied to both the Council and Group Accounts.

The main differences between the Group and single entity accounts are seen in the balance sheet:
e £4.2m additional expenditure

e £3.9m additional income

South Kesteven District Council 65

162



GROUP MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

This statement shows the movement in the year on the reserves held by the Group, analysed into
usable and unusable reserves. The Total Comprehensive Income & Expenditure line shows the

true economic cost of providing the Groups services, this is further detailed in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts required to be
charged to the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account for Council Tax setting and dwelling

rent setting purposes.

Total
Total Usable Unusable Total Authority LeisureSK Group
Reserves Reserves Reserves Ltd Reserves
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 31 March 2024 brought forward (75,899) (329,354) (405,253) 473  (404,779)
Movement in reserves during 2024/25
Total Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure 1,906 (14,736) (12,830) (90) (12,920)
Transfers between Reserves (27) 27 0 0 0.00
Adjustments between accounting basis &
funding basis under regulations 7,079 (7,079) 0 0 0.00
(Increase) or decrease in 2024/25 8,958 (21,788) (12,830) (90) (12,920)
Balance at 31 March 2025 carried forward (66,941) (351,142) (418,083) 383 (417,699)

Total Usable Unusable Total Authority Gravitas  LeisureSK Total Group

Reserves Reserves Reserves Housing Ltd Ltd Reserves
Restated £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 31 March 2023 brought forward (74,869) (311,321) (386,190) 319 233 (385,638)
Movement in reserves during 2023/24
Total Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure (2,443) (16,620) (19,063) (319) 240 (19,142)
Transfers between Reserves (406) 406 0 0 0 0
Adjustments between accounting basis &
funding basis under regulations 1,819 (1,819) 0 0 0 0
(Increase) or decrease in 2023/24 (1,030) (18,033) (19,063) (319) 240 (19,142)
Balance at 31 March 2024 carried forward (75,899) (329,354) (405,253) 0 473 (404,780)
South Kesteven District Council 66

163



GROUP COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

This statement shows the accounting costs of providing services in the year.

2023/24
8o 3 e
Q3 9 ® 3
035 0, zZ35
S SE S8
og 08 09
o X o O o X
ouw (U= ou
£000 £000 £000
5804  (1,876) 3,928 Corporate, Governance & Public Protection Service
50,984  (53,595)  (2,611) Finance, Property & Waste Services
14,995  (8,999) 5,996 Growth & Culture
17,897  (3,590) 14,307 Housing & Projects
89,680 (68,060) 21,620 Cost Of Services
Other Operating Expenditure
229 0 229 (Gain)/Loss Disposal of Fixed Assets
2,975 0 2,975 Precepts & Levies
132 (24) 108 Other Operating Income and Expenditure
3,336 (24) 3,312
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
2,237 0 2,237 Interest Payable on Debt
0 (353) (353) Net Interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)
0 (3917)  (3917) Interest & Investment Income
0 (268) (268) Income & Expenditure and Movement in Fair Value of
Investment Property
389 0 389 Movement in the value of property fund income
2,626 (4,538 (1,912
500 (25,735) (25,235) Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income
(2,215)  (Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services
(18,519) (Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets
1,592 Remeasurement of Defined Pension Liability
(16,927) Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
(19,142) TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME & EXPENDITURE
South Kesteven District Council 67

164

2024/25
%0 @ o
Q3 g o3
03 0, Z3
S5 SE S5
0o 08 oa
o X - O o X
ou (OJ= ouw
£000 £000 £000
6,403 (2,502) 3,901
59,322 (54,101) 5,221
19,916 (10,142) 9,774
20,403 (2,934) 17,469
106,044 (69,679) 36,365
0 (1,166) (1,166)
3,374 0 3,374
0 (16) (16)
3,374 (1,182) 2,192
2,138 0 2,138
0 97 97)
0 (3,981) (3,981)
192 0 192
0 (49) (49)
2,330 (4,127) (1,797)
333 (35,277) (34,944)
1,816
(15,979)
1,243
(14,736)
(12,920)



GROUP BALANCE SHEET

The Group Balance Sheet summarises the financial position of the Council and its subsidiary, as a
whole. It shows the value of group assets and liabilities at the end of the financial year.

At 31 Note At 31
March 2024 March 2025
£'000 £'000
415,481 Property Plant & Equipment 436,891
690 Heritage Assets 690
12,785 Investment Property 12,158
946 Intangible Assets 936
2,569 Long Term Investments 2,619
71 Long Term Debtors 9
432,542 Long Term Assets 453,303
490 Current Assets Held for Sale 0
52,924 Short Term Investments 49,621
25 Inventories 40
6,128 Short Term Debtors 8,079
18,462 Cash and Cash Equivalents G1 11,867
78,029 Current Assets 69,607
(3,244) Short Term Borrowing (3,242)
(12,464) Short Term Creditors (15,939)
(684) Provisions 646
(16,392) Current Liabilities (19,827)
(283) Provisions (154)
(79,771) Long Term Borrowing (76,547)
(224) Other Long Term Liabilities (191)
(9,123) Capital Grants Receipts in Advance (8,492)
(89,401) Long Term Liabilities (85,384)
404,778 Net Assets 417,699
£'000 £'000
75,423 Usable Reserves 66,557
329,355 Unusable Reserves 351,142
404,778 Total Reserves 417,699
South Kesteven District Council 68

165



GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Group Cash Flow Statement summarises the cash flows of the Council and its subsidiary
during the year.

2023/24 Notes 2024/25
£'000 £'000
Operating Activities
2,215 Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services (1,816)
18,249 Adju§tments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of G2 05,871
services for non-cash movements
Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit
(8,528) on the provision of services that are investing and (18,310)
financing activities
11,936 Net cash flows from Operating Activities 5,745
Investing Activities
(8,453) Net cash flows from Investing Activities (10,109)
(3,590) Net cash flows from Financing Activities (2,230)
(107) Net increase or (decrease) in cash and cash (6,594)
18.568 Cash gnd ca§h equivalents at the beginning of the 18.461
reporting period
18.461 Ca§h and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting 11,867
period
107 6,594
South Kesteven District Council 69

166



NOTE G1 - CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

At 31 March 2024

£'000
340 Cash held by the authority
(299) Bank current accounts
18,420 Short Term Deposits
18,461 Total Cash & Cash Equivalents

NOTE G2 — Cash Flow

2023/24
£'000

8,027
9,363
349
(1,088)
1,482
10

(1,619)

2,823

(1,098)

18,249

South Kesteven District Council

Depreciation

Impairment & downward valuations
Amortisation

Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors
(Increase)/Decrease in Debtors
(Increase)/Decrease in Stock

Movement in pension liability

At 31 March 2025
£'000
1
1,099
10,767

11,867

2024/25
£'000

8,578
17,184
408
2,881
(2,061)

(15)

(1,276)

Carrying amount of non-current assets and
non-current assets held for sale, sold or de-

recognised

3,385

Other non-cash items charged to the net

surplus or deficit on the provision of

services

70
167

(3,213)

25,871




ACCOUNTING POLICIES
GENERAL PRINCIPLES

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’'s transactions for the 2024/25 financial year and its
position at the year-end of 31 March 2025. The Council is required to prepare an annual Statement of
Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. These regulations require the Statement of Accounts
to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024/25 and supported by International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by
the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments.

ACCRUALS OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received.
In particular:

¢ Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Council transfers the significant risks and rewards
of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential associated
with the transaction will flow to the Council.

o Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can measure reliably the
percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential
associated with the transaction will flow to the Council.

e Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed — where there is a gap between the date
supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet.

e Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are recorded as
expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made.

¢ Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as income
and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument, rather than
the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.

o Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor
or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the
balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be
collected.

e The impact of IFRS15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers has been considered and deemed to
have no material impact.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on
notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that mature in 30 days or
less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant
risk of change in value.

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Council's cash management.

South Kesteven District Council 71

168



Iv.

V.

VL

CHARGES TO REVENUE FOR NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record the cost
of holding non-current assets during the year.

e Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service.

e Revaluation and Impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no accumulated
gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the loss can be written off.

¢ Amortisation of intangible assets attributable to the service.

The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or
amortisation. However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards the reduction in
its overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council
in accordance with statutory guidance. Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisation are
therefore replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance by way of an adjusting transaction with
the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.

COUNCIL TAX AND NON-DOMESTIC RATES

Billing authorities act as agents, collecting council tax and non-domestic rates (NDR) on behalf of major
preceptors (including government for NDR) and, as, principals, collecting council tax and NDR for themselves.
Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate fund (i.e. the Collection Fund) for the
collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of council tax and NDR. Under the legislative framework
for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major preceptors and central government share proportionately
the risks and rewards that the amount of council tax and NDR collected could be less or more than predicted.

Accounting for Council TAX and NDR

The council tax and NDR included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the council’s
share of accrued income for the year. However, regulations determine the amount of council tax and NDR
that must be included in the Council’s General Fund. Therefore, the difference between the income included
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the amount required by regulation to be
credited to the General Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as a
reconciling item in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The Balance Sheet includes the council’s share of the end of year balances in respect of council tax and
NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowances for doubtful debts, overpayments and prepayments and
appeals.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Benefits Payable during Employment

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year end. They include
such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary
benefits for current employees. These expenses are charged on an accruals basis to the relevant service
line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate an officer’s
employment before the normal retirement date or an officer's decision to accept voluntary redundancy in
exchange for those benefits. They are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate service, or where
applicable, to the Non Distributed Costs line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at the
earlier of when the Council can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the council recognises
costs for a restructuring.

South Kesteven District Council 72

169



Post-Employment Benefits

Employees of the Council are members of the Local Government Pension Fund, administered by Lincolnshire
County Council. The scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions),
earned as employees worked for the Council.

The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the revenue account when employees earn them,
rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions.

Local Government Pension Scheme
The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefit scheme:

e The liabilities of the Lincolnshire County Council pension scheme attributable to the Council are included
in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method — i.e. an assessment of the
future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based
on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and projected earnings for current
employees.

e The assets of the Lincolnshire County Council pension fund attributable to the Council are included in the
balance sheet at their fair value.

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:
e  Service Cost comprising:

- Current service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year —
allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the revenue accounts of
services for which the employees worked

- Past service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or curtailment
whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years — debited to the Surplus or Deficit on
the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non
Distributed Costs

o Net interest on the net defined pension liability (asset) i.e. net interest expense for the Council — the
change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that arises from the passage of time
charged to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement. Remeasurement comprising:

- The return on plan assets — excluding amounts included in net interest on the defined benefit liability
(asset) charged to the Pension Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

- Actuarial gains and losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not
coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have
updated their assumption — charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure.

- Contributions paid to the Lincolnshire County Council pension fund — cash paid as employer's
contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to be charged with
the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount
calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.

In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are transfers to and from the Pensions
Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the
cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.
The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the

South Kesteven District Council 73
170



General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as
benefits are earned by employees.

Discretionary Benefits

The Council has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early
retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are accrued in
the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the
Local Government Pension Scheme.

VII. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost.
Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied
by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally
recognised.

For all of the borrowing that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is
the outstanding principle repayable (plus accrued interest) and interest charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Account is the amount payable for the year in the loan agreement.

Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that reflects the
business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow characteristics. There are three main
classes of financial assets measured at:

e amortised cost
e fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and
e fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Council’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows. Financial assets are
therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose contractual payments are not solely payment
of principal and interest (ie where the cash flows do not take the form of a basic debt instrument).

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value.
They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) for interest
receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for
Statements the instrument. For most of the financial assets held by the Council, this means that the amount
presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest
credited to the CIES is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.

Interest is credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES at a marginally
higher effective rate of interest than the rate receivable from the voluntary organisations, with the difference
serving to increase the amortised cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions require that the
impact of soft loans on the General Fund Balance is the interest receivable for the financial year — the
reconciliation of amounts debited and credited to the CIES to the net gain required against the General Fund
Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement
in Reserves Statement.

South Kesteven District Council 74

171



Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to the Financing
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES.

Expected Credit Loss Model

The Council recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised cost, either on
a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model also applies to lease receivables and contract
assets. Only lifetime losses are recognised for trade receivables (debtors) held by the Council.

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might not take place
because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a crucial part in assessing losses.
Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument was initially recognised, losses are assessed on
a lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased significantly or remains low, losses are assessed on the
basis of 12-month expected losses.

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured and
carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as they arrive in the Surplus or Deficit on
the Provision of Services.

The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following techniques:

¢ instruments with quoted market prices — the market price
e other instruments with fixed and determinable payments — discounted cash flow analysis.

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following three levels:
e Level 1 inputs — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the Council can
access at the measurement date.

e Level 2 inputs — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset, either directly or indirectly.

e Level 3 inputs — unobservable inputs for the asset.

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to the Financing
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

VIIl. GOVERNMENT GRANTS & OTHER CONTRIBUTIONS

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party contributions and
donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable assurance that:

¢ The Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and

e The grants or contributions will be received

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contributions have been satisfied. Conditions are
stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potentially embodied in the asset in the
form of the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic
benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor.

Money advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in the
Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant
service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income (non
ring-fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

South Kesteven District Council 75

172



IX. HERITAGE ASSETS

Heritage assets are held or maintained principally for their contribution to knowledge and culture. They are
initially recognised at cost if this is available. If cost is not available, values are only included in the Balance
Sheet where the cost of obtaining valuation is not disproportionate to the benefit derived. For most of the
Council’s heritage assets, insurance valuations are used. Where no market exists or the asset is deemed to be
unique, and it is not practicable to obtain a valuation, the asset is not recognised in the Balance Sheet but
disclosed in the notes to the accounts.

Heritage assets are depreciated over their useful life if this can be established. If an asset is considered to
have an indefinite life, no depreciation is charged. Disposals, revaluation gains and losses and impairments
of heritage assets are dealt with in accordance with the Council’s policies relating to property, plant and
equipment.

The cost of maintenance and repair of heritage assets is written off in the year incurred.
X. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable and controlled
by the Council (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that future economic benefits or
service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the Council.

Expenditure on the development of the Council’'s website is not capitalised.

Intangible Assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of the assets
held by the Council can be determined by reference to an active market. In practice, no intangible asset held
by the Council meets this criterion, and they are therefore carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount
of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the asset might be impaired — any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gains or losses arising on the disposal or
abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure Line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, amortisation,
impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact on the General Fund
Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in
Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than
£10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve.

The useful life of intangible assets is assessed by the Chief Finance Officer at the time of acquisition.
Intangible assets are derecognised when no future economic benefits are expected from them.

Xl. INTERESTS IN COMPANIES AND OTHER ENTITIES

The Council has a material interest in LeisureSK Ltd. The nature of this relationship has been assessed and
is deemed to be a subsidiary and as a result produces Group Accounts for LesiureSK Ltd.

XIl. INVENTORIES AND LONG TERM CONTRACTS
Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the provision of
services with the value of works and services received under the contract during the financial year.

South Kesteven District Council 76
173



Xlll.  INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. The
definition is not met if property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production of goods
or is held for sale.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, being the price that would
be received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. As a non-financial asset investment properties are measured at highest and best use. Properties are
not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the year end. Gains and losses
on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on
disposal.

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment Income
line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses
are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and
losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and
posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital
Receipts Reserve.

XIV. LEASES

The Council as Lessee

The Council classifies contracts as leases based on their substance. Contracts and parts of contracts,
including those described as contracts for services, are analysed to determine whether they convey the right
to control the use of an identified asset, through rights both to obtain substantially all the economic benefits
or service potential from that asset and to direct its use.

A right of use asset and corresponding lease liability are recognised at commencement of the lease.

The lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments, discounted at the rate implicit in
the lease, or if that cannot be readily determined, at the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate specific to the
term and start date of the lease.

The right of use asset is initially measured at cost, comprising: the initial lease liability; any lease payments
already made less any lease incentives received; initial direct costs; and any dilapidation or restoration costs.
The right of use asset is subsequently depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term
or the useful life of the underlying asset. The right of use asset is tested for impairment if there are any
indicators of impairment. Leases of low value assets (value when new less than £10,000) and short-term
leases of 12 months or less are expensed to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The Council as Lessor

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the asset is
retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life
of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the
commencement of the lease).

XV. OVERHEADS AND SUPPORT SERVICES

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in accordance with the
Council's arrangements for accountability and financial performance.

XVI. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods and services,

South Kesteven District Council 77

174



for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one
financial year are classified as Property Plant and Equipment.

Recognition:

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised on
an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential associated
with the item will flow to the Council, over more than one year and that the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an assets potential to deliver future economic benefits
or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred.

The Council has a de-minimis of £10,000 for capital expenditure, with the exception of the purchase of motor
vehicles. Where the total cost of an asset is higher than £10,000 but only part of the expenditure has occurred
within a financial year that expenditure would be included in the balance sheet even if it was below the de
minimis level.

Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:

e the purchase price

e any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred while assets are under construction.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the acquisition does
not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows of the Council). In the latter
case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the
asset given up by the Council.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

e Dwellings — current value determined using the basis of existing use value for social housing (EUV-SH).
The social housing discount applied in 2023/24 is 42%.

e Community assets and assets under construction — historic cost.

e Plant, Vehicles & Equipment — depreciated historical cost

e All other classes of assets — current value, unless there is no market-based evidence of fair value because
of the specialist nature of the asset. In this case fair value is estimated using the Depreciated
Replacement Cost method.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are re-valued where there have been material changes
in the value, but as a minimum every five years. Valuations of property assets are carried out by the District
Valuer, an external, qualified valuer, who is independent of the Council. The method of valuations is as
recommended by CIPFA and in accordance with the principles and guidance notes issued by the Royal
Institute of Chartered Surveyors. Operational assets constructed or acquired during the year will be re-
valued on 31 March of the following year.

Increases as a result of revaluations are debited to the appropriate asset account, with the opposite entry
going to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains, except to the extent where it reverses a
previous revaluation loss that was charged to a service revenue account within the Comprehensive Income
& Expenditure Statement. In this case the revaluation gain will first be used to offset the previous loss and
any further gain is then taken to the Revaluation Reserve. Revaluation gains charged to Surplus or Deficit
on Provision of Services are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account and reported in the Movement in
Reserves Statement.

Decreases as a result of revaluation, which are not specific to one asset but affect several, are revaluation
losses as opposed to impairments. The decrease is recognised in the Revaluation Reserve up to the balance
in respect of each asset affected and then in Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. Any such charge
taken to Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services is then transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account and
reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

South Kesteven District Council 78

175



The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its formal
implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.
Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is
recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:

o Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains)

e Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of
the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement,

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service line(s) in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for
depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic allocation of their
depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite
useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e.
assets under construction).

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases:

¢ Land is not depreciated as it will not have a finite life.

e Council Dwellings and Other Buildings are depreciated using the straight line method. The finite useful
life is assessed by the District Valuer at the time of revaluation but for Council Dwellings is usually 50
years, and for other buildings is between 1 and 60 years.

¢ Plant and Equipment are also depreciated by the straight line method. Useful life is assessed by the Chief
Finance Officer at the time of acquisition, usually between 3 and 10 years. Some assets have a longer
life span, up to 30 years.

e Vehicles are depreciated using the reducing balance method at a rate of 25% per annum.
¢ Non-current assets held-for sale are not depreciated.

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is significant in
relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.

Revaluation gains are also depreciated with an amount equal to the difference between current value
depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historic
cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Componentisation

Only assets with a carrying amount more than or equal to £500,000 at the beginning of the financial year are
considered for componentisation. To be recognised as a component the value of the part of the asset being
considered must be more than or equal to 10% of the value of the asset, and have a life less than or equal
to half that of the main asset. When a component is replaced, the carrying amount of the old component is
derecognised and the new component is recognised. If the carrying amount of the old component is not
known, this is estimated by indexing back from the cost of the new component and adjusting for depreciation
and impairment over the old component’s useful life. The Building Costs Index will be used.

South Kesteven District Council 79

176



The depreciation calculated is charged to the service revenue accounts, central support service accounts
and trading accounts.

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value
depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their
historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is classified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is
revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less
costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to a fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted in the
Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure statement. Gains in fair
value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on
Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back to
non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as held for
sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they not
been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell.

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet
(whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on
disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value
of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Amounts for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. A proportion of receipts
related to housing disposals is payable to the Government. The balance of receipts remains within the Capital
Receipts Reserve and can then only be used for new capital investment or set aside to reduce the Council’s
underlying need to borrow (the capital financing requirement).

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current assets is fully
provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.

XVII. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or constructive obligation
that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement that the Council becomes aware of the obligation and are measured at the best
estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account
relevant risks and uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet.
Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year - where it becomes less than probable
that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the
provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from another
party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant service if it is virtually

South Kesteven District Council 80

177



certain that reimbursement will be received if the obligation is settled.
The Council has made a provision for settling the self-insured element of Public Liability insurance claims.
Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible obligation whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise
be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts.
Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible asset whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Council.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts where it
is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential.

XVIll. RESERVES

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies.
Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in
Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the
appropriate service in that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then transferred back into the General
Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against council tax for
the expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes e.g. for non-current assets, retirement and
employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Council — these reserves are explained in
the relevant policies.

XIX. REVENUE EXPENDITURE FUNDED FROM CAPITAL UNDER STATUTE

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but does not result in
the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the Council has determined to meet
the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in
Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out
the amounts charged so that there is no impact on the level of council tax.

XX. VAT

VAT is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s Revenue and
Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.

XXI.  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and investment properties at
fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
¢ Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

e Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

South Kesteven District Council 81

178



The council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market participants

would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the council takes into account a market participant’s

ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

South Kesteven District Council 82

179



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Accounting Period - The length of time covered by the Council's accounts. This is twelve months
commencing on 1 April. The end of the accounting period is the balance sheet date.

Accrual Concept — Revenue and capital income and expenditure are recognised as they are earned or
incurred, not as money is received or paid. Transactions are treated on an accruals basis with income and
expenditure due as at 31 March brought into the accounts.

Actuarial Gains and Losses - For a defined pension scheme, the changes in actuarial deficits or surpluses
that arise because:
(a) events have not coincided with the actuarial assumptions made for the last valuation (experience
gains and losses), or
(b) the actuarial assumptions have changed.

Amortisation - The writing down in value of intangible assets, which is charged to service revenue accounts
to reflect the cost of such assets, used in the provision of those services. This is the equivalent of depreciation
for non-current assets.

Annual Governance Statement — Identifies the systems the Council has in place to ensure that it's business
is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards ensuring public money is safeguarded.

Asset — An asset is something that the Council owns that has monetary value. Assets are either “current” or
“non-current”.
o Acurrent assetis one that will be used or cease to have material value by the end of the next financial
year e.g. stock or debtors.
¢ A non-current asset provides benefits for a period of more than one year e.g. Council Offices.
¢ An intangible asset is a non-monetary asset that cannot be seen, touched or physically measured
and which is created through time and/or effort e.g. IT software.

Audit of Accounts - An examination by an independent expert of an organisation’s financial affairs to check
that the relevant legal obligations and codes of practice have been followed.

Bad Debt Provision - Outstanding amounts owed to the Council which are highly unlikely to be collected.

Balance Sheet - The Balance Sheet summarises the Council’s financial position at the end of each financial
year i.e. 315 March.

Budget -The Council’s plans set out in financial terms. Both revenue and capital budgets are prepared and
are used to control and monitor expenditure and performance.

CAA -_Capital Adjustment Account. This account contains the amounts that are required by Statute to be set
aside from capital receipts and revenue for the repayment of external loans as well as amounts of revenue,
useable capital receipts and contributions that have been used to fund capital expenditure. It also
accumulates depreciation, impairment and write-off of non-current assets on disposal.

Capital Charges - A charge to service revenue accounts to reflect the cost of non-current assets used in the
provision of services, i.e. depreciation.

Capital Expenditure - Expenditure on the acquisition of a non-current asset or expenditure which adds to
and not merely maintains the value of an existing non-current asset.

Capital Receipts - Money received from the disposal of a non-current asset. Capital receipts cannot be used
to fund revenue services.

Carrying Amount - The value of an asset or liability as shown in the Balance Sheet.

Cash Flow Statement - A statement that forms part of the Core Financial Statements and summarises the
cash flows within the Council’s bank accounts that have taken place within the financial year.

South Kesteven District Council 83

180



CIES - Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement

CIPFA - The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. The professional accounting body
concerned with Local Government and the Public Sector.

Code (the) - The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the UK: A Statement of Recommended
Practice.

Collection Fund -_A separate account to record the income and expenditure collected from council tax and
Non-Domestic Rates, including outstanding community charges.

Community Assets - Assets that the Council intends to hold in perpetuity that have no determinable useful
life and that may have restrictions regarding their sale. Examples of such items are parks and historic
buildings.

Current Service Cost -The increase in the present value of the pension scheme liabilities expected to arise
from employee service in the current period.

Curtailment - the cost of the early payment of pension benefits if any employee has been made redundant
in the previous financial year.

Council Tax - This is a banded property tax set by local authorities in order to meet their budget requirements.
There are eight bands (Band A-Band H), set by the District Valuer according to the value of the property. The
amount of tax each household pays depends on the band of the property.

Creditors -_Amounts owed by the Council for work done, goods received or services rendered before the
end of the accounting period but for which payment was not made by the end of the accounting period.

Current Liabilities - Amounts payable that become due during the next financial year.

Debtors - Amounts due to the Council for goods or services provided before the end of the accounting period,
for which actual payments had not been received by the end of the accounting period.

Deferred Charges - Expenditure that may properly be deferred but which does not result in, or remain
matched with, assets controlled by the Council.

Deferred Credits - These transactions arise when non-current assets are sold and the amounts owed by the
purchasers are repaid over a number of years, such as by way of mortgages. The balance is reduced by the
principal amounts repayable in any financial year.

Depreciation - An estimate of the loss in value of a non-current asset due to age, wear and tear or
obsolescence over a period of time.

Emoluments - Sums paid to an employee and sums due by way of expenses allowances and the money
value of any other benefits received other than in cash. Pension contributions payable are excluded.

Earmarked Reserves - These are reserves set aside for specific purposes, a type of service or type of
expenditure.

Expected Rate of Return - The average rate of return expected over the remaining life of the related
obligation on the actual assets held by the pension scheme.

Finance Leases - Arrangements whereby the lessee is treated as the owner of the leased asset and is
required to include such assets within the non-current assets on the Balance Sheet.

Financial Year - The period over which the Council reports its financial activity. Currently this is 15t April to
318t March.

FRS - Financial Reporting Standards, a reference to the accounting treatments that companies in the UK
(and Local Authorities) would generally be expected to apply in the preparation of the Financial Statements.

South Kesteven District Council 84

181



General Fund - The total services of the council except for the Housing Revenue Account and Collection
Fund. The day to day spending on services is met from the fund.

Government Grants - Grants made by central government towards either revenue or capital expenditure to
help with the cost of providing services and capital projects. Some government grants have restrictions on
how they may be used whilst others are general purpose.

Housing Benefits - This is a national system for giving financial assistance to individuals towards certain
housing costs. The cost of the service is subsidised by central government.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) - A separate account to the General Fund recording all the transactions
relating to the provision of social housing.

Joint Operation - This is an arrangement whereby all parties have joint control of the assets and liabilities
to the operation.

IAS - International Accounting Standards, a reference to accounting treatments that companies in the UK
(and Local Authorities) would generally be expected to apply in the preparation of the Financial Statements.

IFRS - International Financial Reporting Standards, a reference to accounting treatments that companies in
the UK and Local Authorities would generally be expected to apply in the preparation of the Financial
Statements.

Impairment Losses - A reduction in the value of a non-current asset to below its carrying amount on the
Balance Sheet, as a result of damage, obsolescence or a general decrease in market value.

Intangible Assets - Capital expenditure that does not result in the creation of a tangible asset but which
gives the Council a controllable access to future economic benefit , e.g. computer software licences.

Interest on Pension Scheme Liabilities - The increase in the present value of the pension scheme liabilities
expected to arise from employee service in the current period.

Key Prudential Indicator - One of the indicators required under the Prudential Code for the measuring of
the Council’'s Treasury Management activities.

Liability - A liability arises when the Council owes money to others and it must be included in financial
statements. There are two types of liability:
¢ A current liability is a sum of money that will or might be payable during the next accounting period
e.g. creditors or cash overdrawn
e A deferred liability is a sum of money that will not become payable until some point after the next
accounting period or is paid off over a number of accounting periods.

Long Term Debtor -Amounts due to the Council more than one year after the Balance Sheet date.
Materiality - This is one of the main accounting concepts. It ensures that the statement of accounts includes
all the transactions that, if omitted, would lead to a significant distortion of the financial position at the end of
the accounting period.

DLUHC - Department of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) - The minimum amount which must be charged to the Council’s
revenue accounts each year and set aside for debt repayment.

MIRS - Movement in Reserves Statement.
MRR - Major Repairs Reserve.

Net Book Value (NBV) - The value of a non-current asset less the accumulated amount of
depreciation/amortisation.

South Kesteven District Council 85

182



Non Distributed Costs - These are overheads for which no user benefits and should not be apportioned to
services.

Non Domestic Rates - Tax charged on the rateable value of non-domestic properties (business properties).
The rate of tax is set by the Government.

Operating Leases - A lease where the lessor retains all the risks and rewards of ownership of a non-current
asset.

Past Service Cost - Discretionary benefits awarded on early retirement are treated as past service costs.
This includes added years and unreduced pension benefits covered by the rule of 85.

Pension Fund - An employee’s pension fund maintained by a Council or group of councils in order to primarily
make pension payments on the retirement of participating employees. It is financed by contributions from the
employing authority, the employees and investment income.

PPE - Property, Plant & Equipment. Assets other than Council dwellings, Assets under Construction and
Investment Properties.

Precepts - The amount of Council Tax income that Councils, Police Authorities, Parish Councils and Fire
Authorities need to provide their service. The amount for all local authorities providing services in an area
appears on council tax bills.

Provisions - This is_ a sum of money that has been put aside in the accounts for liabilities that are due but
where the amount or the timing of the payment is not known with any certainty.

PWLB - Public Works Loans Board. A central government agency that provides lending facilities to local
authorities.

Related Party Transactions - A related party transaction is the transfer of assets or liabilities or the
performance of services by, to or for a related party irrespective of whether a charge has been made.

Reserves - Amounts set aside to meet capital or revenue expenditure which do not fall under the definition
of Provisions.

Revaluation Reserve - The Revaluation Reserve records the accumulated gains from the increase in the
revaluation of assets. It also records any reduction in the value of assets subject to the limits of the previous
increases in value of the same asset.

Revenue Expenditure — The day-to-day running costs a Council incurs in providing services.

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute - This is expenditure treated as capital
expenditure but which does not result in a non-current asset belonging to the council. An example of this is
a Disabled Facilities Grant paid to a homeowner to fund adaptations to their own home.

Revenue Support Grant (RSG) -A general grant paid by central government to local authorities as a
contribution towards the cost of their services.

Right of Use (ROU) asset — represents a lessee’s entitlement to use an underlying asset for the term of the
lease.

Soft Loan - A soft loan is a loan with a below market rate of interest.

Treasury Management - The process by which the Council manages its day to day cash requirements.

South Kesteven District Council 86

183



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SOUTH KESTEVEN
DISTRICT COUNCIL

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE COUNCIL’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

South Kesteven District Council 87

184



Annual
Governance
Statement

2024/25

KESTEVEN
DISTRICT
COUNCIL




Contents

Foreword 3
Key elements of the Council’s Governance Framework 2024/25 4
How we comply with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and

Accountancy (CIPFA) Solace Framework 6
Governance Framework for 2024/25 1"
Review of effectiveness 12
Follow-up on last year’s key areas of focus 14
Governance issues 15

1ob




Foreword

Welcome to South Kesteven District Council’s Annual
Governance Statement for the period 1 April 2024 to
31 March 2025.

Governance is about how local government bodies
ensure that they are doing the right things in the right
way, for the right people, in a timely, inclusive, open,
honest and accountable manner. This includes
complying with legislation, making evidence-based
decisions within a clear framework, displaying a
healthy culture, behaviour and values, whilst
ensuring transparency, equity and accountability,
engaging with and where appropriate, leading their
communities.

The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) is a public
report by the Council on the extent to which it
complies with its governance code, legislation,
directives and regulations and its performance and
effectiveness of its governance arrangements during
the year, and any planned changes in the coming
period following assessment by external bodies
including auditors, other regulators and peers. It
conforms to the Council’s Local Code of Corporate
Governance and covers all significant corporate
systems, processes, and controls across all Council
activities.

The Council expects all members, officers, partners
and contractors to adhere to the highest standards
of public service with particular reference to the
Officer and Member Code of Conduct, Constitution,
Corporate Vision and Values, and Corporate
Priorities as well as applicable statutory
requirements.

This document describes the Council's governance
arrangements and their effectiveness. This document
is drawn from a number of assurance mechanisms
which includes external audit, the Council's overall
governance and decision making framework, the
Scrutiny function, the work of advisors and
regulators, the Governance and Audit Committee
and the internal audit function.

The system of internal control is an important part of
the governance framework and is designed to
manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate
all risk of failure to achieve policies, priorities, aims
and objectives, and can therefore only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based
on an on-going process designed to identify and
prioritise risks to the achievements of the Council's
policies, priorities, aims and objectives. It also
evaluates the likelihood of those risks being realised
and the impact should they be realised, and to
manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically. Strategic risks are reported to the
Governance and Audit Committee bi-annually.

As part of this, alongside our governance framework
the Council has a new Corporate Plan 2024-27 in
place to bring focus and clarity to our vision and
priorities for South Kesteven to be a thriving district
in which to live, work and visit.

The Council is committed to continuous improvement
and is confident that it has established robust
foundations enabling it to continue to develop and
strengthen its governance arrangements.

Karen Bradford
Chief Executive
South Kesteven
District Council

Clir Ashley Baxter
Leader of the Council
South Kesteven
District Council

@ @southkesteven
ﬁ @southkdc
® linkedin.com/company/south-kesteven-council

lo/




Key elements of the Council’s Governance Framework 2024/25

Full Council

Cabinet

Governance
and Audit
Committee

Overview and
Scrutiny
Committees

Standards
Committee

Approves amendments to the Constitution and all associated Procedure Rules,
Protocols and Codes

Approves Strategies, Policies and Plans which make up the policy framework such as
the Corporate Plan and Local Development Plan

Approves the Council’s budget and Medium-Term Financial Strategy, including the
setting of Council Tax

Holds meetings in public unless exemptions apply. All meetings are broadcast live
and decisions are publicly available in minutes

Takes the majority of the Council’s decisions on matters outside of the Council’'s budget
and policy frameworks

Sets priorities in line with the Council’s vision and recommends budget proposals to
underpin delivery

Reviews the Council’s financial performance, performance of services and risk
management

Holds meetings in public unless exemptions apply. All meetings are broadcast live
and decisions are publicly available in minutes

Reviews and approves Financial Statements on behalf of the Council

Reviews Financial Regulations, Contract Procedure Rules, and the Treasury
Management Strategy as well as any amendments to the Constitution

Reviews and scrutinises governance arrangements, including the Local Code of
Corporate Governance, internal and external audit reports, and management of risk

Reviews annual reports for Safeguarding, Health & Safety, Business Continuity, and
complaints made to the Local Government Ombudsman

Holds meetings in public unless exemptions apply. All meetings are broadcast live,
and decisions are publicly available in minutes

Provides a critical friend challenge to the Cabinet and holds decision-takers to account
Makes recommendations to decision-takers as part of pre-decision scrutiny

Makes recommendations to decision-takers as part of policy or strategy development
Can hold calls for evidence from internal or external stakeholders

Holds meetings in public unless exemptions apply. All meetings are broadcast live
and decisions are publicly available in minutes

Oversees processes relating to Councillor Code of Conduct complaints

Acts as a Hearing Review Panel for Code of Conduct complaint cases which are
referred for formal review

Promotes high standards in public office

Holds meetings in public unless exemptions apply. All meetings are broadcast live
and decisions are publicly available in minutes

loo




m Monthly meetings of the Head of Paid Service, Chief Finance Officer, and Monitoring
Officer to ensure good administrative, financial, and ethical governance in the exercise

Statutory of its functions
Officers _ _ _
Group m Work collaboratively to achieve high standards of corporate governance and uphold

the Seven Principles of Public Life in accordance with the Code of Practice on Good
Governance for Local Authority Statutory Officers

m Reviews performance management and projects including progress against
milestones, resource allocation, risks, and performance

Management

m Completes Annual Assurance Statements and contributes to the effective corporate
management and governance of the Council

m Reviews risk registers for strategic, operational and fraud risks. Strategic risks
considered by Corporate Management Team quarterly and Governance and Audit
Committee bi-annually

Risk
Management

m Sets the Internal Audit Strategy to meet the Council’s overall strategic direction and
provide assurance on risk management, governance, and internal control
arrangements

ULl = Undertakes annual programme of audits and presents progress reports against the plan
m Makes recommendations for improvement in systems and controls and value for money

m Provides the Head of Internal Audit Opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness
of the Council's risk management, control, and governance processes

169




How we comply with the Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA) Solace Framework

The Council has approved and adopted a Local Code of Corporate Governance
based on the requirements of the CIPFA/Solace Delivering Good Governance in
Local Government Framework 2016. Set out below is how the Council has complied
with the seven principles set out in the CIPFA/Solace Framework during 2024/25.

Principle A

Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong
commitment to ethical values and respecting the rule
of law

The Council has defined and communicated the
standards of conduct and personal behaviour
expected of elected Members and Officers through
its Member and Officer Codes of Conduct, together
with a Member/ Officer Protocol, included as part of
its Constitution to ensure integrity.

Member Code of Conduct training formed part of the
comprehensive induction programme for Members
following the quadrennial elections in May 2023, with
further refresh sessions being held throughout the term
of office on an annual basis. The Council has agreed
that it is mandatory for all Councillors to attend training
on the Councillor Code of Conduct every year.

A new procedure for dealing with complaints against
Councillors was approved in September 2023 which
follows good practice set out in LGA guidance. Any
complaints submitted are assessed or investigated
by the Monitoring Officer in consultation with the
Council’s Independent Person/s in accordance with
the approved procedure. The Standards Committee,
introduced in May 2023, oversees the process
associated with Code of Conduct complaints and
promotes high standards of behaviour and conduct
in public office.

The Council has a Counter Fraud, Bribery and
Corruption Strategy, and a Whistleblowing Policy
which provides protection for individuals to raise
concerns in confidence and ensures that any
concerns raised are investigated.

The Council’s Customer Feedback Process provides
members of the public with an avenue to raise any
concern or complaint as well as provide
compliments to specific service areas or individual
members of staff.

The Governance Framework brings together an

underlying set of legislative requirements, good
practice principles and management processes. |t
comprises the systems, processes, culture, and
values by which the Council is directed and
controlled, and through which it is accountable to,
engages with and informs the local community. It
enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its
strategic objectives.

Whenever the Council makes decisions at its meetings
it ensures legal and governance implications are
considered. To assist with this, all reports include
comments on any legal and governance implications,
which are signed off by the Monitoring Officer or
Deputy Monitoring Officer. Where report writers have
sought or received legal advice from third parties,
such as Legal Services Lincolnshire, they are normally
referenced within their report.

Principle B

Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder
engagement

All Committee meetings are open to the public

with agenda papers, reports and decisions being
published on the Council's website, except

those determined as exempt from publication.
Additionally, most of the Council’'s Committee
meetings are broadcast live via its webcasting system.

The Council can exclude the press and public from
meetings for reasons set out in Schedule 12A of the
Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

The Council has robust arrangements in place to
deal with residents’ complaints, Freedom of
Information requests, Subject Access Requests, data
breaches and whistleblowing allegations.

The Council’s Constitution sets out how the authority
engages with stakeholders and partners.

The Council has a Partnerships Register that
confirms the arrangements it has in place with
partners and shared working practices.

19U




During 2024/25 several statutory consultations were
undertaken which included:

= Planning Policy Consultation — Regulation 18
Draft Local Plan (2021-2041): To consult with the
public and stakeholders on the Draft Local Plan
(2021-2041)

2,439 individual comments were received on the
Draft Local Plan consultation, made by 794
respondents, and were made on areas including
policies, site allocations, chapters, figures,
paragraphs, and evidence base work. Three
petitions were also received

m Contaminated Land Strategy Consultation: To
consult on the content of the Council’s
Contaminated Land Strategy

75% of respondents agreed with the draft
Contaminated Land Strategy

m Public Space Protection Order — Market
Deeping Cemetery: To consult on the re-
establishment of the Council’s Public Spaces
Protection Order for requiring someone in charge
of a dog to always having it on a lead whilst in the
cemetery

76% of respondents supported the proposal to re-
instate a PSPO to always keep a dog on a fixed
length lead whilst in the Market Deeping Cemetery

m Council Tax Support Scheme 2025/26: To
measure the degree of support for the Council’s
Council Tax Support Scheme

94% of respondents thought that the discretionary
payment scheme should continue in 2025/26

m Council Tax Consultation: To consult on levels
of council tax for 2025/26

55% of respondents supported the proposal
to increase the Council’s element of council
tax by 3%

m Air Quality Action Plan: To consult on the
content of an Air Quality Action Plan for Grantham

79% of respondents thought that traffic
management should be improved at key junctions
in Grantham Town Centre

The Council also undertook several discretionary
consultations which included:

Customer Experience Strategy: To inform the
content of the Council's Customer Experience
Strategy

Key concepts highlighted by respondents as
being pivotal to a customers’ charter included
efficiency, availability, knowledge, and being kept
informed

Housing Repair and Maintenance Policy: To
consult on the repair and maintenance policy

84% supported a proposal to restrict the provision
of non-urgent repairs to a tenant who continually
refuses access to one of the Council's properties
to carry out essential health and safety checks

Wyndham Park Dog Exercise/Biodiversity
Paddock: To establish degree of support for an
exercise paddock for dogs in Wyndham Park
which would also promote biodiversity

71% of respondents supported the creation of an
area set aside for nature in Wyndham Park, which
is also an area where dogs can be exercised off
lead safely and securely.

Arts and Culture Opportunities in Bourne and
the Deepings: To establish if residents in Bourne
and the Deepings would be more likely to
participate in arts activities if available locally and
to establish what would encourage arts
practitioners to either start providing activities or
increase their provision to inform a bid for funding
from the Arts Council.

81% said that they would be more likely to
participate in arts and cultural activities if they
were available locally. Arts practitioners asked for
a space dedicated to exhibiting, creating, and
running workshops.

Public Space Protection Order — Restricting
dogs on leads: To consult on the potential
introduction of a PSPO to restrict the number of
does on leads one person could walk

37% supported the proposal which, if approved,
would require an individual walking dogs on leads
to restrict the number of dogs they walk at the
same time. 59% of respondents did not support
the proposal, and 4% were not sure.

191




Principles C and D

Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic,
social and environmental benefits and determining
the interventions necessary to optimise the
achievement of the intended outcomes

LeisureSK Ltd was established in September 2020
and took over the management of the Council’s three
leisure facilities in Grantham, Bourne and Stamford in
January 2021. The Council and LeisureSK Ltd entered
a new ten year contract on 1 April 2025 which is
based upon agency principles. The leisure contract
details the level of service to be provided and
includes key performance indicators to measure and
monitor performance. Under the terms of the contract,
LeisureSK Ltd is responsible for the provision of a
high quality, accessible leisure service across the
district which is attractive to residents and visitors.

The main aim of the arrangement is to facilitate the
improvement of the health and wellbeing of the
district through a range of outcomes including
increasing levels of physical activity across the
district, attracting increasing numbers of users to the
leisure facilities, providing a high standard of
customer care, and identifying opportunities to
engage with residents outside of traditional leisure
activities.

There is a Council appointed Board of Directors for
LeisureSK Ltd which is responsible for overseeing
the strategic direction of the company and its
financial and operational performance. Membership
of the Board of Directors is complemented by a Non-
Executive Director who was recruited in recognition
of their significant leisure knowledge and
experience.

Council Officers perform the ‘client’ role ensuring
robust contract monitoring arrangements are in
place to ensure that LeisureSK Ltd deliver on the

contract objectives and key performance indicators.

LeisureSK’s Articles of Association provide that the
Council as owner of the company has certain powers
including the right to ask directors to take, or refrain
from taking, any action and the Members Agreement
provides that the Council has unrestricted access to
any company information or documents it requires.

The performance of LeisureSK Ltd is monitored by
the Council’s Culture and Leisure Overview and
Scrutiny Committee which receives regular
presentations and reports on the financial and
operational performance of the company.

Principle E

Developing the entity’s capacity, including the
capability of its leadership and the individuals
within it

The Council has an adopted People Strategy 2022-
2025 which is built around three themes:

m Attract the right people, retain, and develop
excellent skills, define, and embed the right
culture

m Engaging and valuing our people to run our
business effectively

m Effective leadership to encourage, inspire and
navigate change

The aim of the People Strategy is to provide an
immediate and on-going and long-term framework
for engaging, sustaining, developing, and managing
our people to be fit for purpose in supporting the
Council’s vision, goals and the aspirations outlined in
the Corporate Plan. To address this, we will:

m Attract and recruit high calibre staff regionally

m Develop and support our staff to fulfil their
potential and help us deliver our aspirations

Five new freighters join the Council’s fleet of colourful waste freighters carrying vital health and wellbeing messages.
In addition to the pink lorry promoting Breast Cancer awareness and a bright blue lorry promoting Prostate Cancer
awareness, the new freighters are painted in the distinctive brand colours of the organisation they represent:
Samaritans (lime green), Roy Castle Lung Cancer Foundation (orange), Bowel Cancer UK (teal), Kidney Research UK
(purple) and Royal British Legion (dark blue)

192




m Engage to create an inspired workforce

m |Improve the equality, diversity, and inclusion of
the Council

m Retain and reward our staff through recognising
their contribution

m Create and maintain a progressive, collaborative,
and healthy working environment

To build on this, an updated People Strategy is being
developed.

During 2024/25 significant leadership development
has been undertaken to increase the capability and
competency of the senior leadership team.

The Council has 33 apprenticeships and during
2024/25, 669 employees attended 131 learning
events.

The Council has a scheme of delegation that sets out
how decisions are made within the Council both at
Member level and officer level. The Council has
effective arrangements for the discharge of the
statutory Head of Paid Service, Section 151 Officer
and Monitoring Officer functions and complies with
the relevant requirements of the Chartered Institute
of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)
statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in
Local Government.

Principle F

Managing risks and performance through robust
internal control and strong public financial
management

The Council has effective risk management which is
embedded across all areas of the business.

The authority recognises that risk management is an
integral part of all activities and must be considered
in all aspects of decision making.

The Council’s Risk Management Framework sets out
its approach to identifying and controlling risks. Risk
registers are maintained at strategic and service
area level. Strategic risks are reviewed by the
Corporate Management Team and reported to the
Governance and Audit Committee biannually.

During 2024/25 the Council held several facilitated
strategic risk workshops with the Corporate
Management Team to review and develop the
Council’s strategic risks including the development
of an Emerging Risk Radar.

The Council’s project methodology ensures that all
risks are captured and monitored to enable the

successful delivery of projects. These are reported
every two months to Corporate Management Team.

The Council’s Counter Fraud, Bribery, and
Corruption Strategy, structured on the CIPFA Code
of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and
Corruption, sets out the importance of achieving
intended outcomes, whilst acting in the public
interest, and being seen to do so.

Financial management is a key element of the
structure and processes that comprise the Council’s
governance arrangements and it will be undertaking
an assessment against the CIPFA Financial
Management Code and developing an action plan.

Underpinning the delivery of the Council’s Corporate
Plan 2024-27 and priorities is the ethos of an
effective Council. This includes effective financial
management to achieve efficiencies and savings in
the short and medium terms.

Strategic Risks 2024/25

. Successful/serious cyber security attack on
the Council
. Serious safeguarding failure by the Council
. Serious health, safety, and well-being failure
by the Council
. Ineffective financial management
. Unable to maintain and build quality and
consistency in service provision by the
Council
. Unable to maintain and build sufficient
staffing capacity and capability
. Failure to explore digital transformation of
Council Services
. Not maintaining and developing fruitful
partnerships and collaborations
9. #TEAMSK values/culture are not lived
10.Unable to meet requirements of new
regulations and legislation affecting the
Council
11.Not sufficiently engaging with and
responding to climate change
12.Not effectively engaging without key external
stakeholders
13.Governance failure
14.Significant fraud/theft successfully
committed against the Council
15.Unable to effectively respond to political
priorities
16.Homelessness and poor housing conditions
17.Local Government Reorganisation
18.Devolution

1Yo




Principle G

Implementing good practices in transparency,
reporting and audit to deliver effective accountability

The Council is open and accessible to the
community, service users and employees. It is
committed to openness and transparency in all that it
does, and this is underpinned by the Corporate Plan.
The Council ensures that clear channels of
communication are in place with all sections of the
community and other stakeholders, and it monitors
these to ensure that they are operating effectively.

Every effort is made to ensure that information is
concise and easy to understand. In accordance with
the Local Government Transparency Code the
Council publishes how it spends its money, how it
uses its assets, how it makes decisions and have
regard to issues important to local people.

The Council has a comprehensive consultation
process for published reports which ensures senior
management, and Members, own the contents. The
Council is committed to publishing information on its
performance in a timely manner and report
performance against targets and financial targets on
a regular basis to committees.

The Council’s internal auditors, BDO LLP, report
directly to the Governance and Audit Committee on
all aspects of its work, including tracking the
implementation of management actions arising from
internal service audits. The Committee also has the
opportunity to suggest items for the annual internal
audit work programme approved by Governance
and Audit Committee.

The Council welcomes peer challenge, reviews and
inspections from regulatory bodies and it
participates in national benchmarking exercises to
obtain comparative data on performance.

9




Governance Framework for 2024/25

The Governance Framework shown below has been in place throughout the financial
year which ended on 31 March 2025 and continues to be in place up to the date of
the approval of the Statement of Accounts.

Assurances required

Delivery of Council’s aims and objectives

Services deliver value for money

Engagement with stakeholders and public accountability

Budget and financial management

Roles and responsibilities of Members and Officers

Standards of conduct and behaviour

Compliance with laws, regulations, internal policies, and procedures
Management of risk

Effectiveness of internal controls

Sources of assurance

m Constitution, Scheme of Delegation, Financial Regulations, Contract Procedure Rules and specific Rules of
Procedure for the Council’s bodies

Council, Cabinet and Committees including Governance and Audit and Overview and Scrutiny Committees
Statutory Officers Group

Corporate Information Governance Group

Medium Term Financial Strategy

Human resources policies and procedures

Whistleblowing Policy

Counter fraud procedures

Risk management and internal control frameworks

Performance management framework

Partnership governance arrangements

Codes of Conduct

Corporate Management Team

Annual Assurance Statements

Customer complaints system

Freedom of Information system

Assurances received

Statement of Accounts

External audit reports

Internal audit reports

Risk management reports

Counter fraud reports

Independent and external sources
Local Government Ombudsman reports
Reviews by Overview and Scrutiny Committees and Governance and Audit Committee
Member/officer working groups
Customer feedback eg complaints
Freedom of Information requests

Data Subject Access Requests
Whistleblowing reports

Health and Safety Executive inspections

] 1l‘db




Review of effectiveness

Internal audit

The Council’s internal auditors, BDO LLP, were Seven assurance, one consultancy (Arts Council
required to provide an opinion on the overall Grant) and two follow up reviews were undertaken
adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s risk during 2024/25, with the seven assurance reviews
management, control, and governance processes. resulting in the following assurance levels:

Design Design

Opinion Effectiveness
Arts Council Grant N/A N/A
Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund Moderate Moderate
Staffing Capacity and Capability Moderate Substantial
Homelessness Moderate Moderate
Income Generation Substantial Moderate
Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery Moderate Moderate
Council Tax and NNDR Substantial Moderate
Data Protection, FOI, EIR and SAR Moderate Moderate

For the twelve months ended 31 March 2025, based on the work undertaken, the BDO LLP Head of Internal
Audit opinion was:

Overall, we provide Assurance that there is a sound system of internal controls, designed to
meet the Council’'s objectives, and that controls are being applied consistently across various services.

Level of Design Effectiveness
Assurance Opinion Opinion

Moderate In the main, there Generally a A small number Evidence of
are appropriate sound system of of exceptions noncompliance
procedures and internal control found in testing with some
controls in place designed to of the procedures controls that may
to mitigate the achieve system and controls. put some of the
key risks objectives with system
reviewed, albeit some exceptions. objectives at risk.
with some that
are not fully
effective.

2498




External audit

The Council’'s external auditors, KPMG LLP, are
required to consider whether the Annual Governance
Statement (2023/24 and 2024/25) complies with
Delivering Good Governance in Local Government
2016 published by the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Society
of Local Authority Chief Executives (Solace).

Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit
Practice (‘the Code’), external audit are required to
consider whether the Council has put in place proper
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency, and
effectiveness in its use of resources.

External audit are required to report their
commentary on the Council’'s arrangements under
specified criteria. External audit have reported on
the Council’s arrangements for 2023/24 and 2024/25
and have concluded the following in respect of Value
for Money for both years:

Significant risk

identified?

Financial
sustainability

No significant
risks identified

No significant

COHEIMENGE risks identified

Improving economy,
efficiency, and
effectiveness

No significant
risks identified

Assurance Statement 2024/25

Officers of the Senior Team produced an Annual
Assurance Statement for 2024/25 which assessed
the effectiveness of the key control environment
within their areas of responsibility.

Management assurance is a key assurance
mechanism on which the Council seeks to obtain
visibility over. The Council recognise that
management may not be able to provide a positive
assurance in all cases and would prefer a conclusion
to be reached that is objective and honest with a
view to then addressing any areas of concern in the
future as may be required.

Senior Team were asked to agree, or otherwise, to
various statements based on their knowledge and
understanding across seven core areas of assurance:

Probity and Regulatory
Procurement
Governance

Human Resources
Health and Safety

IT and Data Management
Business Continuity

The overall assurance level revealed that managers
‘Fully Agreed’ with 83% of the statements on
assurance with the remainder being 14% ‘Partially
Agreed’; 1% ‘Not Agreed’ and 2% ‘Don’t Know’.

Themes for improvement were identified for
Procurement, Health and Safety, and Business
Continuity.

The responses were reported to Statutory Officers
Group for review. Actions arising from the completion
of the Assurance Statement have been captured and
will be monitored during 2025/26.

Governance and Audit Committee
Governance and Audit Committee is well established
with its terms of reference complying fully with CIPFA
guidance.

During 2024/25, Governance and Audit Committee
appointed a Coopted Independent Member as a
move to further strengthen the governance and
maturity of the Committee.

The key areas covered by the Governance and Audit
Committee’s terms of reference are:

accounts and financial reporting
financial regulations

treasury management

internal and external audit activity
risk management

governance

counter fraud and bribery
contract procedure rules
regulatory framework

the ombudsman process

In addition, Governance and Audit Committee
receive annual reports on:

m Business Continuity
m Health & Safety
m Safeguarding

97




Follow-up on last year’s key areas of focus

Last year’s Annual Governance Statement identified nine areas of focus, and the
table below sets out the action taken to address those areas:

Key area of focus identified for 2024/25 Action taken

East Midlands Councillor Development Charter

Little Ponton and Stroxton Community Governance
Review

Review of the Officer Code of Conduct

Lead officer established, who is an Accredited
Counter Fraud Specialist, to investigate all
whistleblowing reports

Lessons learnt report to be produced at the end of
each key event/project

Use of data (Oflog, Government, benchmarking) to
be used to assist in decision making

Lesson learnt review on complaints to stop
reoccurrences

Investment in technology — Asset Management
system and Financial System

Leisure Option Appraisal

The new Councillor Working Group has met on a
number of occasions with several items on the action
plan being completed. Evidence has been stored for
a future submission for charter status

Full Council did not propose any changes to the
community governance structure for the parish of
Little Ponton and Stroxton, ending the Community
Governance Review process

This has been moved into 2025//26 when the new
Director of Law and Governance is in post.

All whistleblowing reports have been investigated by
the Accredited Counter Fraud Specialist

Lessons learnt report is produced at the end of
every corporate project which is then shared to the
relevant board

Work ongoing. A report has been presented to
Cabinet in respect of the government’s Productivity
Plan. The information from the State of the District
was used for the Economic Strategy and to support
projects within the district. Data is benchmarked
across other districts and is available on the
Council’'s website

Work ongoing. Enhancements to the complaints
process are underway. Refresher training will be
undertaken with service areas to reinforce the
importance of capturing the reasons complaints
have arisen along with understanding the frequently
raised repeat issues to identify solutions.

New asset management system implemented. New
new financial system goes live in July 2025

As a result of the leisure option appraisal, Cabinet in
September 2024, agreed a new ten-year contract,
based on agency principles, which commenced on 1
April 2025

498




Governance issues

Recruitment of a new Director of

Law & Governance Chief Executive September 2025
Appom‘tment Qf an interim Data Chief Executive P
Protection Officer

Onboarding of new Director of Law

& Governance, Data Protection Chief Executive March 2026

Officer, and Deputy Monitoring
Officer

Ensure Freedom of Information and
Subject Access Request processes Director of Law & Governance March 2026
are reviewed and established

Review Local Government
Reorganisation governance Chief Executive November 2025
challenges

Review of the Constitution to ensure
Member Code of Conduct is up to Director of Law & Governance March 2026
date and relevant

Review of the Officer Code of

Director of Law & Governance March 2026
Conduct

New governance structure to be
developed for LeisureSK Ltd based Deputy Chief Executive September 2025
on the agency principles

Ensure compliance with the delivery

of the 2025/26 UKSPF requirements Lizrpuiyy Gl Seeiive kel 202

499




Contact Details

Alternative formats are available on request:
audio, large print and Braille

South Kesteven District Council
01476 40 60 80
“Owww.southkesteven.gov.uk

SOUTH
KESTEVEN
DISTRICT
COUNCIL

200



(Letterhead of the Entity we audit)

KPMG UK LLP

1 Sovereign Square
Sovereign Street
Leeds,

LS1 4DA

X February 2025
Dear Salma

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the Group and
Authority financial statements of South Kesteven District Council (“the Authority”), for
the year ended 31 March 2025, for the purpose of expressing an opinion:

i as to whether these give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
and the Authority as at year end and of the Group’s and the Authority’s income
and expenditure for the year then ended;

ii. whether the Group and the Authority’s financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024/25 (“CIPFA/LASAAC
Code”).

These financial statements comprise the following: the Group and the Council
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements, Group and the Council Balance
Sheets, Group and the Council Movement in Reserves Statements, Group and the Council
Statements of Cash Flows, Collection Fund, Housing Revenue Account and the notes,
comprising material accounting policies and other explanatory information and the
Expenditure and Funding Analysis.

The Council confirms that the representations it makes in this letter are in accordance with
the definitions set out in the Appendix to this letter.

The Council confirms that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, having made such
inquiries as it considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing itself:

Financial statements

1. The Council has fulfilled its responsibilities, as set out in the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015 and the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2022, for
the preparation of financial statements that:

i. give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and the
Council as at year end and of the Group’s and the Council’s income and
expenditure for the year then ended;

ii. have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2024/25.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

201



2. The methods, the data and the significant assumptions used in making accounting
estimates and their related disclosures are appropriate to achieve recognition,
measurement or disclosure that is reasonable in the context of the applicable
financial reporting framework.

3. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which IAS
10 Events after the reporting period requires adjustment or disclosure have been
adjusted or disclosed.

4. The effects of uncorrected misstatements are immaterial, both individually and in
aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole. A list of the uncorrected
misstatements is attached to this representation letter.

Information provided

5. The Council has provided you with:

. access to all information of which it is aware, that is relevant to the preparation
of the financial statements, such as records, documentation and other matters;

. additional information that you have requested from the Council for the
purpose of the audit; and

. unrestricted access to persons within the Group and the Council from whom

you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

6. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the
financial statements.

7. The Council confirms the following:

The Council has disclosed to you the results of its assessment of the risk that the
financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

Included in the Appendix to this letter are the definitions of fraud, including
misstatements arising from fraudulent financial reporting and from misappropriation
of assets.

9. The Council has disclosed to you all information in relation to:

a) Fraud or suspected fraud that it is aware of and that affects the Group and
Council and involves:

° management;

. members;

o employees who have significant roles in internal control; or

o others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial

statements; and
b) allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the Group and Council’s
financial statements communicated by employees, former employees,
members, analysts, regulators or others.

In respect of the above, the Council acknowledges its responsibility for such internal

control as it determines necessary for the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In particular, the

202



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Council acknowledges its responsibility for the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud and error, and we believe
we have appropriately fulfilled those responsibilities.

The Council has disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected
non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when
preparing the financial statements.

The Council has disclosed to you and has appropriately accounted for and/or disclosed
in the financial statements, in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, all known actual or possible litigation and claims
whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

The Council has disclosed to you the identity of the Group and Council’s related parties
and all the related party relationships and transactions of which it is aware. All related
party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures.

Included in the Appendix to this letter are the definitions of both a related party and a
related party transaction as we understand them and as defined in IAS 24 and the
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2024/25.

The Council confirms that:

a) The financial statements disclose all of the matters that are relevant to the
Council’s and the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, including
the key risk factors, assumptions made and uncertainties surrounding the
Council’s and the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern as required
to provide a true and fair view and to comply with [IAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements.

b) No material uncertainties related to events or conditions exist that may cast
significant doubt upon the ability of the Council and the Group to continue as
a going concern.

On the basis of the process established by the Council and having made appropriate
enquiries, the Council is satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the
valuation of defined benefit obligations are consistent with its knowledge of the
business and are in accordance with the requirements of IAS 19 Employee Benefits.

The Council further confirms that:

a) all significant retirement benefits, including any arrangements that are:
e statutory, contractual or implicit in the employer’s actions;
e arise in the UK and the Republic of Ireland or overseas;
e funded or unfunded; and
e approved or unapproved,
have been identified and properly accounted for; and
b) all plan amendments, curtailments and settlements have been identified and
properly accounted for.

203



This letter was tabled and agreed at the meeting of the Governance and Audit
Committee on 18 February 2025.

Yours faithfully,

Section 151 Officer

204



Appendix to the Council Representation Letter of South Kesteven District Council:
Definitions

Financial Statements
A complete set of financial statements comprises:

A Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the period;

A Balance Sheet as at the end of the period;

A Movement in Reserves Statement for the period;

A Cash Flow Statement for the period; and

Notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information and the Expenditure and Funding Analysis.

A local authority is required to present group accounts in addition to its single entity
accounts where required by chapter nine of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024/25.

A housing authority must present a Housing Revenue Account Statement.

A billing authority must present a Collection Fund Statement for the period showing
amounts required by statute to be debited and credited to the Collection Fund.

An entity may use titles for the statements other than those used in IAS 1. For example, an
entity may use the title 'statement of comprehensive income' instead of 'statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

Material Matters

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are
material.

IAS 1.7 and IAS 8.5 state that:

“Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial
information about a specific reporting entity.

Materiality depends on the nature or magnitude of information, or both. An entity assesses
whether information, either individually or in combination with other information, is
material in the context of its financial statements taken as a whole.

Information is obscured if it is communicated in a way that would have a similar effect for
primary users of financial statements to omitting or misstating that information. The
following are examples of circumstances that may result in material information being
obscured:

a) information regarding a material item, transaction or other event is disclosed in the
financial statements but the language used is vague or unclear;

b) information regarding a material item, transaction or other event is scattered
throughout the financial statements;

c) dissimilar items, transactions or other events are inappropriately aggregated,

205



d) similar items, transactions or other events are inappropriately disaggregated; and

e) the understandability of the financial statements is reduced as a result of material
information being hidden by immaterial information to the extent that a primary
user is unable to determine what information is material.

Assessing whether information could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made
by the primary users of a specific reporting entity’s general purpose financial statements
requires an entity to consider the characteristics of those users while also considering the
entity’s own circumstances.

Many existing and potential investors, lenders and other creditors cannot require reporting
entities to provide information directly to them and must rely on general purpose financial
statements for much of the financial information they need. Consequently, they are the
primary users to whom general purpose financial statements are directed. Financial
statements are prepared for users who have a reasonable knowledge of business and
economic activities and who review and analyse the information diligently. At times, even
well-informed and diligent users may need to seek the aid of an adviser to understand
information about complex economic phenomena.”

Fraud

Fraudulent financial reporting involves intentional misstatements including omissions of
amounts or disclosures in financial statements to deceive financial statement users.

Misappropriation of assets involves the theft of an entity’s assets. It is often accompanied
by false or misleading records or documents in order to conceal the fact that the assets are
missing or have been pledged without proper authorisation.

Error

An error is an unintentional misstatement in financial statements, including the omission
of an amount or a disclosure.

Prior period errors are omissions from, and misstatements in, the entity’s financial
statements for one or more prior periods arising from a failure to use, or misuse of, reliable
information that:
a) was available when financial statements for those periods were authorised for
issue; and
b) could reasonably be expected to have been obtained and taken into account in the

preparation and presentation of those financial statements.

Such errors include the effects of mathematical mistakes, mistakes in applying accounting
policies, oversights or misinterpretations of facts, and fraud.

Management

For the purposes of this letter, references to “management” should be read as “management
and, where appropriate, those charged with governance”.

Related Party and Related Party Transaction

Related party:

206



A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its financial
statements (referred to in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures as the “reporting entity”).

e A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a reporting entity
if that person:

has control or joint control over the reporting entity;

has significant influence over the reporting entity; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of
a parent of the reporting entity.

e An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:

The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity
is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees
of either the reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If
the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the reporting entity.

The entity is controlled, or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is
a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of
the reporting entity.

A reporting entity is exempt from the disclosure requirements of IAS 24.18 in relation to
related party transactions and outstanding balances, including commitments, with:

a government that has control or joint control of, or significant influence
over the reporting entity; and

another entity that is a related party because the same government has
control or joint control of, or significant influence over, both the reporting
entity and the other entity.

Related party transaction:

A transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity and a related
party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

207



Appendix — Uncorrected misstatements

Uncorrected audit differences (£000s)

Balance

No. Detail

CIES

Sheet

Dr/(cr) Dr/(cr)

Comments

I DrOther 189 - We have identified 1 item of expenditure
service recorded in April 2025 which relate to 2024/25
expenses and were incorrectly not accrued for.

Cr Creditors - (189)
2 DrCash } 144 Debtors balance not cleared to reflect cash in
transit as at 31 March 2025.
Cr Debtors - (144)
Total £189  (£189)

208



60¢

Governance and Audit Committee Work Plan 2025-2026

Current Issues/Status

Outcome Sought

18 February 2026

Statement of Accounts 2024/25

To be approved each year by the statutory
deadline

To approve the 2024/2025 Statement of Accounts
and their publication on the Council’s website

18 March 2026

Annual Report on Grants and Returns

External Audit’s report on grants and returns for
the year

To review and note the contents of the report

Internal Audit Progress Report

Update from the Council’s Internal Auditors in
respect of progress made against the plan

To review and note the contents of the report

Internal Audit Follow Up Report

Update from the Council’s Internal Auditors in
respect of progress made against the
implementation of actions

To review and note the contents of the report

Indicative Internal Audit Plan 2026/27

Internal Audit to present the indicative Internal
Audit Plan for 2026/2027

To review and note the contents of the report

Statement of Accounting Policies

Annual report prior to the preparation of the
Statement of Accounts to ensure that the policies
are up to date and in line with the CIPFA Code of
Practice

To consider approving the Statement of
Accounting Policies

Treasury Management Q3 Report

To update on the treasury management activities
during quarter 3

To be noted by the Committee

Housing Benefit Subsidy Audit 2023-24

To provide an update regarding the outcome of
the audited subsidy claim and Department for
Work and Pension sign-off

To review and note the contents of the report

g wa)| epuaby




0T¢

Current Issues/Status

Unscheduled

Outcome Sought

Access to Information Working Group Update

Update on the meeting of the Access to
Information Working Group

To review and note the contents of the report

Financial Regulations Implementation Update

An update following six months of the
implementation of the Financial Regulations was
requested at the 21 January 2026 meeting.

To review and note the contents of the report

Amendments to the Constitution

To consider a number of amendments to the
Constitution.

Recommendation to Full Council

Items to be allocated as and when required

Code of Conduct

Code of Corporate Governance

Constitutional Amendments

Contract Procedure Rules

Financial Regulations

Risk Management Framework — due in 2027/28

Counter Fraud, Bribery, and Corruption Strategy — due 2026/27

Anti Money Laundering Policy — due 2026/27

Whistleblowing Policy — due 2026/27

Review of Subject Access Requests

Committee Members meeting with auditors




T1¢



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 21 January 2026
	52.	Apologies for absence
	53.	Disclosure of interests
	54.	Minutes of the meeting held on 13 November 2025
	55.	Internal Audit Progress Report
	56.	Indicative Internal Audit Plan 2026/27
	57.	2026/27 Treasury Management Strategy Statement
	58.	Review of the Financial Regulations
	59.	Strategic Risk Register
	60.	Work Programme 2025 - 2026
	61.	Any other business, which the chairman, by reasons of special circumstances, decides is urgent.

	4 Updates from previous meeting
	5 Year-end report (ISA 260) 2024-25
	South Kesteven District Council
	Introduction 
	Important notice 
	Our audit findings
	Key changes to our audit plan
	Significant risks and Other audit risks
	Audit risks and our audit approach
	Audit risks and our audit approach (cont.)
	Audit risks and our audit approach
	Audit risks and our audit approach (cont.)
	Audit risks and our audit approach
	Audit risks and our audit approach (cont.)
	Audit risks and our audit approach
	Audit risks and our audit approach (cont.)
	Audit risks and our audit approach
	Key accounting estimates and management judgements– Overview
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Other matters
	Value for money
	Value for Money
	Value for Money: Performance improvement observations
	Appendix 
	Required communications
	Fees
	Confirmation of Independence
	Confirmation of Independence (cont.)
	Confirmation of Independence (cont.)
	Uncorrected audit misstatements
	Corrected audit misstatements
	Control Deficiencies
	Control Deficiencies
	Control Deficiencies (cont.)
	FRC’s �areas of �focus
	FRC’s areas of focus (cont.)
	FRC’s areas of focus (cont.)
	KPMG’s Audit quality framework 
	Slide Number 38

	6 Auditors Annual Report 2024-25
	Auditor’s Annual Report for South Kesteven District Council
	Contents
	Executive Summary
	Executive Summary
	Executive Summary
	Audit of the financial statements
	Audit of the financial statements
	Audit of the financial statements: Council
	Audit of the financial statements: Council
	Value for Money
	Value for Money
	Value for Money
	Financial Sustainability
	Financial Sustainability
	Governance
	Governance
	Governance
	Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness
	Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness
	Significant Value for Money Risk
	Slide Number 21

	7 Statement of Accounts 2024-25
	Appendix A - Statement of Accounts 2024-25
	Appendix B - Letter of Representation

	8 Work Programme 2025 - 2026

